


;~rfns ;ldlt

/fh]Gb| k|;fb bfxfn
cWoIf

l;=P= rGb| /fh zdf{
;~rfns

zflGt k|;fb pk|]tL
;~rfns

lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofn
;~rfns

cd/ 8+uf]n dxh{g
;~rfns

w|'j s'df/ kf}8]n
sDkgL ;lrj

bfdf]b/ hf]zL
;~rfns

;ljgf /fgf
:jtGq ;~rfns



1P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf]
P3f/f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;"rgf

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿,

o; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*! k'; $ ut] laxLaf/ a;]sf]  !^$ cf¹+ a}7ssf] lg0f{o cg';f/ sDkgLsf] P3f/f¹ 
jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef lgDg ljifox? pk/ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{ lgDg ldlt, ;do / :yfgdf a:g] ePsf]n] ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] hfgsf/Lsf] 
nflu sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf ^& jdf]lhd of] ;"rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] 5 . pQm ;efdf pkl:yltsf nflu ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ xflb{s 
cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ .

;ef x'g] ldlt, ;do / :yfg M

ldlt 	M @)*! ;fn k'; @( ut] ;f]daf/ -tb\g';f/ hgj/L !#, @)@%_ .

;do 	M laxfg (M#) ah]b]lv .

:yfg 	M j]i6g{ Pl;og xf]6n k|f= ln= a'6jn, ¿kGb]xL .

5nkmnsf ljifox? M

s_ ;fdfGo k|:tfj

!= 	 cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg pk/ 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug{] .

@= 	 n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxtsf] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] jflif{s cfly{s ljj/0f -cfiff9 d;fGt @)*! sf] jf;nft, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa 
/ ;f]xL cjlwsf] gub k|jfx ljj/0f / O{lSj6Ldf ePsf] kl/jt{g nufot jflif{s cfly{s ljj/0f;Fu ;Dj¢ cg';"rLx?_ pk/ 5nkmn u/L kfl/t 
ug]{ .

#=	 ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 k|:tfj ul/Psf] gub nfef+z, r'Qmf k"FhLsf] )=%) -z'Go bzdnj kfFr_ k|ltztn] x'g] /sd ?= $& nfv @! xhf/ &%% 
?k¹of dfq -af]g; z]o/sf] s/ k|of]hgfy{_ ljt/0f ug{ :jLs[lt k|bfg ug]{ . 

$=	 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf nflu jfXo n]vfk/LIfs lgo'Qm ug]{ / lghsf] kfl/>lds tf]Sg] k|:tfj kfl/t ug]{ .

%=	 ;+:yfks z]o/wgL -;d'x æsÆ_ sf] tkm{af6 k|ltlglwTj ug]{ # hgf ;~rfnsx?sf] lgjf{rg ug{] .

^=	 ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL -;d'x ævÆ_ sf] tkm{af6 k|ltlglwTj ug]{ # hgf ;~rfnsx?sf] lgjf{rg ug{] .

v_ ljz]if k|:tfj

!=	 ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 k|:tfj ul/Psf] r'Qmf k"FhLsf] (=%) -gf} bzdnj kfFr z'Go_ k|ltztn] x'g] /sd ?= * s/f]8 (& nfv !# xhf/ #%@ ?k¹of 
a/fa/sf] af]g; z]o/ ljt/0f ug{ :jLs[lt k|bfg ug]{ . 

@=	 ;+:yfsf] clws[t k"FhL ?= ! ca{ ?k}Fofaf6 j[l4 u/L ?= ! ca{ @% s/f]8 ?k¹of k'¥ofpg] .

#=	 ;+:yfsf] hf/L / r'Qmf k"FhL ?= ($ s/f]8 $# nfv %! xhf/ ^% ?k}Fof @@ k};f af6 j[l4 u/L ! ca{ # s/f]8 $) nfv ^$ xhf/ $!& ?k¹of 
@@ k};f k'¥ofpg] .

$=	 k|aGwkqsf] bkmf ^ sf] k"FhL ;DaGwL Joj:yfdf cfjZos ;+zf]wg÷kl/dfh{g ug]{ .

%=	 lgodfjnLsf] bkmf #@ df /x]sf] ;~rfnssf] kfl/>lds, eQf / ;'ljwf ;DjGwL Joj:yfdf ;d;fdlos kl/dfh{g ug]{ .

^=	 k|:tfljt ;+zf]wg÷kl/dfh{gdf lgofds lgsfox?af6 k|fKt x'g cfpg] lgb]{zg adf]lhd yk36 nufot k|aGwkq tyf lgodfjnLdf cfjZos 
;+zf]wg ug]{ clVtof/L ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ k|bfg ug]{ .

&=	 o; ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu cGo s'g} ljQLo ;+:yf Ps cfk;df ufEg]÷ufleg] -dh{/_ tyf k|flKt -PlSjlhzg_ ug{ ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 ul7t dh{/ 
;ldlt tyf ;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf] sfo{ cg'df]bg ug{, gofF dh{/ ;ldlt u7g ug{, dh{/ tyf k|flKtsf] ;Gbe{df DDA lgo'QmL ug{, lghsf] kfl/>lds 
tf]Sg] nufotsf k|s[of cjnDag u/L ;+:yfnfO{ Ps cfk;df ufEg]÷ufleg] -dh{/_ tyf k|flKt -PlSjlhzg_ ug{sf] nflu ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ 
clVtof/L k|bfg ug{] .

u_ 	 ljljw

										               ;~rfns ;ldltsf] lg0f{ofg';f/

											             sDkgL ;lrj



2 P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;fdfGo hfgsf/L

!=	 jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef k|of]hgsf] nflu ldlt @)*!÷)(÷!! ut] z]o/ bflvn vf/]h aGb /xg]5 . @)*!÷)(÷!) ut] ;Dddf z]o/ v/Lb÷laqmL 
u/L k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ Unf]an cfOPdO{ Soflk6n lnld6]8df k|fKt ljj/0fx¿sf] cfwf/df sfod 
z]o/wgLx¿n] dfq jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng kfpg] 5g\ . 

@=	 ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lngsf nflu ;"rgf ;fy k|]lift k|j]zkq jf z]o/ k|df0fkq jf lxtu|fxL vftf vf]lnPsf] k|df0fkq tyf cfˆgf] kl/ro v'Ng] 
k|df0fkq clgjfo{ ¿kdf ;fydf lnO{ cfpg' x'g ;a} z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ ;"lrt ul/G5 . cGoyf ;ef sIfdf k|j]z ug{ lbOg] 5}g .

#=	 s'g} sf/0fjz z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] k|j]zkq k|fKt ug{ g;s]df o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{ -s]Gb|Lo_ sfof{no, a'6jndf ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g] 
ldlt cufj} ;Dks{ /fVg' eO{ k|j]zkq k|fKt ug{ ;Sg' x'g]5 . 

$=	 z]o/wgL btf{ k'l:tsf cg';f/ sfod z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿sf] 7]ufgfdf jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf ;lxtsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg k7fOg]5 . 
sf/0fjz pQm ;"rgf jf k|ltj]bg k|fKt gePdf ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf] j]a;fO6 (www.rsdcmf.com) jf cGo ;~rf/ dfWoddf k|sflzt u/]sf] 
;"rgfnfO{ cfwf/ dfgL ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng jf k|ltlglw lgo'lQm -k|f]S;L_ ug{ ;Sg' x'g]5 . 

%=	 ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug{ rfxg] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿n] o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;f]xL ;d"xsf z]o/wgLnfO{ dfq k|ltlglw lgo'Qm 
ug{ ;Sg' x'g]5 . o;/L k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] hfgsf/L o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf $* 306f cufj} btf{ ul/;Sg' kg]{5 . 

^=	 Ps hgf z]o/wgLaf6 PseGbf a9L k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug{ ;lsg] 5}g . t/ Ps hgf eGbf a9L k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ePsf] b]lvPdf ;a}eGbf klxn] btf{ 
ePsf] k|ltlglw lgo'lQm kq -k|f]S;L_ nfO{ dfGotf lbOg]5 . 

&=	 z]o/wgLn] k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ul/;s]kl5 k|ltlglw lgo'lQm kq -k|f]S;L_ ab/ gu/L cfkm}+ ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt eO{ xflh/ k'l:tsfdf b:tvt ug'{ 
ePdf k|ltlglw lgo'lQm kq -k|f]S;L_ :jtM ab/ ePsf] dflgg]5 . 

*=	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ nut lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ¿kdf pNn]v ePsf] JolQm dfq gfafns jf ljlIfKt z]o/wgLsf] tkm{af6 ;+/Ifssf] x}l;otn] 
;efdf efu lng ;Sg'x'g]5 . 

(=	 ;+o'Qm ¿kdf z]o/ lng] z]o/wgLx¿sf] xsdf z]o/wgLx¿sf] nut lstfadf klxnf] gfd pNn]v ePsf] JolQm cyjf ;j{;Ddltn] k|ltlglw lgo'Qm 
ul/Psf] Ps hgf JolQmn] dfq ;efdf efu lng kfpg] 5g\ .

!)=	 ;+ul7t ;+:yf z]o/wgL ePdf pQm ;+:yfåf/f dgf]lgt JolQmn] Nofpg] u/L k|ltlglw kq -k|f]S;L_ kmf/fddf ;+:yfsf] 5fk tyf cflwsfl/s JolQmsf] 
b:tvt x'g' kg]{5 . 

!!=	 z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿sf] ;'ljwfsf nflu xflh/L k'l:tsf ;ef :yndf ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g] lbg laxfgsf] *=)) ah]b]lv ;fwf/0f ;ef ;dfkg 
gx'Gh]n;Dd v'nf /xg]5 . 

!@=	 5nkmnsf] ljifo cGtu{t ljljw zLif{sdf 5nkmn ug]{ ljifo af/] ;ef x'g' eGbf & lbg cufj} sfof{no ;do leq cWoIfnfO{ ;Daf]wg u/L 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf lnlvt hfgsf/L lbg' kg]{5 . pQm ljifosf] cf¹lrTotf x]/L 5nkmndf ;dfj]z ul/P tfklg kfl/t x'g] k|:tfjsf] 
¿kdf eg] ;dfj]z ul/g] 5}g . 

!#=	 cGo cfjZos hfgsf/Lsf nflu o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] /lhi68{ -s]Gb|Lo_ sfof{nodf ;Dks{ /fVg' x'g cg'/f]w ul/G5 .

lgjf{rg ;DaGwL hfgsf/L

!=	 lgjf{rgdf ;~rfns kbsf] pDd]bjf/ x'g rfxg]n] sDkgLsf] lgodfjnL jdf]lhd sDtLdf !)) lsQf z]o/ lnPsf] x'g' kg{]5 . pQm z]o/ 
z]o/wgLx?sf] bflvn vf/]h btf{ aGb x'g' k"j{ sf/f]af/ u/L z]o/jfnfsf] gfddf gfd;f/L ePsf] x'g' kg{]5 . ;fy}, z]o/ s'g} klg k|sf/sf] lwtf] 
aGwsdf g/x]sf] x'g' kb{5 .

@=	 k|ltlglwkqaf6 dtbfg ug{] z]o/jfnfn] dtbfg ug{ kfpg] clwstd xb jf ;Ldf To:tf] z]o/wgLn] lng kfpg] ;+:yfsf] clwstd z]o/ lx:;fsf] 
dtbfg ;Ldf eGbf a9L x'g] 5}g .

#=	 of]Uotf k'u]sf] z]o/jfnfn] ;~rfns kbdf pDd]bjf/ x'g] dgf]gog kq :jo+ x:tfIf/ u/L tf]lsPsf] ldlt / ;dodf lgjf{rg clws[t ;dIf k]z 
ul/;Sg' kg{]5 .

$=	 o;/L dgf]gog kq bflvn ubf{ cfkm' h'g ;d'xaf6 pDd]bjf/ x'g] xf] ;f]xL ;d"xsf] Ps hgf z]o/jfnf k|:tfjs / Ps hgf ;dy{ssf] ?kdf 
b:tvt u/]sf] x'g' kb{5 .

%=	 k|:tfjs / ;dy{ssf] ?kdf b:tvt ug{] z]o/wgLn] o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sDtLdf !)) lsQf z]o/ lnPsf] x'g' kb{5 .
^=	 Ps hgf z]w/wgLn] Ps hgf eGbf a9L pDd]bjf/sf] nflu k|:tfjs / ;dy{ssf] ?kdf b:tvt ug{ kfpg] 5}g .
&=	 pDd]bjf/ dgf]gog kq lgjf{rg clws[tsf] sfof{no, cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8, a'6jn–!), ?kGb]xLdf pknAw x'g]5 .
*=	 lgjf{rg ;DaGwL sfo{qmd lgjf{rg clws[tn] tf]s] cg';f/ x'g]5 . lgjf{rg ;DaGwL ;Dk"0f{ sfo{qmdx? lgjf{rg clws[tsf] sfof{nosf] ;"rgf 

kf6Ldf !% lbg cufj} k|sflzt ul/g] 5 .
(=	 k|rlnt sfg'g tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+såf/f hf/L ul/Psf lgb{]zgx?df plNnlvt of]Uotf gk'Ug] JolQm ;~rfnssf] pDd]bjf/ x'g of]Uo x'g] 5}g .



3P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
a'6jn–!), ?kGb]xL

P3f/f}“ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yltsf] nflu
k|j]z kq

!= z]o/wgLsf] gfd M	=================================================================================================================================

@= 7]ufgf M ===========================================================================================================================================

#= z]o/wgL g+=÷lxtu|fxL vftf g+= M ==================================================================================================================

$= z]o/ ;+Vof M ======================================================================================================================================

%= z]o/wgLsf] b:tvt M =============================================================================================================================

sDkgL ;lrj

-s[kof of] k|j]zkq z]o/wgL cfkm¹n] eg'{xf]nf_

cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ kq

>L ;~rfns ;ldlt,
cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=
a'6jn–!), ?kGb]xL

ljifo M k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] .

dxfzo,

pko'{Qm ;DaGwdf ========================================== a:g] d÷xfdL ================================================================== n] 

cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= sf] ldlt @)*! ;fn kf}if @( ut], ;f]daf/sf lbg j]i6g{ Plzog xf]6n k|f=ln=, a'6jndf x'g] P3f/f¹ jflif{s ;fwf/0f 

;efdf :jod\ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn, lg0f{o / dtbfg k|lqmofdf ;xefuL x'g c;dy{ ePsfn] pQm ;efdf efu lng tyf 5nkmn, lg0f{o / dtbfg ug{sf 

nflu ========================================== a:g] To; sDkgLsf z]o/wgL >L ================================================================== 

nfO{ d]/f]÷xfd|f] k|ltlglw tf]sL k7fPsf] 5'÷5f¹ .

k|f]S;L k|fKt ug]{n] eg]{ k|f]S;L lbg]

k|f]S;L k|fKt ug]{sf] ;xL M

gfd M 

7]ufgf M

z]o/wgL g+=÷lxtu|fxL vftf g+= M

z]o/ ;+Vof M

ldlt M

k|f]S;L lbg]sf] ;xL M

gfd M 

7]ufgf M

z]o/wgL g+=÷lxtu|fxL vftf g+= M

z]o/ ;+Vof M

ldlt M

b|i6Jo M of] lgj]bg ;fwf/0f ;ef ;'? x'g'eGbf $* 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf k]; ul/;Sg' kg]{5 .

P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!



4 P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!



5P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

ljifo–;"rL

!= ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg ======================================================================================== 	 !

@= sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)( sf] pkbkmf $ adf]lhdsf ljj/0fx? ==============================================	 %

#= lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg;“u ;DalGwt jflif{s k|ltj]bg ===========================================================	!@

$= ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL ljj/0f ==================================================================================	 !$

%= n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg =============================================================================================== 	@!

^= g]kfn ljQLo k|ltj]bg dfg cg';f/sf] ljQLo ljj/0fx? =============================================================	@&

&= g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb{]zgx? dfly ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a'“bfut k|To'Q/ =============================================	 (%

*= k|aGwkqdf ;+zf]wg ;DaGwL tLg dxn] ljj/0f =====================================================================	 (^

(= lgodfjnLdf ;+zf]wg ;DaGwL tLg dxn] ljj/0f ===================================================================	 (&

!)= ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj cGtu{tsf sfo{qmdx?sf] tl:j/x?	

!!= u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if cGtu{tsf sfo{qmdx?sf] tl:j/x?



6 P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!



1P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

 !! cf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 
cWoIfåf/f k|:t't k|ltj]bg -cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*!_

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿,

o; cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8, a'6jn ¿kGb]xLsf] !! cf¹ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf ;xefuL x'g cfpg'ePsf ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL tyf 
z]o/wgLsf k|ltlglw dxfg'efjx¿nfO{ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf cfˆgf] tkm{af6 ;d]t xflb{s :jfut tyf clejfbg ub{5' . o; !! cf¹  
jif{sf] ofqfnfO{ ;xh tyf ;kmn agfpg ;+:yfksx¿, k"j{ ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿, cGo kbflwsf/Lx¿ nufot ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿sf] 
;fy, ;xof]u tyf ;Nnfx ;'emfjsf] dxŒjk"0f{ of]ubfg /x]sf] :d/0f ug{ rfxG5' . To:t} o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;jf]{kl/ lxtnfO{ s]Gb|df /fVb} cfufdL lbgdf 
Ps cu|0fL yf]s n3'shf{ k|bfos ljQLo ;+:yfsf ¿kdf :yflkt ug{;d]t oxfFx¿sf] ljZjf;, ;b\efj / e"ldsf lg/Gt/ /xg]5 eGg]df d ljZj:t 5' .

n'lDagL k|b]zsf] a'6jndf s]Gb|Lo sfof{no /x]sf] o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ldlt @)&) ;fn efb| @^ ut] ?=^ s/f]8 r'Qmf k"FhLaf6 sf/f]af/ z'ef/De u/]sfdf 
cfhsf lbg;Dd cfOk'Ubf o;sf] r'Qmf k"FhL ! ca{ ¿k}ofF eGbf a9L ePsf] hfgsf/L u/fpg kfpFbf v';L nfu]sf] 5 . To:t} tTsfnLg ;dodf ;+:yfks 
tyf ;fwf/0f z]o/sf] :jfldTj qmdzM ^) / $) k|ltzt /x]sf]df !) cf¹+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{o adf]lhd ;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf kl/jt{g u/L 
;+:yfks z]o/wgL ;d"x æsÆ sf] :jfldTj %! k|ltzt tyf ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL ;d"x ævÆ sf] :jfldTj $( k|ltzt sfod ug]{ sfo{ ;d]t ;DkGg 
ul/;lsPsf] 5 . t;y{ ;+:yfdf ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgL ;d"xaf6 k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ;~rfnsx¿sf] cg'kftdf j[l4 x'g uO{ ;+:yfsf] ;jf{ËL0f ljsf;df yk 
6]jf k'Ug] ljZjf; lnPsf] 5' .  

z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿sf] k|f/lDes hfgsf/Lsf nflu cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] ;+lIfKt cfly{s ljj/0f ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO6df k|sflzt ul/Psf] lyof] . 
jflif{s k|ltj]bg z]o/wgLn] dfu u/]sf] avtdf kfpg] u/L o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, z]o/ /lhi6«f/ Unf]an cfOPdO{ Soflk6n lnld6]8 
sf7df8f¹df /flvPsf] / ljQLo ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO6df ;d]t k|sfzg ul/;lsPsf] 5 . o; k|ltj]bg dfly ;fy} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;du| ultljlwx¿df 
oxfFx¿sf] cd"No ;Nnfx / ;'emfjsf] ck]Iff /fVb} cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg tyf ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[ltsf] nflu tkl;n adf]lhd 
oxfFx¿ ;dIf k|:t't ub{5' .

-s_ k|ltj]bg tyf ;dLIff cjlwsf] ljQLo emns M

;+:yfn] d'VotM u|fdL0f ;d'bfosf] ;xeflutf /x]sf ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf ;fy} n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿nfO{ ;d]t ;]jf k|bfg ug]{ u/L s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf 
cjl:yt d'Vo zfvf / cGo b'O{ zfvf sfof{no u/L tLg zfvf sfof{nox¿ dfkm{t yf]s shf{ k|jfx ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 .

;+:yfsf] ljut % jif{sf]] Joj;fo lj:tf/sf] cj:yf b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 M

 ljj/0f cf=j= @)&^÷&& cf=j= @)&&÷&* cf=j= @)&*÷&( cf=j= @)&(÷*) cf=j= @)*)÷*!

;]jf k'u]sf] lhNnf #! @% #% #! @(

;fem]bf/ ;+:yf ;+Vof !%$ !$! !$*  !#% !@)

C0fL vftf ;+Vof @($ @(# @&# @$) @!%

pko'{Qm tflnsf cg';f/ cf=j=@)&*÷&( ;Dd ljQLo ;+:yfsf] kx'Frdf s]xL j[l4 b]lvPtf klg tTkZrftsf ;"rsfÍx¿df qmlds ¿kdf sdL cfPsf] 
b]lvG5 . lgofds lgsfon] n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿sf] dh{/nfO{ k|f]T;fxg u/]sf] kl/0ffd:j?k @)&& c;f/ d;fGtdf *% j6f n3'ljQ ;~rfngdf 
/x]sfdf @)*! c;f/ d;fGt;Dd %@ j6f ;+:yf sfod 5g\ eg] yk s]xL ;+:yf dh{/sf] tof/Ldf 5g\ . ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿df ;+:yfut ;'zf;g tyf 
:jlgodgdf b]lvPsf] ljrngsf sf/0f ;xsf/Lx¿df nufgL a9fO{ yk hf]lvd df]Ng ;lsg] cj:yf klg 5}g . t;y{ ;+VofTds eGbf klg u'0ffTds 
Joj;fo lj:tf/nfO{ k|fyldstf lb{Psf] 5 . o;sf] c;/ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;]jf lj:tf/ tyf ;fem]bf/ ;+:yf ;+Vofdf ;d]t k|ltlalDat ePsf] 5 .

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] xfn;Ddsf] shf{ nufgL tyf c;'nLsf] cj:yf lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .

						      -?= s/f]8df_

 ljj/0f cf=j= @)&^÷&& cf=j= @)&&÷&* cf=j= @)&*÷&( cf=j= @)&(÷*) cf=j= @)*)÷*!

s'n shf{ nufgL &#%=^) ((%=&$ !,^*%=$@ @,)!#=#! @,#@$=^$

s'n shf{ c;'nL $$%=^# ^#(=(* !,!#@=@! !,#!*=!! !,^&$=@@

nufgLdf afFsL shf{ -s'n_ @*(=(& #%%=@* %%#=@! ^(%=@) ^%)=$@
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ljutsf jif{x¿df ;Gtf]ifhgs ¿kdf j[l4 x'Fb} cfPsf] shf{ nufgL ;dLIff cjlwdf s/La ^ k|ltztn] ;+s'rg ePsf] 5 . ;du| cy{tGqdf 5fPsf] 
;':ttfn] 36\bf] Jofj;flos dgf]an, a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf lj¿4sf c/fhs ultljlw / ;du| ;xsf/L If]qdf b]lvPsf] ;d:ofsf sf/0f shf{ nufgL 
hf]lvdk"0f{ x'Fb} uPsf]n] Joj;fo j[l4 eGbf klg Joj;fo ;'b[l9s/0fdf hf]8 lbg' kbf{ shf{ nufgLdf ;fdfGo sdL cfPsf] 5 .

;+:yfsf] k|d'v ljQLo ;|f]t eg]sf]— cGo a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿;Fu lnPsf] C0f tyf ;fk6L xf] . ;dLIff cjlwdf afXo C0f kl/rfng tyf 
nufgLdf /x]sf] shf{sf] cj:yf lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .

-¿= s/f]8df_

 ljj/0f cf=j= @)&^÷&& cf=j= @)&&÷&* cf=j= @)&*÷&( cf=j= @)&(÷*) cf=j= @)*)÷*!

afXo C0f ;fk6L @^)=&) #)&=$& $^$=&! %*@=^# %#%=(#

nufgLdf afFsL shf{ -s'n_ @*(=(& #%%=@* %%#=@! ^(%=@) ^%)=$@

cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] ;'¿jftb]lv g} k|lts"n Jofj;flos jftfj/0faf6 ;du| cy{tGqdf k/]sf] k|efj af/] xfdLnfO{ cjut g} 5 . o:tf] k|lts"n 
cj:yfdf ;+:yfn] u/]sf] pknlAw b]xfo cg';f/ 5 .

-?= nfvdf_

 ljj/0f cf=j= @)&^÷&& cf=j= @)&&÷&* cf=j= @)&*÷&( cf=j= @)&(÷*) cf=j= @)*)÷*!

;~rfng d'gfkmf !,!@)=&! !,@(#=&@ !,%)$=$@ !,%%)=#! @,%!$=%^

v'b gfkmf &($=@( (!$=^^ !,)%^=!% !,)&$=&# !,$!&=$#

;du| cy{tGqdf 5fPsf] cfly{s ;':ttfsf] kl/0ffd :j?k a+}lsË If]qdf kof{Kt t/ntf / 36\bf] Aofhb/sf afjh'b klg Jofj;flos dgf]an a9\g 
g;s]sf] tyf ;du| a}+lsË If]qsf] lgis[o shf{ a9]sf sf/0f a}+s tyf ljQLo If]qsf] gfkmf k|efljt ePsf] 5 . 

o; ;+:yfn] cf=j= @)&$÷&% / @)&%÷&^ df k'FhL j[l4 ug]{ s|ddf ljt/0f x'g g;s]sf] xsk|b z]o/ lnnfdL jfktsf] cfDbfgLaf6 ;dLIff 
jif{df ?=# s/f]8 %^ nfv #! xhf/ $!& cfos/ afkt vr{ n]vL e'QmfgL u/]sf]n] klg o;sf] gfkmf yk k|efljt ePsf] 5 . o:tf] k|lts"n 
cj:yfdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] clxn]sf] ;~rfng tyf v'b d'gfkmfsf] j[l4nfO{ ;Gtf]ifhgs g} dfGg' kg]{ b]lvG5 . cf=j @)*)÷*! sf] jf;nft, 
gfkmf gf]S;fgL lx;fa, gub k|jfxsf] cg';"rL ;lxtsf] oyfy{ ljj/0f oxfFx¿sf] hfgsf/Lsf nflu o;} ;fy ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 . 

-v_ jt{dfg pknlAw / cfufdL of]hgf M

sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg tyf rfn' cf=j= sf] k|yd q}dfl;s cjlw;Ddsf k|d'v ljQLo ;"rsfª\sx¿sf] t'ngfTds cj:yf b]xfo adf]lhd 5 M

-?= xhf/df_

qm=;+= ljj/0f

@)*) c;f/ b]lv @)*! c;f/ d;fGt;Ddsf]
t'ngfTds ljj/0f

@)*) c;f]h b]lv @)*! c;f]h d;fGt;Ddsf]
t'ngfTds ljj/0f

c;f/ @)*! c;f/ @)*) j[l4 c;f]h @)*! c;f]h @)*) j[l4

! shf{ nufgL -s'n_ ^,%)$,@@^ ^,(%!,(^$ –^Ü ^,&*$,))^ ^,()@,@$) –@Ü

@ shf{ ;fk6L %,#%(,##! %,*@^,@^* –*Ü %,&)*,!)$ %,()@,(($ –#Ü

# ;~rfng d'gfkmf @%!,$%^ !%%,)#! ^@Ü #&,@*$ %*,!#@ –#^Ü

$ v'b d'gfkmf !$!,&$# !)&,$&# #@Ü @^,)(( $),&&$ –#^Ü

% k"FhL kof{Kttf !*=$(Ü !%=(! Ü !^Ü !&=^^Ü !^=&$Ü %Ü

^ shf{ gf]S;fgL Joj:yf @#!,)(& @#&,^^# –#Ü @$**!! @#&,##@ $Ü

& lgis[o shf{ #=#! !=$) !#^Ü @=%& !=$( &@Ü

* k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL !%=)! !@=#^ @!Ü !!=)% !*=&^ –$!Ü

;xsf/L tyf n3'ljQsf If]qdf b]vf k/]sf ljljw ;d:ofx¿sf sf/0f @)*) c;f/ d;fGtsf] t'ngfdf @)*! c;f/ d;fGtdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] shf{ 
nufgLdf sl/a ^ k|ltztn] sdL cfPsf] 5 . tyflk ljQLo ;+:yfn] pknAw ;|f]t / ;fwgsf] k|efjsf/L kl/rfngdfkm{t ;f]xL cjlwdf v'b gfkmfdf 
#@ k|ltzt tyf k|ltz]o/ cfDbfgLdf @! k|ltztsf] j[l4 xfl;n ug{ ;kmn ePsf] 5 . 
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c;f]h d;fGt @)*! ;Dddf ;ft} k|b]znfO{ ;d]6\g] u/L @* lhNnfsf *) ;xsf/L ;+:yf / #! n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ u/L hDdf !!! ;fem]bf/ 
;+:yfx¿nfO{ yf]s n3'shf{ k|jfx ePsf] 5 . ljut jif{x¿df  ef]Ug' k/]sf] kof{Kt ljQLo ;|f]tsf] cefj tyf pRr Aofhb/sf] cj:yfeGbf ljk/Lt xfn 
a}+sx¿df clws nufgL of]Uo /sd y'lk|Psf] / Go"g Aofhb/sf afjh'b klg ;du| cy{tGqdf b]lvPsf] ;':ttf / Jofj;flos dgf]andf sdLsf sf/0f 
shf{sf] dfudf j[l4 x'g ;s]sf] b]lvb}g . cy{tGqdf cfPsf] ;':ttfsf sf/0f shf{sf] Jofhb/ Psn cÍdf em/]sf] ePtfklg Jofj;foLx¿ k|efjsf/L 
of]hgf ;lxt a}+sdf hfg ;ls/x]sf 5}gg\ . 

cy{tGqdf b]lvPsf] ;':ttfsf] sf/0f C0fLx¿sf] shf{ e'Qmfg ug]{ Ifdtf k|efljt x'g'sf ;fy} a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ lj¿4 s]xL c/fhs ;d'xn] 
;+ul7t ¿kd} shf{ e'Qmfg gug{ u/]sf] b'ik|rf/ / ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx¿dfly b'Jo{jxf/ ug]{ h:tf sf/0faf6 ;d]t a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿sf] shf{ 
nufgL ug]{ of]hgf k|efljt x'g k'Uof] . To:tf lqmofsnfksf sf/0f a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿sf] shf{ c;'nL k|efljt eO{, lgis[o shf{ pRr b/df j[l4 
x'g'sf ;fy} gfkmf ;d]t k|efljt eof] . To;sf] k|efj o; ;+:yfsf] ljQLo ljj/0fdf ;d]t k/]sf] b]lvG5 .

a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ k|efljt ug]{ s'g} klg ;sf/fTds÷gsf/fTds 36gfn] cGttf]uTjf b]zsf] cy{tGqsf] vDafsf] ¿kdf /x]sf ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ 
;d]t c5'tf] /xg ;Sb}gg\ . kmn:j¿k ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf] ;d]t shf{ c;'nLdf sl7gfO{ eO{ lgis[o shf{df j[l4 x'g uof] . ;dLIff cjlwdf b]zsf 
s]xL 7'nf ;xsf/L ;+:yfsf kbflwsf/Lx¿n] ;+:yfsf] ;DklQ lxgfldgf u/]sf]n] tL ;+:yfx¿ ;d:ofu|:t ePsf ;dfrf/x¿ af/Daf/ k|sflzt eO{/x] 
h;sf] sf/0f ;du| ;xsf/L If]qsf] ljZj;gLotfdf g} ;ª\s6 pTkGg x'g k'Uof] . kmn:j¿k ;b:ox¿n] ;+:yfaf6 art lkmtf{ ug]{ qmd pRr dfqfdf j[l4 
ePsf] / t/ntf Joj:yfkgdf yk bafa k/]sfn] ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ yk ;d:ofu|:t xF'b} uO/x]sf 5g\ .

n3'ljQ tyf ;xsf/Lsf] If]qdf b]lvPsf pNn]lvt ;d:ofx¿ xfn;Dd klg ljBdfg /x]sf]n] o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfufdL lbgdf ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] 
k|efjsf/L lg/LIf0f tyf cg'udg ug]{, shf{ c;'nL sfo{nfO{ k|efjsf/L agfO{ shf{sf] u'0f:t/ sfod /fVg] tyf ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg 
tyf Ifdtf clejl[4sf nflu ljleGg k|sf/sf tflnd, uf]i7L tyf cGtls|{of nufotsf sfo{qmdx¿ ;~rfng ub}{ ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] lbuf] ljsf; 
u/L nIo xfl;n ug]{ gLlt lnPsf] 5 . 

clxn] Joj;fo lj:tf/sf] /0fgLlteGbf klg eO/x]sf] Joj;fonfO{ u'Dg glbg k|lt:kwf{Tds Jofhb/ sfod ug]{, yk shf{ k|jfx ubf{ shf{ ljZn]if0f 
k|ls|ofnfO{ b'¿:t agfpg] / shf{ c;'nL sfo{nfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpg] /0fgLlt lnO{Psf] 5 . ;+:yfsf] k"FhL kof{Kttf cg'kft alnof] /x]sf]n] cy{tGqdf 
cfpg] ;'wf/;+u} Joj;fo lj:tf/sf] ult lbg ;xh x'g] cg'dfg ul/Psf] 5 .

-u_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Jofj;flos ;DaGw M

ljQLo ;|f]t pknAw u/fpg] a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿ tyf shf{ ;'ljwf pkef]u ug]{ C0fL ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿;Fu kf/:kl/s nfe tyf Jofj;flos 
lgi7fdf cfwfl/t ;DaGw sfod u/L lbuf] Joj;fo lj:tf/ ug{ ;lsG5 eGg] xfd|f] ljZjf; /x]sf] 5 . ;fem]bf/ ;+:yf tyf ;/f]sf/jfnfx¿;Fu kf/:kl/s 
nfedf cfwfl/t ;'dw'/ Jofj;flos ;DaGw :yflkt ul/Psf] 5 .	

-3_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL M

cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] d]¿b08sf] ¿kdf cfTd;ft ub}{ ;f] lj¿4 z"Go ;xgzLntfsf] gLlt clVtof/ ul/Psf] 
5 . ;~rfns:t/Lo hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt, sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt / ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldltsf ;fy} 
Joj:yfksLo:t/sf] cfly{s lgb]{zg ;ldlt, vl/b ;ldlt, ;DklQ bfloTj Joj:yfkg ;ldlt nufotsf ljleGg ;ldlt÷pk–;ldltx¿ lqmofzLn 
/x]sf 5g\ . ;a} ;ldlt÷pk;ldltx¿sf] sfd, st{Jo / clwsf/ :ki6;Fu kl/eflift u/L nfu' ul/Psfn]] ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;Ifd 
tyf k|efjsf/L /x]sf] 5 . k|rlnt sfg'g tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] hf/L u/]sf lgb{]zgsf] cIf/zM cg'kfngf ub}{, cfGtl/s tyf afXo n]vfk/LIf0f / 
;'kl/j]IfsLo k|ltj]bgdf cf¹+NofOPsf s}lkmotx¿sf] ;dLIff u/L ;~rfns ;ldltn] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] k|efjsfl/tfsf nflu ;do ;dodf 
Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbFb} cfPsf] 5 .

-ª_ cGo ;~rfng ultljlw M

!= ;~rfns ;ldltafx]s cGo ;ldlt÷pk–;ldltx¿ M 

lgofdsLo k|fjwfgcg';f/ ljQLo ;+:yfdf ;~rfns:t/Lo # ;b:oLo n]vf kl/If0f ;ldlt, % ;b:oLo hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt, % ;b:oLo sd{rf/L 
;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt / % ;b:oLo ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt /x]sf 5g\ . pQm ;ldltx¿sf] sfd, st{Jo / clwsf/ :ki6;Fu kl/eflift u/L nfu' 
ul/Psf] tyf ;a} ;ldltx¿n] cf–cfˆgf] If]qflwsf/ tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zgsf] cwLgdf /xL ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f tyf ;'zf;g, 
hf]lvd Joj:yfkg / cg'kfngf ;DaGwdf cfjZos 5nkmn u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg'sf ;fy} ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;Nnfx÷;'emfj ;d]t lbg] 
u/]sf] 5 .
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@_ cfr/0f kfngf ;DaGwdf M

ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;~rfnsx¿n] g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] …3Ú ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿nfO{ hf/L u/]sf] PsLs[t lgb]{zgdf tf]lsPsf cfr/0fx¿sf] k"0f{ 
¿kdf kfngf ub}{ cfO/x]sf] / cfufdL lbgdf ;d]t cfr/0f tyf ;+:yfut ;'zf;g kfngf ug{ k|ltj4 /x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpF5' . 

#_ sDkgL P]g tyf lgb]{lzsfsf] kfngf ;DaGwdf M

;+:yfn] k|rlnt sDkgL P]g tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+såf/f hf/L lgb]{zgsf] k"0f{ ¿kdf kfngf ub}{ cfO/x]sf] tyf pQm P]g÷lgb]{lzsfsf] alv{nfk x'g] u/L s'g} 
sfd sf/afxL gu/]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpF5f}+ . To:t} s'g} ;~rfns jf kbflwsf/Lx¿sf] glhssf] gft]bf/ -bfh'efO, kltkTgL jf 5f]/f5f]/L_ sDkgL /lhi6«f/, 
lwtf]kq af]8{ jf lgodgsf/L lgsfodf clws[t jf ;f]eGbf dflyNnf] txdf sfo{/t /x]sf] hfgsf/Ldf cfPsf] 5}g .

$_ ckn]vg ul/Psf shf{x¿sf] ljj/0f M

ljQLo ;+:yfn] xfn;Dd s'g} klg shf{ ckn]vg u/]sf] 5}g .

 

-r_ s[t1tf 1fkgM

;efdf pkl:yt z]o/wgLx¿ Pj+ cltlyx¿k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf JoQm ub{} oxfFx¿af6 k|fKt ;xof]u tyf ;b\efjsf nflu cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] ;du| ljsf; / k|ultsf] nflu dfu{bz{g k|bfg ug]{ g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh 
nufotsf ;Dk"0f{ lgofds lgsfox¿nfO{ ;d]t wGojfb 1fkg ub{5' . cGTodf, d ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 o; ;+:yfsf] pGgtL tyf k|ultsf nflu 
lg/Gt/ ;xof]u, ;'emfj k|bfg ug'{x'g] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿, z'elrGtsx¿ tyf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ xflb{s wGojfb lbFb}, cfufdL lbgdf 
o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] pQ/f]Q/ k|ultsf] nflu ;~rfns ;ldlt k|ltj4 /x]sf] ljZjf; lbnfpg rfxG5' . 

wGojfb Û

/fh]Gb| k|;fb bfxfn		     
cWoIf			        
ldltM @)*!÷)(÷@( 
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-sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)( sf] pkbkmf $ adf]lhdsf ljj/0f_

!= ;dLIff cjlwsf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg M

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

@= /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltaf6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ s'g} c;/ k/]sf] eP ;f] c;/ M 

ljQLo ;+:yfsf lglDt ut cfly{s jif{el/ g} cfGtl/s / afXo /fhgLlts tyf cfly{s kl/l:ylt k|lts'n /x]sf] b]lvG5 . ?; / o'qm]gaLr hf/L o'4, 
Oh/fon–Kofln:6fOg o'4, cd]l/sf / rLgaLr hf/L Jofkfl/s tgfj, hnjfo' kl/jt{gaf/] ljZjdf hf/L ax; / rf;f], s[lqd af}l4stf (AI-Artificial 
Intelligence) sf] ljsf; / k|of]udf ePsf] lj:tf/, ljB'tLo ;jf/L ;fwgsf] k|of]udf j[l4, ;'g tyf cd]l/sL 8n/sf] d"Nodf ePsf] j[l4 / zlQm /fi6«sf 
:jfy{sf åGå cflb—cfly{s jif{sf k|d'v cGt/f{li6«o 36gfsf ¿kdf /x] . cGt/f{li6«o 36gfx¿n] ljZjsf] s'g} klg b]zsf] /fhgLlt tyf cy{tGqdf kfg]{ 
;sf/fTds÷gsf/fTds k|efjx¿ :jefljs ¿kdf ljQLo If]qdf klg k/]sf] 5 .  

/fli6«o kl/b[Zodf, cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! cfly{s b[li6sf]0fn] eGbf klg a9L /fhgLlts b[li6sf]0fn] pynk'ynsf] jif{ /Xof]] . /fhgLlts kf6L{x¿n] ;Qf 
k|flKtsf nflu u/]sf] u7aGwg km]/abn / ;/sf/ agfpg u/]sf ljleGg ljsNksf] vf]hLdf ut cfly{s jif{sf] clwsf+z ;do laTof] . To:t} b]ze/sf 
7"nf 7flgPsf ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿df ePsf ljleGg clgoldttfsf 36gfx¿ lg/Gt/ ;~rf/ dfWoddf k|sflzt e}/xg' / ;xsf/L 7uLdf pRrkb:y JolQm 
nufot gfd rn]sf ;xsf/L cleoGtfx¿sf] ;d]t ;+nUgtfsf 36gfn] ;bgb]lv ;8s;Dd rRff{ kfof] .

b]zdf JofKt cfly{s ;':ttf, /fhgLlts lvFrftfgL / ;fdfGo hgdfg;df /x]sf lg/fzf Pj+ c;Gt'li6nfO{ d'Vo d'2f agfP/ s]xL c/fhs ;d"x¿n] a}+s 
tyf ljQLo ;+:yf -;xsf/L ;+:yf ;d]t_ sf lj¿4 ljleGg k|sf/sf cjfl~5t ultljlw ug]{ sfo{nfO{ tLj|tf lbP . kmn:j¿k u|fdL0f If]qdf cjl:yt 
;xsf/L ;+:yf / n3'ljQsf zfvf sfof{no nufot zx/L If]qdf cjl:yt a}+sx¿sf] b}lgs sfd sf/afxL;d]t k|efljt x'g uO{ shf{ nufgL tyf 
c;'nLdf k|lts"n k|efj k¥of] . To;s} kl/0ffd :j¿k ;ldIff cjlwdf ;du| a}+lsË If]qs} lgis[o shf{ lautsf] t'ngfdf pRrb/df a9\g'sf ;fy} 
gfkmfdf ;d]t gsf/fTds k|efj k/]sf] b]lvG5 .

g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] k|sflzt u/]sf] cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] jflif{s tYofÍdf cfwfl/t b]zsf] jt{dfg cfly{s tyf ljQLo l:ylt lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .

•	 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿aLrsf] cGt/–a}+s sf/f]af/sf] efl/t cf¹;t Aofhb/ @)*) c;f/df #=!$ k|ltzt /x]sfdf @)*! c;f/df @=(( 
k|ltzt sfod ePsf] . 

•	 jfl0fHo a}+sx¿sf] lgIf]ksf] efl/t cf¹;t Aofhb/ @)*) c;f/df &=*^ k|ltzt /x]sfdf @)*! c;f/df sl/a @& k|ltztn] sdL cfO{ %=&& 
k|ltzt sfod ePsf] . 

•	 @)*) c;f/df jfl0fHo a}+sx¿sf] shf{sf] efl/t cf¹;t Aofhb/ !@=#) k|ltzt /x]sfdf @)*! c;f/df sl/a !( k|ltztn] 36]/ (=(# k|ltzt 
sfod ePsf] .

•	 @)*) c;f/df jfl0fHo a}+sx¿sf] cf¹;t cfwf/ b/ !)=)# k|ltzt /x]sfdf @)*! c;f/df sl/a @) k|ltztn] sdL cfO{ * k|ltzt ePsf] .  

ljut jif{x¿df a}+ssf] cfwf/ b/ tyf shf{sf] Aofh b/df sdL cfpFbf shf{sf] dfu a9\g] / ;du| cfly{s If]q rnfodfg x'g] u/]sf]df ;dLIff jif{df 
a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿af6 lghL If]qdf k|jflxt shf{ ¿= @&^ ca{ ($ s/f]8 -%=* k|ltzt_ n] a9]sf] 5, hasL ;f]xL cjlwdf a}+s tyf ljQLo 
;+:yfx¿sf] lgIf]k ¿= &$@ ca{ #& s/f]8 -!#=) k|ltzt_ n] a9]sf] b]lvG5 .  

shf{ / lgIf]ksf] j[l4df b]lvPsf] c;dfgtfsf sf/0f a}+sx¿df hDdf x'g uPsf] clws t/ntf Joj:yfkgsf] nflu s]Gb|Lo a}+sn] ;do ;dodf 
ljleGg ljQLo cf¹hf/x¿sf] k|of]u u/]sf] b]lvG5 . cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df :yfoL lgIf]k ;'ljwf dfkm{t ¿= #%@@ ca{ #% s/f]8 / lgIf]k ;+sng 
af]nsaf]ndfkm{t ¿= !!%! ca{ @% s/f]8 u/L s'n ¿=$^&# ca{ ^) s/f]8 t/ntf k|zf]rg u/]sf] 5 . 

@)*) c;f/ d;fGtdf ¿= !%#( ca{ #^ s/f]8 a/fa/ /x]sf] s'n ljb]zL ljlgdo ;l~rlt #@=^ k|ltztn] j[l¢ eO{ @)*! c;f/ d;fGtdf ¿= @)$! 
ca{ !) s/f]8 sfod ePsf] / cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! sf] cfoftnfO{ cfwf/ dfGbf a}+lsË If]q;Fu /x]sf] ljb]zL ljlgdo ;l~rlt !%=^ dlxgfsf] j:t' 
cfoft / !# dlxgfsf] j:t' tyf ;]jfsf] cfoft wfGg kof{Kt /xg] b]lvG5 . 

o;/L d'n'ssf] afXo cj:yf ;an /x]tf klg lgdf{0f / pTkfbgd"ns If]qsf] j[l4b/ Go"g /x]sf], 7"nf] ;+Vofdf o'jfx¿ j}b]lzs /f]huf/L / ljb]z 
cWoogdf uPsf], k"FhLut vr{df sdL / k|efjsf/L gePsf] cfbL sf/0faf6 cfGtl/s dfu lzlyn /x]sf] b]lvG5 .
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#= k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt;Dd rfn" jif{sf] pknlAw / eljiodf ug'{kg]{ s'/fsf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff M 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

$= ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Jofj;flos ;DaGw M 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

%= ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f]sf] sf/0f M

o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf l/Qm /x]sf] :jtGq ;~rfnssf]] kbdf ldlt @)*) efb| !^ ut] a;]sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] !$^ cf¹ a}7sn] >L ;ljgf /fgfnfO{ 
lgo'Qm u/]sf] tyf ;f]sf] hfgsf/L a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g, @)&# sf] bkmf !$-#_ cg';f/ !) cf¹+ ;fwf/0f ;efdf u/fOPsf] .

^= sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx¿ M 

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg{ ;Sg] d'Vo s'/fx¿ lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf 5g\ M

•	 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿df kof{Kt t/ntf tyf Go"g Aofhb/sf afjh'b ahf/df shf{sf] dfu x'g g;Sg',
•	 d'VotM n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿df yf]s shf{ k|bfg ug]{ sfo{df s, v / u ju{sf a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿;Fusf] ;3g k|lt:kwf{,
•	 yf]s tyf v'b|f n3'ljQ If]qdf a9\bf] k|lt:kwf{sf sf/0f shf{sf] bf]xf]/f]kgf tyf shf{sf] b'¿kof]u ug]{ k|j[lQdf j[l4 x'g',
•	 ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿sf] k|efjsf/L lgodg cg'udg ug]{ ;+oGqsf] cefj tyf ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿ ;d:ofu|:t x'Fb} uPsf sf/0f ;du| ;xsf/L If]qk|ltsf] 

ljZjf;df cfPsf] sdL,
•	 ;du| a}+lsË If]q -;xsf/L ;+:yf ;d]t_ sf] lgis[o shf{ a9\b} hfg',
•	 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf -;xsf/L ;+:yf ;d]t_ sf lj¿4sf ljleGg ultljlwx¿,
•	 n3'ljQsf sfo{qmdx¿nfO{ k|efljt ug]{ u/L cjfl~5t tŒjx¿af6 a]nfa]nfdf x'g] u/]sf c/fhs ultljlwx¿,
•	 d'n'ssf] ;fdflhs, /fhgLlts / /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o cfly{s tyf /fhgLlts cj:yfdf x'g] kl/jt{g,
•	 ;/sf/sf] k"FhLut vr{ ;w¹ Go"g / ck|efjsf/L /xg', 
•	 ;+3, k|b]z tyf :yfgLo lgsfon] ;xsf/L÷n3'ljQsf] If]qdf lng] gLlt,
•	 ;/sf/÷lgofds lgsfosf lgb]{zgx¿ tyf gLltdf x'g ;Sg] kl/jt{g,
•	 k|fs[lts ljklQ, b}jL k|sf]k tyf cGo e}k/L ¿kdf cfpg] dxfdf/LhGo 36gfx¿, 
•	 a}+s÷ljQLo ;+:yfsf] C0f 7"nf C0fLn] t lt/]sf 5}gg\ eg] d}n] glt/]/ s] x'G5 eGg] k|To'Tkfbs ;f]rfO,
•	 a9\bf] b08xLgtf / To;n] k}bf u/]sf] g}/fZo . 

&= n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof M

cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} uDeL/ k|s[ltsf] s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] 5}g tyf n]vfk/LIfsaf6 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/ 
lgod;+ut / ;Gtf]ifhgs /x]sf] k|ltj]bg k|fKt ePsf] 5 . o;sf cnfjf n]vfk/LIf0fsf qmddf cf¹+NofOPsf ;fdfGo s}lkmotx¿ dfly ;ldltsf] 
Wofgfsif{0f ePsf] / cfjZos ;'wf/fTds sbd rfNg Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbOPsf] 5 . 

*= nfef+z  afF8kmfF8  ug{  l;kmfl/z  ul/Psf]  /sd M 

cf=j= @)*)÷*! ;Ddsf] ;l~rt d'gfkmfaf6 xfn sfod r'Qmf k"FhL ¿= ($ s/f]8 $# nfv %! xhf/ ^% ¿k}Fof @@ k};fsf] (=% -gf} bzdnj kfFr_ 
k|ltztn] x'g] /sd ¿= * s/f]8 (& nfv !# xhf/ #%@ ¿k}ofF a/fa/sf] af]g; z]o/ tyf r'Qmf k"FhLsf] )=%) -z'Go bzdnj kfFr_ k|ltztn] x'g] 
/sd ¿= $& nfv @! xhf/ &%% ¿k}ofF dfq gub nfef+z -af]g; z]o/sf] s/ k|of]hgfy{_ ljt/0f ug{ k|:tfj ul/Psf] 5 .

(= z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;ª\Vof, To:tf] z]o/sf] cl°t d"No, To:tf] z]o/ hkmt x'g'eGbf cufj} ;f] afkt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] 
hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ laqmL u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd tyf hkmt ePsf] z]o/ afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] 
ljj/0f M

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] xfn;Dd s'g} z]o/ hkmt gePsf] .
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!)= ljut cfly{s jif{df ljQLo ;+:yf / o;sf] ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/ k|ult / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] cGTodf /x]sf] l:yltsf] k'g/fjnf]sg M 

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'g} klg ;xfos sDkgL gePsf] .

!!= o; ljQLo ;+:yf tyf o;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]af/x¿ / ;f] cjlwdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/df cfPsf] 
s'g} dxŒjk"0f{ kl/jt{g M

o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'g} klg ;xfos sDkgL gePsf] .

!@= ljut cfly{s jif{df ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx¿n] ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/L M

o:tf] s'g} hfgsf/L jf ;"rgf k|fKt gePsf] .

!#= ljut cfly{s jif{df ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx¿n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f / ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/df 
lghx¿ ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx¿af6 ljQLo ;+:yfn] k|fKt u/]sf] hfgsf/L M

@)*! c;f/ d;fGt;Dd ;~rfns tyf ;~rfns dgf]gog ug]{ ;+:yf tyf d'Vo kbflwsf/Lx¿n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTj lgDg adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 M

qm=;+= ;~rfnssf] gfd kb÷kbflwsf/L z]o/ ;+Vof s}lkmot

!= >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb bfxfn cWoIf — ;+:yfks ;d"x >L u|fdL0f :jfjnDag ljsf; 
s]Gb| sf7df8f¹af6 k|ltlglw

@= >L rGb|/fh zdf{ ;~rfns — ;+:yfks ;d"x >L Unf]an cfOPdO{ a}+s 
lnld6]8af6 k|ltlglw

#= >L lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofn ;~rfns !*,***=#$ ;+:yfks ;d"xaf6 lgjf{lrt

$= >L bfdf]b/ hf]zL ;~rfns (,$%*=*( ;+:yfks ;d"xaf6 lgjf{lrt

%= >L zflGt k|;fb pk|]tL ;~rfns ($$=$) ;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xaf6 lgjf{lrt

^= >L cd/ 8+uf]n dxh{g ;~rfns !,!#$=%( ;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xaf6 lgjf{lrt

&= >L ;lagf /fgf :jtGq ;~rfns – :jtGq ;~rfns

*= >L w|'j s'df/ kf}8]n k|=sf=c= – k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t÷sDkgL ;lrj

(= >L u|fdL0f :jfjnDag ljsf; s]Gb| ;~rfns dgf]gog ug]{ ;+:yf !!,$^,)))=)$ >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb bfxfn

!) >L Unf]an cfOPdO{ a}+s ln= ;~rfns dgf]gog ug]{ ;+:yf (,^#,@#*=@! >L rGb|/fh zdf{

ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 hf/L ul/Psf] xsk|b tyf af]g; z]o/ u|x0f ug]{ afx]s ;+:yfsf sfo{sf/L k|d'v, ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/L ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ 
sf/f]af/df ;+nUg gePsf] .

o; ;+:yfdf ;~rfns dgf]gog u/]sf] ;+:yf >L Unf]an cfOPdO{ a}+s lnld6]8n] !) cf¹ jlif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] lg0f{o cg';f/ ;+:yfksaf6 ;fwf/0f 
z]o/df ¿kfGt/0f ePsf] hDdf ! nfv ^( xhf/ (*# lsQf ;fwf/0f z]o/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] …3Ú ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿nfO{ hf/L u/]sf]
PsLs[t lgb]{zgsf] lgb]{zg g+= !) sf] a'Fbf g+= ^ sf] Joj:yf jdf]lhd r'Qmf kF'hLsf] !) k|ltztsf] ;Ldf leq Nofpg] k|of]hgsf nflu ljlgj]z u/]sf]
eGg] hfgsf/L /x]sf] .

!$= ljut cfly{s jif{df ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx¿df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhssf] gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{sf] af/]df pknAw 
u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/f M 

;f] ;DaGwdf s'g} ;Demf}tf gePsf] tyf To:tf] s'g} hfgsf/L jf ;"rgf ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ k|fKt gePsf] .

!%= ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm}Fn] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfˆgf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf] z]o/sf] ;+Vof / cl°t d"No tyf To;/L 
z]o/ vl/b u/]afkt a}+sn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sd M

ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm¹n] vl/b u/]sf] 5}g .
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!^= cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP ;f]sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f M

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf] .

	
!&= ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f M

qm=;+= ljj/0f /sd ¿= -cf=j= @)*)÷*!_

!= sd{rf/L vr{ -af]g; afx]s_ !,(@, %!,$&^.–

@= cGo ;~rfng vr{ !,)^,&!,$#&.–

#= hDdf @,((,@@,(!#.–

!*= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox¿sf] gfdfjnL, lghx¿n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf, ;f] ;ldltn] u/]sf] sfd sf/afxLsf] ljj/0f 
/ ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M

;dLIff cjlwdf ;+:yfsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltdf u}/ sfo{sf/L ;~rfns >L lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofn -;+of]hs_, ;~rfns >L cd/ 8+uf]n dxh{g -;b:o_ 
tyf sd{rf/L >L z+s/ e§/fO{ -;b:o ;lrj_ /xg' ePsf] . n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL, P]g, lgod sfg'g tyf 
lg0f{ox¿ sfof{Gjogsf] cj:yf cfbLsf] ;dLIff u/L cfjZos ;'emfj lbg] ub{5 . To:t} n]vfk/LIfssf] lgo'lQmsf] l;kmfl/; ug]{, cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f 
k|ltj]bg tyf k|f/lDes n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf pNn]v ul/Psf s}lkmot pk/ 5nkmn u/L ;'wf/ ug{ Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg tyf ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ 
cfjZos ;'emfj lbg] u/]sf] 5 . n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ;~rfnsx¿nfO{ k|lt a}7s ¿= ^,))).– a}7s eQf tyf lan adf]lhdsf] 
oftfoft ;'ljwf k|bfg ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! df n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf afkt hDdf ¿= ^$,))).– k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .

!(= ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, ljQLo ;+:yfsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL 
jf ;+ul7t ;+:yfn] ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL eP ;f] s'/f M

To:tf] s'g} /sd g/x]sf] .

@)=  ;~rfns,  k|aGw  ;~rfns,  sfo{sf/L  k|d'v  tyf kbflwsf/Lx¿nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd M 

S	 ;ldltsf] a}7sdf ;xefuL eP afkt k|lt a}7s cWoIfnfO{ ¿= ^,%)).– tyf cGo ;b:onfO{ ¿= ^,))).– sf b/n] a}7s eQf, dfl;s ¿kdf 
kqklqsf / ;~rf/ afkt k|lt ;b:o ¿= !,%)).– / j}7sdf pkl:yt x'Fbf nfUg] lan adf]lhdsf] oftfoft vr{ pknAw u/fpg] ul/Psf] 5 . 
cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df a}7s eQf afkt ¿= *,)(,))).– / cGo vr{ afkt ¿= !(,(@,!&(.– u/L hDdf ¿= @*,)!,!&(.– vr{ ePsf] 5 .

S	 cf=j= @)*)÷*! df k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tnfO{ kfl/>lds, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf jfkt hDdf ¿= #),^(,@)).– tyf af]g; P]g adf]lhd x'g] 
af]g; /sd ;d]t e'Qmfg ul/Psf] 5 .

S	 cf=j= @)*)÷*! df gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t / cGo tLg hgf k|aGws txsf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ kfl/>lds, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf afkt 
hDdf ¿= %%,)(,)*% tyf af]g; P]g adf]lhd x'g] af]g; /sd ;d]t e'Qmfg ul/Psf] 5 .

@!= z]o/wgLx¿n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd M

cf=j= @)*)÷*! ;Dddf z]o/wgLx¿n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] gub nfef+zsf] /sd ¿= ¿=$^,(%,%)!.&& dfq /x]sf] . pQm /sd ;+:yfsf] z]o/ 
/lhi6«f/ >L Unf]an cfOPdO{ Soflk6n lnld6]8sf] vftfdf hDdf /x]sf] 5 .      

@@= sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] s'/fsf] ljj/0f M

sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !$! cfslif{t x'g] u/L s'g} ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL gePsf] .

@#= sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL lar ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f M 

sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% cfslif{t x'g] u/L ;Da4 sDkgL lar s'g} sf/f]af/ gePsf] .
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@$= sDkgL P]g, @)^# tyf k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg]{ cGo s'g} s'/f M

s_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt M ;~rfns >L lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofnsf] ;+of]hsTjdf /x]sf] # ;b:oLo n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ug{ 
of]Uo n]vfk/LIfs lgo'lQmsf] nflu l;kmfl/; ug'{sf ;fy} k|rlnt P]g, lgod sfg'g tyf lgofds lgsfosf lgb]{zg nufot ljQLo ;+:yfsf cfGtl/s 
gLlt lgodx¿sf] kfngfsf] cj:yf, tyf ljQLo ;+:Yffsf] cfGtl/s tyf afXo n]vfk/LIfsn] cf¹NofPsf s}lkmotx¿sf]] cWoog u/L Joj:yfkgnfO{ 
cfjZos lgb]{zg tyf ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;Nnfx÷;'emfj lbg] sfo{ ub{5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! df n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] ^ j6f a}7s a;L 
cfˆgf] sfd sf/afxL k|efjsf/L 9+un] ;DkGg u/]sf] 5 . 

v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt M ;~rfns >L rGb|/fh zdf{ ;+of]hs /x]sf] % ;b:oLo hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltn] ljQLo ;+:Yffsf] ;du| sf/f]af/df 
lglxt hf]lvdx¿sf] d"NofÍg u/L pQm hf]lvdx¿ Go"gLs/0f ug{sf nflu ljQLo ;+:yfn] cjnDag u/]sf pkfox¿sf] ;dLIff u/L ;f] ;DaGwdf 
Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg'sf ;fy} ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;d]t ;f] ;DaGwdf cfjZos ;Nnfx÷;'emfj lbg] sfo{ ub{5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! 
df hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltsf] a}7s hDdf % k6s a;L cfˆgf] sfd sf/afxL k|efjsf/L 9+un] ;DkGg u/]sf] 5 . 

u_ sd{rf/L ;]jf–;'ljwf ;ldlt M ;~rfns >L bfdf]b/ hf]zLsf] ;+of]hsTjdf /x]sf] % ;b:oLo sd{rf/L ;]jf–;'ljwf ;ldltn] d'Votof ljQLo 
;+:Yffsf] sd{rf/L÷hgzlQm ;+/rgf, kfl/>lds tyf ;]jf–;'ljwfsf] cj:yf, sd{rf/Lx¿n] ;Dkfbg ug'{kg]{ sfo{ tyf nIo k|ultsf ;"rsx¿ tyf >d 
;DaGwsf] cWoog u/L ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;Nnfx÷;'emfjx¿ lbg] ub{5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! df sd{rf/L ;]jf–;'ljwf ;ldltsf] a}7s 
hDdf # k6s a;L cfˆgf] lhDd]jf/L k|efjsf/L 9+un] lgjf{x u/]sf] 5 . 

3_ ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt M ;~rfns >L zflGt k|;fb pk|]tL ;+of]hs /x]sf] % ;b:oLo ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldltn] d'Votof ljQLo 
;+:Yff dfkm{t ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f ug{÷u/fpg glbgsf] nflu cfjZos pkfox¿ klxrfg u/L nfu' ug{sf] nflu ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ l;kmfl/; ug'{sf ;fy} 
Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] / lgodgsf/L lgsfoåf/f hf/L lglt lgb]{zg sfof{Gjogsf] cj:yfsf af/]df hfgsf/L lnO{ Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg 
lbg] u/]sf] 5 . cf=j= @)*)÷*! df ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldltsf] % j6f a}7sx¿ a;L cfˆgf] sfd sf/afxL k|efjsf/L 9+un] ;DkGg u/]sf] 5 . 

ª_ ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]if M lgofds lgsfosf] lgb]{zgcg';f/ jflif{s v'b d'gfkmfsf] ! k|ltzt tyf jflif{s !% k|ltzt eGbf a9L nfef+z 
-gub jf af]g;_ ljt/0fsf] k|:tfj u/]df !% k|ltzt eGbf dflysf k|:tfljt nfef+zsf] !) k|ltztn] x'g] /sd ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]ifdf 
5'6\ofO{ pQm /sd ;fdflhs sfo{sf] nflu vr{ ug'{kg]{ Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTjdf vr{ ubf{ Ps} ef}uf]lns If]q tyf ljifodf dfq ;Lldt 
geO{ cfˆgf] sfo{If]q leqsf ef}uf]lns If]qdf hLjg /Iff, ;fj{hlgs lxt tyf k/f]ksf/L sfo{nfO{ k|fyldstfdf /fvL Gofof]lrt 9Ën] vr{ ug'{kg]{ 
lgofdsLo k|fjwfg cg';f/ ljQLo ;+:yfn] zfvf sfof{no tyf ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿;+usf] ;xsfo{df km/s km/s ef}uf]lns If]q tyf ljifodf ;+:yfut 
;fdflhs pQ/bfloTjsf] sfo{x¿ ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 . 

ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sfo{ljlw, @)&% adf]lhd $ ;b:oLo ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj ;~rfng ;ldltsf] u7g u/]sf] 
5 . pQm ;ldltsf kbflwsf/L b]xfo adf]lhd /x]sf 5g\ . 

	;+of]hs 	 – >L /fd k|;fb kGyL, gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
	;b:o 	 – >L kf/; dl0f 1jfnL, shf{ ljefu k|d'v 
	;b:o 	 – >L ldng clwsf/L, ljQ ljefu k|d'v
	;b:o ;lrj 	 – >L clht k|wfg, ;fdfGo ;]jf OsfO{ k|d'v 

pQm sf]ifdf cl3Nnf] cf=j= ;Ddsf] hDdf @) nfv (@ xhf/ *% ?k¹of afFsL /x]sfdf cf=j= @)*)÷*! sf] d'gfkmfaf6 ! k|ltztn] x'g] /sd !$ 
nfv !& xhf/ $@^ ?k¹of yk eO{ tkl;n adf]lhdsf sfo{ u/] kZrft @)*! c;f/ d;fGtdf pQm sf]ifdf #! nfv !@ xhf/ $#! ?k¹of afFsL /x]sf] 
5 . 

;dLIff cf=j=df ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTjsf] If]qdf lgDgfg';f/sf sfo{x¿ u/]sf] 5 . 

S	 ljleGg PkmPdx¿sf] ;+hfn dfkm{t b]z}e/ k|zf/0f x'g] sfofs}/g sfo{qmdsf] z'¿jftdf Ps dlxgf;Dd …ljQLo ;r]tgf ;DaGwL >Jo ;fdfu|LÚ 
k|zf/0f u/]sf] .

S	 >L hg;]jf :jfjnDag art tyf C0f ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ;Fusf] ;xsfo{df kfNkfsf] 8'd|]df cfof]lht …lgMz'Ns cfFvf r]shfFr lzlj/Ú 
cfof]hgf u/]sf] / ;f] af6 sl/a #)) hgf k|ToIf ¿kdf nfeflGjt ePsf lyP . o; ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 cfFvf r]shfFr sfo{df ;xefuL 
:jf:YosdL{sf] kfl/>lds, ;]jfu|fxLx?sf] nflu lgMz'Ns cf¹ifwL tyf sfo{qmd ;~rfngsf qmddf x'g] cGo vr{sf] ;d]t Joj:yf ul/Psf] lyof] .

S	 >L l;Gw'nL Pstf art tyf C0f ;xsf/L ;+:yf ln= ;Fusf] ;xsfo{df >L gjHof]tL alx/f dfWolds ljBfno, l;Gw'nLdf tflnd sIfsf] 
Joj:yf u/L ToxfF cWoog/t $ hgf z'Id jf0fL tyf >j0f zlQm sd ePsf ljBfyL{x¿nfO{ …# dlxg] skfn s6fO{ tflndÚ k|bfg ul/Psf] . 
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skfn s6fO{ tflnd dfkm{t pQm ljBfnodf cWoog/t alx/f ljBfyL{x¿sf] ;Lk ljsf; x'g] / cWoog kZrft cfo cfh{gsf] lbuf] ;|f]t dfkm{t 
hLjgofkg ;xh x'g] ;fy} tflndsf ;xefuLx¿n] cGo ljBfyL{x¿nfO{ klg ;Lk l;sfpg ;xhLs/0f ug]{ ePsf]n] cGo ljBfyL{x¿ ;d]t 
:j/f]huf/ aGg ;xof]u k'Ug] ck]Iff ul/Psf] 5 .

S 	 ¿kGb]xLsf] ltnf]Qdfdf cjl:yt dfgj ;]jf cf>ddf cfl>tx¿nfO{ vfgf ksfpg ;xhtfsf] nflu sl/a @%) hgfsf] nflu vfgf ksfpg ldNg] 
#% b]lv $) lsnf] Ifdtf ePsf] …/fO{; l:6d/Ú k|bfg ug'{sf ;fy} cfl>tx?nfO{ ;f] lbgsf] ;fFemsf] vfgfsf] Joj:yf ;d]t ul/Psf] .

r_ u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if M lgofds lgsfosf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ cfˆgf] v'b gfkmfsf] ! k|ltztn] x'g] /sd tyf jflif{s !% k|ltzt eGbf a9L nfef+z -gub 
jf af]g;_ ljt/0fsf] k|:tfj u/]df !% k|ltzt eGbf dflysf] k|:tfljt nfef+zsf] #% k|ltztn] x'g] /sd u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifdf hDdf ug'{kg]{ / pQm /sd 
C0fLx¿ -;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf]_ ;fd"lxs lxt tyf Ifdtf clej[l4sf nflu vr{ ug'{kg]{ Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if sfo{ljlwsf] cwLgdf 
/xL pQm sf]ifsf] lgDgfg';f/ kl/rfng ul/Psf] 5 .

S 	 ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfsf ¿kdf /x]sf v'b|f n3'shf{ k|bfos ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] bIftf clej[l4sf nflu ;+rfng ul/Psf] cleofg 
"Empowering Staff for Success in Microfinance" cGtu{t ljleGg ldltdf ¿kGb]xL, bfª, afFs] tyf dxf]Q/Ldf & j6f Ps÷Ps lbg] tflnd 
cfof]hgf ul/Psf] lyof] pQm tflnddf lgDg ljifoj:t'x¿ ;dfj]z ul/Psf] lyof] .

	 != n3'ljQsf] jt{dfg cj:yf / r'gf}tLsf] ;fdgf
	 @= k|efjsf/L shf{ c;'nL /0fgLlt
	 #= sd{rf/L dgf]an / g]t[Tj ljsf;
	 $= c;n u|fxs ;DaGw
	 %= a}lsË s;"/ / kl/0ffd 

	 Tflndaf6 !* n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf hDdf #@^ hgf sd{rf/Lx¿ nfeflGjt ePsf 5g\ .

S	 g]kfn n3'ljQ a}+s;{ ;+3n] sf7df8f¹df cfof]hgf u/]sf] "ToT on Financial Literacy Programme" ljifos Pslbg] sfo{qmddf ! ;fem]bf/ 
n3'ljQ ;+:yfsf # hgf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ ;xefuL u/fO{Psf] .

S	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] kfNkfdf Ps lbg] cfjf;Lo "Stress Management for Performance Excellence" ljifos sfo{qmd cfof]hgf u/]sf], h;df 
¿kGb]xLdf s]Gb|Lo sfof{no ePsf % n3'ljQsf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tx¿ ;lxt hDdf @% hgfsf] ;xeflutf /x]sf] .

S	 ;fem]bf/ ;xsf/L ;+:yfsf kbflwsf/Lx¿sf] Ifdtf clej[l4sf] nflu s}nfnL, afFs] / dxf]Q/Ldf u/L # j6f Ps÷Ps lbg] æ;+:yfut ;'zf;g tyf 
hf]lvd Joj:yfkgÆ ljifos sfo{qmd cfof]hgf ul/Psf] . s}nfnLdf cfof]lht sfo{qmddf !% ;+:yfaf6 $$ hgf, afFs]df !# ;+:yfaf6 $# 
hgf  / dxf]Q/Ldf !$ ;+:yfaf6 #& hgf u/L hDdf $@ ;xsf/L ;+:yfsf !@$ hgf kbflwsf/Lx¿sf]  ;xeflutf /x]sf] .

5_ sd{rf/L bIftf clej[l4 M lgofds lgsfosf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ k|To]s jif{ ut cfly{s jif{sf] sd{rf/Lsf] s'n tna eQf vr{sf] Go"gtd # k|ltztn] 
x'g] /sd sd{rf/Lx¿sf] bIftf clej[l4÷tflnd tyf j[lQ–ljsf;df vr{ ug'{kg]{ Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . h; cg';f/ ut cf=j=df sd{rf/Lx¿sf] bIftf 
clej[l4 ug{sf] nflu lgDg cg';f/sf tflndx¿ k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 .

S	 sfo{sf/L k|d'v ;lxt Joj:yfkg tx tyf zfvf k|aGwsx¿ u/L hDdf & hgfnfO{ a}+lsË tflndsf] If]qdf ljZjJofkL dfGotf k|fKt Moody's 
Analytics n] cgnfO{g dfkm{t k|bfg ug]{ ! jif]{ "CICC- Certificate in Commercial Credit" ljifos tflndsf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] tyf pQm tfldn 
hf/L /x]sf] .

S	 g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh ln=n] cfof]hgf u/]sf] "IFRS Sustainability Capacity Building" ljifos ! lbg] cgnfO{g tflnddf @ hgfnfO{ ;xefuL 
u/fOPsf] .

S	 ;fh O{Ge]i6d]G6 l/;r{ P08 6«]lgË k|f=ln=n] w'lnv]ndf cfof]hgf u/]sf] "Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) with Internal 
Control system and compliance" ljifos @ lbg] tflnddf ! hgfnfO{ ;xefuL u/fOPsf] .

S	 g]zgn a}+lsË O{lG:6Ro'6n] g]kfnu~hdf cfof]hgf u/]sf] "Determining Repayment Capacity Through Cashflow Analysis and Sanction 
Risk Mitigation and Control" ljifos !=% lbg] tflnddf ! hgfnfO{ ;xefuL u/fOPsf] .

S	 g]zgn a}+lsË O{lG:6Ro'6n] ¿kGb]xLdf cfof]hgf u/]sf] "Interpreting Ratios, Determining Repayment Capacity Through Cashflow 
Analysis & Pre-sanction Risk Mitigations and Control" ljifos !=% lbg] tflnddf @ hgfnfO{ ;xefuL u/fOPsf] .

S	 g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] sf7df08f}+df cfof]hgf u/]sf] ! lbg] "Supervisory Information System (SIS) Reporting" ljifos tflnddf ! hgfnfO{ 
;xefuL u/fOPsf] .

S	 a}+lsË, kmfO{gfG; P08 OG:of]]]/]G; O{lG:6Ro'6 ckm g]kfnn] ¿kGb]xLdf cfof]hgf u/]sf] "Customer Service and Sales Excellence" ljifos !=% 
lbg] tflnddf ! hgfnfO{ ;xefuL u/fOPsf] .
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S	 g]kfn O{lG:6Ro'6 ckm a}+lsË Dofg]hd]G6n] ¿kGb]xLdf cfof]hgf u/]sf] "Credit Risk and Bad Loan Management (Banking Fraud) for MFIs"  
ljifos ! lbg] tflnddf @ hgfnfO{ ;xefuL u/fOPsf] .

S	 g]kfn a}+lsË O{lG:6Ro'6n] g]kfnu~hdf cfof]hgf u/]sf] "Credit Risk Management at Branch Level" ljifos !=% lbg] tflnddf ! hgfnfO{ 
;xefuL u/fOPsf] .

h_ dh{/ tyf k|flKt M ;+:yfut p2]Zo k"/f ug{ Joj;fo tyf kx'Frsf] lj:tf/, ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfsf] Ifdtf clej[l4 u/L lbuf] Jofj;flos jftfj/0f 
lgdf{0f ug{ ljleGg lsl;dsf tflnd uf]i7L ;]ldgf/, lgodgsf/L lgsfo;+u ;'dw'/ ;DaGw, sd{rf/Lx¿sf] Ifdtf clej[l4 cfbL sfo{ dfkm{t yf]s 
n3'shf{ k|bfos cu|0fL ;+:yfsf ¿kdf :yflkt x'g] nIo lnO{Psf] 5 . tyflk, dh{/÷k|flKt dfkm{t klg ;+:yfut p2]Zo k'/f x'g'sf ;fy} lbuf]kgfsf 
nflu dh{/÷k|flKt ckl/xfo{ /x]sf]n] z]o/wgLx¿sf] clwstd lxtnfO{ s]Gb|df /fvL dh{/ k|ls|of cuf8L a9fpg ;+rfns ;ldlt k|ltj4 /x]sf] 5 .

o; ljQLo ;+:Yffsf] b;f¹ ;fwf/0f ;efn] cGo ;dfg ju{sf ;+:yfx¿;Fu ufEg]–ufleg] jf k|flKtsf] cWoog u/L cfjZostf adf]lhd k|lqmof cufl8 
a9fpg ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L k|bfg u/] adf]lhd rf/ ;b:oLo dh{/ ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 . ut cf=j=df dh{/ ;ldltsf] $ j6f a}7s 
a;]sf] lyof] . ;ldltdf cGo ;+:yfx¿;+u dh{/÷k|flKtsf] ;Defjgfsf af/]df cWoog÷5nkmn x'g] u/]sf] 5 . 

em_ u'gf;f] ;'g'jfO{ M o; ljQLo ;+:Yffn] g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] …3Ú ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx¿nfO{ hf/L u/]sf] Plss[t lgb]{zgsf] lgb]{zg g+= !( sf] 
a'Fbf g+= & cg';f/ ;]jfu|fxLaf6 k|fKt u'gf;f] ;'g'jfO{sf lglDt u'gf;f] ;'Gg] clwsf/L tf]sL lghsf] gfd, df]afOn gDa/ / Od]n 7]ufgf j]a;fO6df k|sflzt 
u/]sf] 5 . xfn;Dd ;]jfu|fxLaf6 s'g} klg u'gf;f] k|fKt gePsf] hfgsf/L u/fOG5 .

`_ ;"rgfsf] xs M ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;"rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL P]g @)^$ sf] bkmf %-#_ tyf ;"rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL lgodfjnL @)^% sf] lgod # 
adf]lhdsf ljj/0fx¿ lgoldt ¿kdf cfˆgf] j]a;fO6 dfkm{t k|sflzt ug'{sf ;fy}, ;"rgf clwsf/L tf]sL lghsf] gfd, df]afOn gDa/ / Od]n 7]ufgf 
j]a;fO6df k|sflzt u/]sf] 5 .

;~rfns ;ldlt
cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8
@)*!÷)(÷@(



12 P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

lwtf]kq btf{ tyf lgisfzg lgodfjnL @)&# sf] lgod @^ sf] pklgod @ ;Fu ;DalGwt -cg';"rL–!%_
jflif{s ljj/0fdf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] pb\3f]if

!= ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfåf/f k|:t't jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 .

@= n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfåf/f k|:t't jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 .

#= n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf] ljQLo ljj/0f 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfåf/f k|:t't jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;+nUg ul/Psf] 5 .

$= sfg'gL sf/afxL ;DaGwL ljj/0f 

-s_ 	 o; cjlwdf ljQLo ;+:yfn] shf{ c;'nL k|lqmof;Fu ;DalGwt afx]s s;} lj¿4 sfg'gL sf/afxL gu/]sf] To;} u/L ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lj¿4 shf{ 
c;'nL k|lqmof;Fu ;DalGwt jfx]s cGo d'2f g/x]sf] .

-v_	 o; cjlwdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnsn] jf ;+:yfks jf ;~rfnssf] lj¿4df k|rlnt lgodsf] cj1f jf kmf}hbf/L ck/fw 
u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ eP÷u/]sf] hfgsf/Ldf gcfPsf] .

-u_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;+:yfks jf ;~rfns lj¿4 cfly{s ck/fw u/]sf] ;DaGwdf s'g} d'2f bfo/ ePsf] hfgsf/Ldf gcfPsf] .

%= ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ sf/f]af/ tyf k|ultsf] ljZn]if0f 

-s_ 	 lwtf]kq ahf/df ePsf] ;ª\ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] sf/f]af/ ;DaGwdf Joj:yfkgsf] wf/0ffM lwtf]kq ahf/sf] lgodfg';f/ ;ª\ul7t ;+:yfsf] 
z]o/ d"No v'nf ahf/n] lgwf{/0f ug]{ ub{5 . k"FhL ahf/df o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] dfu tyf d"No ;Gtf]ifhgs /x]sf] 5 .

-v_ 	 ut jif{sf] k|To]s q}dfl;s cjlwdf ;ª\ul7t ;+:yfsf] z]o/sf] clwstd, Go"gtd / clGtd d"Nosf ;fy} s'n sf/f]af/ z]o/ ;+Vof / sf/f]af/ 
lbg lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .

ljj/0f @)*) c;f]h d;fGt  @)*) k'; d;fGt @)*) r}t d;fGt @)*! c;f/ d;fGt

clwstd d"No ^%% ^)# ^#(=*) *!#=%)

Go"gtd d"No %#) $*@ %)# %()

clGtd d"No %%& %&% ^)#=!) &(@

s'n sf/f]af/ z]o/ lsQf #,!@,*@@ @,&%,%!% %,%*,^@% @#,$),*@@

sf/f]af/ ;+Vof #,((@ @,*#^ ^,##* !&,!$)

sf/f]af/ lbg ^^ %) %* ^!
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^= ;d:of, r'gf}tL / /0fgLlt 

-s_ ;d:of M 

dfly sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !)( -$_ df sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx¿ zLif{sdf lj:t[t ¿kdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .

-v_ r'gf}tL M

S	 lg/Gt/sf] cfly{s dGbL, 
S	 shf{sf] Go"g dfu
S	 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf lj¿4sf cfGbf]ng,
S	 ;3g Jofj;flos k|lt:kwf{,
S	 k|efjsf/L lgodgsf] cefjsf sf/0f ;xsf/L ;+:yfx¿df a9\b} uO/x]sf] cljZjf; / Joj:yfksLo r'gf}tL, 
S	 n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿df bIf hgzlQmsf] cefj,
S	 n3'ljQ÷;xsf/Ldf C0fLx¿sf] klxrfg tyf shf{ ljZn]if0fdf plrt Wofg gk'u]sf sf/0f a9\bf] lgis[o shf{,

-u_ /0fgLlt M 

S	 :yfgLo ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] klxrfg, cg'udg / ;jnLs/0f,
S	 dh{/÷k|flKt h:tf ;Defjgfsf] vf]hL,
S	 cfjZos ljQLo ;|f]tsf] k|aGw u/L Joj;fo lj:tf/ ug]{,
S	 ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] lgoldt lg/LIf0f tyf cg'udg, 
S	 ;fem]bf/ ;+:yfx¿sf] ;+:yfut Ifdtf clej[l4sf] nflu cfjZos tflnd tyf k/fdz{ ;]jf, 
S	 cfjZostf cg';f/ cGo lgsfox¿;Fu ;xsfo{ .

&= ;+:yfut ;'zf;g 

ljQLo ;+:yfn] k|rlnt P]g, sfg'g tyf gLlt lgod nufot lgofdsLo lgsfox¿af6 k|fKt lgb]{zgsf] kfngf ub}{ ljQLo ;]jf k|bfg ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 . 
ljQLo ;+:yfn] k|efjsf/L cfGtl/s lgoGq0f ;+oGq :yfkgf ug'{sf ;fy} b}lgs k|zf;lgs sfo{nfO{ lgod;ª\ut / k|efjsf/L agfpgsf] nflu ljleGg 
cfGtl/s gLlt÷lgb]{lzsfx¿ th'{df u/L nfu' ub}{ cfPsf] 5 / To:tf gLlt÷lgb]{lzsfx¿ cfjZostf cg';f/ kl/dfh{g÷cBfjlws ;d]t ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 
5 . o;sf cnfjf ljQLo ;+:yfdf /x]sf ljleGg ;ldlt tyf pk;ldltsf ;fy} cfGtl/s tyf afXo n]vfk/LIfs tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 k|fKt 
lgb]{zg tyf ;'emfjx¿sf] kfngf ub}{ ;+:yfut ;'zf;gnfO{ yk k|efjsf/L ¿kdf sfof{Gjog ug{ ljQLo ;+:yf k|ltj4 /x]sf] 5 .

*= ljj/0fkqdf k|If]k0f ul/Psf / n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf] ljj/0fdf @) k|ltzt jf ;f]eGbf a9Ln] km/s kg{ uPsf] ;DaGwL ljj/0f M gePsf] . 

(= ;To tYo ;DaGwdf k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] pb\3f]if0f M

cfhsf ldlt;Dd o; k|ltj]bgdf pNn]lvt hfgsf/L tyf ljj/0fx¿sf] z'4tf ;DaGwdf d}n] JolQmut ¿kdf pQ/bfloTj lnG5' . ;fy}, d of] pb\3f]if 
ub{5' ls d}n] hfg] a'em];Dd o; k|ltj]bgdf pNn]lvt ljj/0fx¿ ;To, tYo / k"0f{ 5g\ / nufgLstf{x¿nfO{ ;';"lrt x'g jf lg0f{o lng cfjZos s'g} 
ljj/0f, ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/Lx¿ n'sfOPsf] 5}g . 

wGojfb .

w|'j s'df/ kf}8]n
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t
@)*!÷)(÷@(
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;"rLs[t ;ª\ul7t ;+:yfx¿sf] ;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf, @)&$ sf] bkmf @) sf] pkbkmf $ 
adf]lhdsf] ljj/0f M

;"lrs[t ;+ul7t ;+:yfsf] gfd cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

7]ufgf Od]n / j]a;fO6 ;lxt a'6jn pk=d=g=kf=–!), ¿kGb]xL
info@rsdcmf.com, www.rsdcmf.com

kmf]g g+= )&!—$#*%!#, $!()!#

k|ltj]bg k]z ul/Psf] cf=j= @)*)÷*!

!= ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfsf] gfd tyf lgo'lQm ldlt M >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb bfxfn

	 S cWoIfsf] ¿kdf k'gM lgo'Qm ldlt M lj=;+= @)&(÷)(÷@( 

-v_ ;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf ;DaGwL ljj/0f -;+:yfks, ;j{;fwf/0f tyf cGo_ M c;f/ d;fGt @)*! sf] ljj/0f

qm=;+= ljj/0f lsQf k|ltzt

! ;+:yfks $*,!^,!()=$# %!=))

@ ;j{;fwf/0f  $^,@&,#@)=@@ $(=))

-u_ ;~rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

qm= 
;+=

;~rfnsx¿sf] gfd 7]ufgf
k|ltlglwTj 
ePsf] ;d'x

z]o/ ;+Vof lgo'Qm ePsf] ldlt
kb tyf

uf]klgotfsf] zky 
lnPsf] ldlt

;~rfns 
lgo'lQmsf] tl/sf 

-ljlw_

! >L u|fdL0f :jfjnDag ljsf; s]Gb| 
sf7df8f¹af6 k|ltlglw
>L /fh]Gb| k|;fb bfxfn
nlntk'/–@%, nlntk'/

;+:yfks !!,$^,$$@=!( @)&(÷)(÷@( @)&(÷)(÷@( lgjf{rg

@ >L Unf]an cfOPdO{ a}+s
lnld6]8af6 k|ltlglw
>L rGb|/fh zdf{
Gffufh{'g–)(, sf7df8f¹

;+:yfks (,^#,@#*=)( @)&(÷)(÷@( @)&(÷)(÷@( lgjf{rg

# >L lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofn
ltnf]Qdf –)@, ¿kGb]xL

;+:yfks @),%!@=#& @)&(÷)(÷@( @)&(÷)(÷@( lgjf{rg

$ >L bfdf]b/ hf]zL
;}gfd}gf –)@, ¿kGb]xL

;+:yfks !),@&!=^# @)&(÷)(÷@( @)&(÷)(÷@( lgjf{rg

% >L zflGt k|;fb pk|]tL
sf=d=g=kf=–!), sf7df8f¹

;j{;fwf/0f !,)@%=^! @)&&÷)(÷@$ @)&&÷)(÷@$ lgjf{rg

^ >L cd/ 8+uf]n dxh{g
nlntk'/–@), nlntk'/

;j{;fwf/0f !,@#@=!% @)&&÷)(÷@$ @)&&÷)(÷@$ lgjf{rg

& >L ;ljgf /fgf 
a'9flgns07, sf7df8f¹

:jtGq – @)*)÷)%÷!^ @)*)÷)^÷!) ;~rfns
;ldltaf6 lgo'Qm
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-3_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s

S ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;~rfng;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

qm=;+=
o; cf=j=df a;]sf] ;~rfns 

;ldltsf] a}7ssf] ldlt
pkl:yt ;+rfnssf] ;+Vof

a}7ssf] lg0f{odf leGg dt /fvL 

x:tfIf/ ug]{ ;+rfnssf] ;+Vof

ut cf=j=df a;]sf]

a}7s ldlt

! @)*)÷)$÷!! ^ – @)&(÷)$÷!#

@ @)*)÷)%÷!^ ^ – @)&(÷)%÷!(

# @)*)÷)^÷!) & – @)&(÷)^÷@%

$ @)*)÷)^÷!( & – @)&(÷)*÷)*

% @)*)÷)&÷!* & – @)&(÷)*÷!)

^ @)*)÷)*÷)# & – @)&(÷)(÷)&

& @)*)÷)*÷!$ & – @)&(÷)(÷@*

* @)*)÷)(÷@) & – @)&(÷)(÷@(

( @)*)÷!)÷)% & – @)&(÷!)÷@)

!) @)*)÷!@÷!) & – @)&(÷!@÷!*

!! @)*)÷!@÷@& & – @)*)÷)@÷)^

!@ @)*!÷)@÷!* & – @)*)÷)#÷!&

!# @)*!÷)#÷@! & – @)*)÷)#÷!*

!$ @)*!÷)#÷@@ & – –

S s'g} ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s cfjZos u0fk'/s ;+Vof gk'lu :ylut ePsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0fM  gePsf]

@= ;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwL tyf cGo ljj/0f M

;~rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwdf ;DalGwt ;+:yfsf] cfrf/ ;+lxtf eP÷gePsf] M ePsf]

Psf3/ kl/jf/sf] Ps eGbf a9L ;~rfns eP ;f] ;DaGwL ljj/0f M gePsf]

;~rfnsx¿sf] jflif{s ¿kdf l;sfO{ tyf k"gtf{huL sfo{qmd ;DaGwL ljjj/0f M 

qm=;+ ljifo ldlt
;xefuL 

;~rfnssf] ;+Vof
tflnd ;~rfng ePsf] :yfg

! "Directors' Refresher Course"
k'gtf{huL sfo{qmd

@)*! h]7 #@ 
tyf  
cfiff9 )! ut]

& hgf kfs{ len]h l/;f]6{, a'9flgns07 
sf7df8f¹ .
-g]zgn OlG:6Ro'6åf/f ;+rflnt_

k|To]s ;~rfnsn] cfkm" ;~rfnssf] kbdf lgo'Qm jf dgf]gog ePsf] kG„ lbgleq b]xfosf s'/fsf] lnlvt hfgsf/L 
u/fPsf]÷gu/fPsf] / gu/fPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0fM

u/fPsf]

S ;+:yf;Fu lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] s'g} lsl;dsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf ug{ nfu]sf] eP ;f] sf] 
ljj/0f, 

u/fPsf]

S lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;f] ;+:yfsf] d'Vo jf ;xfos sDkgLdf lnPsf] z]o/ 
jf l8j]Gr/sf] ljj/0f, 

gePsf]

S lgh cGo s'g} ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf ;~rfns /x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f, gePsf]

S lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:o ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Lsf] x}l;otdf sfd ul//xsf] eP ;f]sf] 
ljj/0f . 

gePsf]

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf ;~rfns jf j}slNks ;~rfns pkl:yt eP÷gePsf]
-gePsf] cj:yfdf a}7ssf] ldlt ;lxt sf/0f v'nfpg]_M

ePsf]
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;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt ;~rfnsx¿, 5nkmn ePsf] ljifo / tT;DaGwdf ePsf] lg0f{osf] ljj/0f 
-dfOGo"6_sf] 5'§} clen]v /fv]÷g/fv]sf]M 

/fv]sf]

;~rfns ;ldltsf] nuftf/ b'O{k6s a;]sf] a}7ssf] clwstd cGt/ -lbgdf_M %@ lbg

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf lgwf{/0f ;DaGwdf a;]sf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] kl5Nnf] ldltM @)*)÷)*÷!%

;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lt a}7s eQf M cWoIfsf] ¿= ^,%)).–  
;~rfnssf] ¿= 
^,))).–

cf=j= sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s'n a}7s vr{ M ¿=@*,)!,!&(.–

;~rfnsn] p:t} k|s[ltsf] p2]Zo ePsf] ;"lrs[t ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns, tnaL kbflwsf/L, sfo{sf/L k|d'v jf sd{rf/L 
eO{ sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M
S >L rGb|/fh zdf{, Unf]an cfOPdO{ a}+s ln=, k|d'v ljQ clws[t

ePsf]

;+rfnsx¿nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox¿af6 s'g} sf/afxL ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f gePsf]

#= ;+:yfsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0fM hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ePsf] .

-v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ;DaGwL hfgsf/L M 

-c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox¿sf] gfd tyf kb_ M

;+of]hs	 >L rGb|/fh zdf{
;b:o 	 >L lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofn
;b:o 	 >L ;ljgf /fgf
;b:o 	 >L /fd k|;fb kGyL
;b:o ;lrj	 >L cgGt /fh kGt

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof M cf=j= @)*)÷*! df a}7s ;+Vof %

-O_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M

S	 ;+:yfdf x'g;Sg] ;Defljt hf]lvdx¿ h:t}M t/ntf ;DaGwL hf]lvd, Aofhb/ ;DjGwL hf]lvd, shf{ tyf nufgL ;DaGwL hf]lvd, clws]Gb|Lt 
hf]lvd, Joj;fo ;+rfng ;DaGwL hf]lvdsf] klxrfg u/L ;f]sf] lg/fs/0fsf] nflu Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg / ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;'emfj lbg] .

S	 ljBdfg hf]lvd tyf Joj:yfkg k|0ffnLsf] kof{Kttf / pko'Qmtfsf] ;DaGwdf ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpg] / pko'Qm k|0ffnL ljsf;sf] 
nflu ;'emfj lbg] .

S	 ;DklQ bfloTj ;ldltdf 5nkmn ePsf ljifox¿nfO{ ;dLIff u/L ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos /fo ;'emfj k]z ug{] .

S	 hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf nflu g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L ul/Psf lgb]{zg÷dfu{lgb]{zg, ;+:yfn] lgwf{/0f u/]sf cfGtl/s ;Ldf, pko'Qm k|rng cg'¿k 
cfjZos gLlt Pj+ ;+/rgf ljsf; ug{sf] nflu ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;'emfj lbg] .

-u_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf] M ePsf]

-3_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M  u7g ePsf] .
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-ª_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0fM 

-c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox¿sf] gfd tyf kb_ M 

S ;~rfns ;ldlt M

cWoIf           	 M	>L /fh]Gb| k|;fb bfxfn
;~rfns        	 M	>L rGb|/fh zdf{			 
;~rfns        	 M	>L lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofn
;~rfns        	 M	>L bfdf]b/ hf]zL
;~rfns        	 M	>L cd/ 8+uf]n dxh{g
;~rfns        	 M >L zflGt k|;fb pk|]tL
:jtGq ;~rfns 	 M >L ;ljgf /fgf

S hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt M

;+of]hs           	 M >L rGb|/fh zdf{
;b:o        	 M >L lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofn
;b:o	 M >L ;ljgf /fgf			 
;b:o	 M >L /fd k|;fb kGyL
;b:o ;lrj 	 M >L cgGt /fh kGt

S n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt M

;+of]hs           	 M >L lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofn
;b:o	 M >L cd/ 8+uf]n dxh{g			 
;b:o ;lrj	 M >L z+s/ e§/fO{

S ;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt M

;+of]hs           	 M >L zflGt k|;fb pk|]tL
;b:o            	 M >L rGb|/fh zdf{
;b:o	 M >L w|'j s'df/ kf}8]n			 
;b:o	 M >L kf/; dl0f 1jfnL
;b:o ;lrj	 M >L ldng clwsf/L

S sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf  ;ldlt M

;+of]hs           	 M >L bfdf]b/ hf]zL
;b:o	 M >L zflGt k|;fb pk|]tL
;b:o	 M >L ;ljgf /fgf
;b:o	 M >L w|'j s'df/ kf}8]n
;b:o ;lrj	 M >L ldng clwsf/L

-cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof M 

;ldlt a}7s ;+Vof

;~rfns ;ldlt !$

hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt %

n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt ^

sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt #

;DklQ z'4Ls/0f cg'udg ;ldlt %
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-O_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M ;ldltsf] d'Vo sfo{ g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb{]zg, sDkgL P]g tyf a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL P]g / cGo 
k|rlnt P]g, lgodsf] kfngf eP÷gePsf], ;+:yf ;+rfng ug{ cfjZos gLlt lgdf{0f tyf sfof{Gjog u/L cfGtl/s lgoGq0f / ;+:yfut ;'zf;g sfod 
/fVg' /x]sf] 5 . o; afx]s cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] k'g/fjnf]sg ug'{sf ;fy} ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;'emfj k|bfg ug{] sfo{ klg ub{5 . 

-r_ cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL eP÷gePsf] M ePsf]

$= ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfx ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_ ;+:yfn] ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfxsf] ljj/0f M

ljifo dfWod ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ldlt

b;f¹ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf cGgk"0f{ /fli6«o b}lgs @)*)÷)&÷@)

ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf – –

jflif{s k|ltj]bg ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO{6 @)*)÷)&÷@)

q}dfl;s k|ltj]bg

cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs
cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs
cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs
cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs

@)*)÷)&÷)# k|yd
@)*)÷!)÷)$ bf];|f]
@)*!÷)!÷)# t];|f]
@)*!÷)$÷)# rf}yf]

lwtf]kqsf] d"Nodf k|efj kfg]{ d"No ;+j]bgzLn ;"rgf – –

cGo– ;"rgfsf] xs ;DaGwL ;+:yfsf] j]a;fO{6 k|To]s qodf; ;dfKt eP kl5sf] csf]{ dlxgf .

-v_ ;'rgf ;fj{hlgs gu/]sf] jf cGo sf/0fn] lwtf]kq af]8{ tyf cGo lgsfoaf6 sf/afxLdf k/]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwL hfgsf/L M gk/]sf]

-u_ kl5Nnf] jflif{s tyf ljz]if ;fwf/0f;ef ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M @)*)÷)*÷!%

%= ;+:yfut ;+/rgf / sd{rf/L ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

-s_ 	sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;+/rgf, kbk"lt{, j[lQljsf;, tflnd, tna, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf, xflh/ / ljbf, cfrf/;+lxtf nufotsf s'/fx¿ ;d]l6Psf] 
sd{rf/L ;]jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL Joj:yf eP÷gePsf]M  ePsf]

-v_ ;+fu7lgs ;+/rgf ;+nUg ug]{ M o;} ;fy ;+nUg ul/Psf] .

-u_ pRr Joj:yfkg txsf sd{rf/Lx¿sf] gfd, z}lIfs of]Uotf tyf cg'ej;DaGwL ljj/0f M

qm=;+= sd{rf/Lsf] gfd tx of]Uotf cg'ej

! >L w|'j s'df/ kf}8]n k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t Pd=la=P= @% jif{

@ >L /fd k|;fb kGyL gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t la=sd= @# jif{

# >L cgGt /fh kGt k|aGws Pd=P= !% jif{

$ >L kf/; dl0f 1jfnL ;xfos k|aGws Pd=la=P;= !$ jif{

% >L ldng clwsf/L ;xfos k|aGws Pd=la=P;= !$ jif{
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-3_ sd{rf/L ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f

;+/rgf cg';f/ sd{rf/L kbk'lt{ ug]{ u/]÷gu/]sf] M u/]sf]

gofF sd{rf/Lx¿sf] kbk'lt{ ubf{ ckgfPsf] k|s[of M v'nf lj1fkg dfkm{t

Joj:yfkg :t/sf sd{rf/Lsf] ;+VofM %

s'n sd{rf/Lsf] ;+VofM !*

sd{rf/Lx¿sf] ;S;];g Knfg eP÷gePsf] M ePsf]

cf=j= @)*)÷*! df sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ lbOPsf] tflnd ;+Vof tyf ;lDdlnt sd{rf/Lsf] 
;+VofM

tflnd ;+Vof–)(
;Ddlnt sd{rf/Lsf] ;+Vof –!$

cf= j= @)*)÷*! sf] sd{rf/L tflnd vr{ ¿ M tflnd afkt hDdf ¿= ^,%*,*^@.– vr{ ul/Psf] .

s'n vr{df sd{rf/L vr{sf] k|ltzt M @=@) k|ltzt

s'n sd{rf/L vr{df sd{rf/L tflnd vr{sf] k|ltzt M #=$@ k|ltzt

-ª_ kl/kfng clws[tsf] ljj/0f M

kl/kfng clws[t lgo'Qm u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] M u/]sf] .

u/]sf] eP ljj/0f M
gfd M ldng clwsf/L
kb M ;xfos k|aGws
z}lIfs of]Uotf M :gftsf]Q/

;+:yfn] kfngf ug'{kg{] P]g, lgodfjnL tyf lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ;do ;dodf hf/L lgb{]zg tyf lgb{]lzsf, 
lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ePsf] lg/LIf0f tyf ;'kl/j]If0f ubf{ lbO{Psf] lgb{]zg kfngf eP jf gePsf] k|ltj]bg 
;ldltaf6 :jLs[t u/fO{ n]vfk/LIfsaf6 :jLs[t ug{] u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] . 

u/]sf] .

n]vfk/LIfsaf6 k|dfl0ft k|ltj]bgsf] ;f/f+z jflif{s k|ltj]bgdf ;dfj]z ug{] u/]sf] jf gu/]sf] . u/]sf] .

	
^= ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f 

-s_ n]vf ;DaGwL ljj/0f

;+:yfsf] kl5Nnf] cf= j= sf] ljQLo ljj/0f NFRS cg';f/  tof/ u/]÷ gu/]sf], gu/]sf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M u/]sf] .

;~rfns ;ldltaf6 kl5Nnf] jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldltM @)*!÷)^÷!(

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg u/]sf] ldlt M @)*)÷)&÷)# k|yd
@)*)÷!)÷)$ bf];|f]
@)*!÷)!÷)# t];|f]
@)*!÷)$÷)# rf}yf]

clGtd n]vfk/LIf0f ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M @)*!÷)^÷!*

;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldlt M @)*)÷)*÷!% -bzf}+_

;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 
-c_ cfGtl/s ¿kdf n]vfk/LIf0f ug]{ ul/Psf] afXo lj1 lgo'Qm ug]{ ul/Psf] 
-cf_ afXo lj1 lgo'Qm ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M
-O_ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f slt cjlwsf] ug]{ ul/Psf]
     -q}dfl;s, rf}dfl;s jf cw{jflif{s_ 

Pramod Panthi & Associates 
nfO{ afXo lj1sf] ¿kdf lgo'Qm u/L 
x/]s q}dfl;s cjlwsf] cfGtl/s 
n]vfk/LIf0f ug]{ ul/Psf]  5 .
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-v_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M

;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox¿sf] gfd, kb tyf of]Uotf M ;+of]hs– >L lji0f' k|;fb kf}8\ofn -;~rfns _ 
;b:o– >L cd/ 8+uf]n dxh{g -;~rfns _
;b:o  ;lrj– >L z+s/ e§/fO{ -hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu _

a}7s a;]sf] ldlt tyf pkl:yt ;b:o ;+Vof M cf=j= @)*)÷*! df  ^ j6f j}7s lgDg cg';f/ a;]sf] 5 .
@)*)÷)%÷!%
@)*)÷)^÷!*
@)*)÷)&÷@$
@)*)÷!)÷!#
@)*!÷)!÷)&
@)*!÷)#÷@)
pkl:yt # hgf .

k|lta}7s eQf  M ¿=^))).– -;~rfnsnfO{ dfq _

n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] cfˆgf] sfd sf/afxLsf] k|ltj]bg ;+rfns ;ldltdf k]z 
u/]sf] ldlt M 

@)*!÷)^÷!(

&= cGo ljj/0f M

;+:yfn] ;~rfns tyf lghsf] Psf3/sf kl/jf/sf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] JolQm, a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 C0f 
jf ;fk6L jf cGo s'g} ¿kdf /sd lnP÷glnPsf] 

glnPsf]

k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;~rfns, z]o/wgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxsf/, k/fdz{bftfsf] x}l;otdf kfpg] 
;'ljwf jf nfe afx]s ;"rLs[t ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] s'g} JolQm, kmd{, sDkgL, sd{rf/L, 
;Nnfxsf/ jf k/fdz{bftfn] ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;DklQ s'g} lsl;dn] ef]urng u/]÷gu/]sf] 

gu/]sf]

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{ tf]s]sf zt{x¿sf] kfngf eP÷gePsf] ePsf]

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg, lg/LIf0f jf ;'kl/j]If0f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{ lbOPsf] lgb]{zg kfngf 
eP÷gePsf] 

ePsf]

;+:yf jf ;+rfns lj¿4 cbfntdf s'g} d'2f rln/x]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f grn]sf]

vl/b ljlgodfjnL jf sfo{ljlw agfO{ nfu' ePsf] jf gePsf] cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnLsf] 
clwgdf /xL  sfo{ e}/x]sf] .

;~rfnssf] kbdf lgo'Qm x'g' cl3 kb tyf uf]kgLotfsf] zky lnPsf] jf glnPsf] zky lnPsf] .

kl/kfngf clws[tsf] gfd M ldng clwsf/L
kb M ;xfos k|aGws
z}lIfs of]UotfM :gftsf]Q/
k|ltj]bg tof/ u/]sf] ldlt M @)*!÷)^÷@)
;+:yfsf] 5fk M 

k|ltj]bg ;+rfns ;ldltaf6 :jLs[t ldlt M@)*!÷)*÷)!
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RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position

As on 31st Ashadh 2081

...............................

Rajendra Prasad Dahal
Chairman

...............................

Amar Dangol Maharjan
Director

Date: 17th October, 2024
Place: Kathmandu

...............................

CA Chandra Raj Sharma
Director

...............................

Shanti Prasad Upreti
Director

...............................

Bishnu Prasad Poudyal
Director

...............................

Sabina Rana
Independent Director

...............................

Damodar Joshi
Director

...............................

Dhruba Kumar Paudel
Chief Executive OfÏcer

...............................

Yuddha Raj Oli, FCA
Partner, PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants

...............................

Milan Adhikari
Finance Head

Particulars Note
As at

31st Ashad 2081

As at

31st Ashad 2080
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 239,348,980 138,220,414
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 55,055,277 39,926,029
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - -
Loans and advances to MFI's & Cooperatives 4.6 6,306,102,101 6,726,737,852
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 8,556,708 7,634,774
Investment securities 4.8 2,000,000 2,000,000
Current tax assets 4.9 - 12,190,318
Investment property 4.10 - -
Property and Equipment 4.11 4,415,150 5,267,347
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 144,640 196,620
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 2,172,013 802,530
Other assets 4.14 16,854,943 7,115,932
Total Assets 6,634,649,812 6,940,091,816

Particulars Note
As at

31st Ashad 2081

As at

31st Ashad 2080
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 -   -   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 -   -   
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 -   -   
Deposits from customers 4.18 -   -   
Borrowing 4.19 5,359,331,019 5,826,268,373 
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 11,869,002 -   
Provisions 4.20 -   -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13 -   -   
Other liabilities 4.21 57,239,664 43,879,576 
Debt securities issued 4.22 -   -   
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 -   -   
Total liabilities 5,428,439,685 5,870,147,949 
Equity
Share Capital 4.24 944,351,065 869,568,200 
Share Premium -                               -   
Retained Earnings 97,328,893 79,304,569 
Reserves 4.25 164,530,169 121,071,097 
Total Equity 1,206,210,127 1,069,943,866 
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,634,649,812 6,940,091,816 
Contingent Liabilities and commitment 4.26 55,000,000 17,500,000 
Net Assets Value per Share  127.73 123.04 

 �e accompanying notes are integral part of these �nancial statements.                           
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RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Pro�t or Loss
For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Figures in NPR

Particulars Note
As at 31st

Ashad 2081

As at 31st

Ashad 2080

Interest Income 4.27 872,154,471 948,784,523

Interest Expense 4.28 582,310,142 660,084,657

Net interest Income 289,844,329 288,699,866

Fees and commission Income 4.29 18,182,013 37,654,167

Fees and commission Expense 4.30 2,802,500 12,491,366

Net Fee and Commission Income 15,379,513 25,162,800

Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 305,223,841 313,862,667

Net trading income 4.31 - -

Other operating income 4.32 45,000 29,967

Total Operating Income 305,268,841 313,892,634

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 (6,566,204) 107,347,057

Net Operating Income 311,835,045 206,545,577

Operating Expense

Personnel Expense 4.34 46,535,882 36,120,328

Other Operating Expense 4.35 10,671,437 12,979,759

Depreciation and Amortization 4.36 3,171,476 2,414,982

Operating Pro�t 251,456,251 155,030,508

Non Operating Income 4.37 669,603 180,873

Non Operating Expense 4.38 - -

Pro�t before Income Tax 252,125,854 155,211,382

Income Tax Expense 4.39

       Current Tax 76,027,376 47,016,966

       Previous Year Tax 35,631,417 -

       Deferred Tax (1,275,572) 721,103

Pro�t for the Year 141,742,634 107,473,312

Pro�t attributable to:

      Equity holders of the Financial Institution 141,742,634 107,473,312

Pro�t for the Year 141,742,634 107,473,312

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

       Basic EPS 15.01 12.36

       Diluted EPS 15.01 12.36

�e accompanying notes are integral part of these �nancial statements.                             

...............................

Rajendra Prasad Dahal
Chairman

...............................

Amar Dangol Maharjan
Director

Date: 17th October, 2024
Place: Kathmandu

...............................

CA Chandra Raj Sharma
Director

...............................

Shanti Prasad Upreti
Director

...............................

Bishnu Prasad Poudyal
Director

...............................

Sabina Rana
Independent Director

...............................

Damodar Joshi
Director

...............................

Dhruba Kumar Paudel
Chief Executive OfÏcer

...............................

Yuddha Raj Oli, FCA
Partner, PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants

...............................

Milan Adhikari
Finance Head
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RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Figures in NPR

Particulars Note
As at 31st

Ashad 2081
As at 31st

Ashad 2080

Pro�t for the year  141,742,634 107,473,312

Other Comprehensive Income, net of income tax  - -

a. Items that will not be reclassi�ed to Pro�t or Loss   - -- 

Gains / (Losses) from investment in equity instruments 
measured at fair value

  -  -

Gains / (Losses) on revaluation   -  -

Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on de�ned bene�t plans  (313,036) 720,592

Income tax relating to above items  93,911 (216,178)

Net other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassi�ed to 
Pro�t or Loss

 (219,125) 504,414

b. Items that are or may be reclassi�ed to Pro�t or Loss - -

Gains (Losses) on cash �ow hedge - -

Exchange gains (Losses) arising from translating �nancial assets of 
foreign operation

- -

Income tax relating to above items - -

Reclassify to Pro�t or Loss - -

Net other Comprehensive Income that are or may be reclassi�ed 
to Pro�t or Loss

 -   -   

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax  (219,125) 504,414

Total Comprehensive income for the year  141,523,508 107,977,727

Total Comprehensive income for the period  141,523,508 107,977,727

�e accompanying notes are integral part of these �nancial statements.                          

...............................

Rajendra Prasad Dahal
Chairman

...............................

Amar Dangol Maharjan
Director

Date: 17th October, 2024
Place: Kathmandu

...............................

CA Chandra Raj Sharma
Director

...............................

Shanti Prasad Upreti
Director

...............................

Bishnu Prasad Poudyal
Director

...............................

Sabina Rana
Independent Director

...............................

Damodar Joshi
Director

...............................

Dhruba Kumar Paudel
Chief Executive OfÏcer

...............................

Yuddha Raj Oli, FCA
Partner, PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants

...............................

Milan Adhikari
Finance Head



30 P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Distributable Pro�t or Loss

For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

As per NRB Regulation

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Net Pro�t/(loss) as per Statement of Pro�t or Loss 141,742,634 107,473,312

Appropriation

a. General Reserve (28,348,527) (21,494,662)

b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund

c. Capital redemption reserve

d. Corporate social responsibility fund (1,417,426) (1,074,733)

e. Employees' training fund - -

f. Client Protection Fund (1,417,426) (1,074,733)

g. Other 397,080 805,228

- Sta� Training Fund Routed through PL - 177,401

- CSR Expenses Routed through PL 397,080 726,457

- Interest income on Client Protection fund routed through PL (98,630)

Adjusted Pro�t/(loss) before regulatory adjustment 110,956,334 84,634,412

Regulatory Adjustments:

a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received(+) (12,937,633) (7,613,935)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal(+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment(-)/reversal(+)

d. Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/reversal(+)

e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized(-)/reveral(+) (1,275,572) 937,281

f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+) -

g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+) -

h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+) - -

i. other - -

Net pro�t for the year end  2081 Asar end  available for distribution 96,743,129 77,957,758

Opening Retained Earnings as on Shrawan 1, 2080 79,304,569 89,913,942

Adjustment(+/-) - -

Distribution: (78,718,805) (88,567,131)

Bonus Share issued (74,782,865) (64,412,459)

Cash Dividend Paid (3,935,940) (24,154,672)

Total Distributable pro�t or (loss) as on year end 97,328,893 79,304,569

Annualized Distributable Pro�t/(loss) per Share 10.31 9.12

�e accompanying notes are integral part of these �nancial statements.                             		

...............................

Rajendra Prasad Dahal
Chairman

...............................

Amar Dangol Maharjan
Director

Date: 17th October, 2024
Place: Kathmandu

...............................

CA Chandra Raj Sharma
Director

...............................

Shanti Prasad Upreti
Director

...............................

Bishnu Prasad Poudyal
Director

...............................

Sabina Rana
Independent Director

...............................

Damodar Joshi
Director

...............................

Dhruba Kumar Paudel
Chief Executive OfÏcer

...............................

Yuddha Raj Oli, FCA
Partner, PYC & Associates
Chartered Accountants

...............................

Milan Adhikari
Finance Head
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RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2081

Particulars
As at 31st

Ashad 2081

As at 31st

Ashad 2080

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 851,618,545 936,601,663
Fees and other income received 18,182,013 37,835,040
Dividend received - -
Receipts from other operating activities 669,603 -
Interest paid (586,222,761) (653,955,976)
Commission and fees paid (2,802,500) (12,491,366)
Cash payment to employees (35,198,757) (34,514,061)
Other expense paid (12,919,079) (12,728,229)

Operating cash �ows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 233,327,065 260,747,072
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets 424,762,579 (1,439,301,640)
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions (15,129,248) -
Other trading assets - -
Loans and advances to bank and �nancial institutions 447,737,887 (1,419,891,462)
Loans and advances to customers (4,581,366) 810,000
Other assets (3,264,694) (20,220,178)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities (464,026,581) 1,181,812,526
Due to bank and �nancial institutions - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposit from customers - -
Borrowings (466,937,354) 1,179,095,431
Other liabilities 2,910,773 2,717,096
Net cash �ow from operating activities before tax paid 194,063,062 3,257,958
Income taxes paid (87,599,472) (43,000,000)
Net cash �ow from operating activities 106,463,590 (39,742,042)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities - -
Receipts from sale of investment securities - -
Purchase of property and equipment (1,478,572) (638,425)
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment 45,000 52,500
Purchase of intangible assets - -
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets - -
Purchase of investment properties - -
Receipt from the sale of investment properties - -
Interest received - -
Dividend received - -
Net cash used in investing activities (1,433,572) (585,925)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities - -
Repayment of debt securities - -
Reciepts from issue of subordinated liabilities - -
Repayment of subordinated liability - -
Receipts from issue of shares - -
Dividends paid (3,901,451) (24,154,672)
Interest paid - -
Other recepit/payment - -
Net cash from �nancing activities (3,901,451) (24,154,672)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 101,128,567 (64,482,639)
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2080 138,220,414 202,703,053
E�ect of exchange rate �uctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the Asar end, 2081 239,348,980 138,220,414

�e accompanying notes are integral part of these �nancial statements.                            			    

...............................

Rajendra Prasad Dahal
Chairman

...............................

Amar Dangol Maharjan
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...............................
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...............................

Sabina Rana
Independent Director
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Damodar Joshi
Director
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Chartered Accountants

...............................

Milan Adhikari
Finance Head



32 P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

P
ar

ti
cu

la
rs

S
h

ar
e 

C
ap

it
al

S
h

ar
e

p
re

m
iu

m

G
en

er
al

 r
es

er
ve

R
eg

u
la

to
ry

 

R
es

er
ve

R
et

ai
n

ed
 

ea
rn

in
g

O
th

er
 

R
es

er
ve

s

C
P

F
C

S
R

 

R
es

er
ve

A
ct

u
ar

y 

R
es

er
ve

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

T
ra

in
in

g
 F

u
n

d

D
ef

er
re

d
 T

ax
 

R
es

er
ve

T
o

ta
l 

E
q

u
it

y

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

1
 S

h
ra

w
an

 2
0

7
9

8
0

5
,1

5
5

,7
4

1
-

8
3

,8
1

9
,7

1
2

2
,1

6
2

,3
8

6
8

9
,9

1
3

,9
4

2
6

,0
9

4
,5

8
4

2
,4

7
8

,8
8

8
1

,7
4

3
,8

0
9

(4
5

,3
2

7
)

1
7

7
,4

0
1

1
,7

3
9

,8
1

2
9

8
7

,1
4

6
,3

6
7

A
d

ju
st

m
en

t/
R

es
ta

te
m

en
t

-
-

-

A
d

ju
st

ed
/R

es
ta

te
d

 b
al

an
ce

 a
t 

S
h

ra
w

an
 1

, 2
0

7
9

-
-

-

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 i

n
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
-

-

P
ro

�
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
-

1
0

7
,4

7
3

,3
1

2
(9

3
7

,2
8

1
)

(9
3

7
,2

8
1

)
1

0
6

,5
3

6
,0

3
1

O
th

er
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 i
n

co
m

e,
 n

et
 o

f 
ta

x
-

-

G
ai

n
s/

(l
os

es
) 

fr
om

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 e

qu
it

y 
in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 fa

ir
 v

al
ue

-
-

-

G
ai

n
s/

(l
o

se
s)

 o
n

 r
ev

al
u

at
io

n
-

-
-

A
ct

u
ar

ia
l g

ai
n

s/
(l

o
ss

es
) 

o
n

 d
e�

n
ed

 b
en

e�
t 

p
la

n
s

-
50

4,
41

4
50

4,
41

4
50

4,
41

4

G
ai

n
s/

(l
o

ss
es

) 
o

n
 c

as
h

 �
o

w
 h

ed
ge

-
-

-

Ex
ch

an
ge

 g
ai

ns
/(

lo
ss

es
)(

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 tr
an

sla
tin

g 
�n

an
ci

al
 a

ss
et

s o
f f

or
ei

gn
 o

pe
ra

tio
n)

-
-

-

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 i

n
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
-

-
-

1
0

7
,4

7
3

,3
1

2
(4

3
2

,8
6

7
)

-
-

5
0

4
,4

1
4

-
(9

3
7

,2
8

1
)

1
0

7
,0

4
0

,4
4

5

T
ra

n
sf

er
 t

o
 r

es
er

ve
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
21

,4
94

,6
62

7,
61

3,
93

5
(3

1,
35

6,
69

4)
2,

14
9,

46
6

1,
07

4,
73

3
1,

07
4,

73
3

-
(9

8,
63

0)

T
ra

n
sf

er
 f

ro
m

 r
es

er
ve

 d
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
-

-
1,

84
1,

13
9

(1
,8

30
,7

84
)

(9
26

,9
25

)
(7

26
,4

57
)

(1
77

,4
01

)
10

,3
56

T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 o

w
n

er
s,

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 i
n

 e
q

u
it

y
-

-
-

Sh
ar

e 
is

su
ed

-
-

-

Sh
ar

e 
b

as
ed

 p
ay

m
en

ts
-

-
-

D
iv

id
en

d
s 

to
 e

q
u

it
y 

h
o

ld
er

s
-

-
-

B
o

n
u

s 
sh

ar
es

 i
ss

u
ed

64
,4

12
,4

59
-

(6
4,

41
2,

45
9)

-
-

C
as

h
 d

iv
id

en
d

 p
ai

d
-

(2
4,

15
4,

67
2)

-
(2

4,
15

4,
67

2)

O
th

er
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

b
y 

an
d

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
6

4
,4

1
2

,4
5

9
-

2
1

,4
9

4
,6

6
2

7
,6

1
3

,9
3

5
(1

1
8

,0
8

2
,6

8
6

)
3

1
8

,6
8

3
1

4
7

,8
0

8
3

4
8

,2
7

6
-

(1
7

7
,4

0
1

)
-

(2
4

,2
4

2
,9

4
7

)

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

3
1

 A
sa

r 
2

0
8

0
8

6
9

,5
6

8
,2

0
0

-
1

0
5

,3
1

4
,3

7
5

9
,7

7
6

,3
2

1
7

9
,3

0
4

,5
6

9
5

,9
8

0
,4

0
0

2
,6

2
6

,6
9

6
2

,0
9

2
,0

8
5

4
5

9
,0

8
7

-
8

0
2

,5
3

2
1

,0
6

9
,9

4
3

,8
6

7

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

1
 S

h
ra

w
an

 2
0

8
0

8
6

9
,5

6
8

,2
0

0
-

1
0

5
,3

1
4

,3
7

5
9

,7
7

6
,3

2
1

7
9

,3
0

4
,5

6
9

5
,9

8
0

,4
0

0
2

,6
2

6
,6

9
6

2
,0

9
2

,0
8

5
4

5
9

,0
8

7
-

8
0

2
,5

3
2

1
,0

6
9

,9
4

3
,8

6
7

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 i

n
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
-

P
ro

�
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
1

4
1

,7
4

2
,6

3
4

-
1

4
1

,7
4

2
,6

3
4

O
th

er
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 i
n

co
m

e,
 n

et
 o

f 
ta

x
-

-
-

G
ai

ns
/(

lo
ss

es
) 

fr
om

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 in
 e

qu
ity

 in
st

ru
m

en
ts

 m
ea

su
re

d 
at

 fa
ir

 v
al

ue
-

-
-

G
ai

n
s/

(l
o

ss
es

) 
o

n
 r

ev
al

u
at

io
n

-
-

-

A
ct

u
ar

ia
l g

ai
n

s/
(l

o
ss

es
) 

o
n

 d
e�

n
ed

 b
en

e�
t 

p
la

n
s

-
(2

19
,1

25
)

(2
19

,1
25

)
(2

19
,1

25
)

G
ai

n
s/

(l
o

ss
es

) 
o

n
 c

as
h

 �
o

w
 h

ed
ge

s
-

-
-

Ex
ch

an
ge

 g
ai

ns
/(

lo
ss

es
) (

ar
isi

ng
 fr

om
 tr

an
sla

tin
g 

�n
an

ci
al

 as
se

ts
 o

f f
or

ei
gn

 o
pe

ra
tio

n)
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 i

n
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
-

-
-

1
4

1
,7

4
2

,6
3

4
(2

1
9

,1
2

5
)

-
-

(2
1

9
,1

2
5

)
-

-
1

4
1

,5
2

3
,5

0
8

T
ra

n
sf

er
 t

o
 r

es
er

ve
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

-
28

,3
48

,5
27

15
,0

15
,7

36
2,

83
4,

85
3

1,
41

7,
42

6
1,

41
7,

42
6

-
46

,1
99

,1
16

T
ra

n
sf

er
 f

ro
m

 r
es

er
ve

 d
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
-

(4
4,

99
9,

50
4)

(2
,5

20
,9

26
)

(1
,3

21
,3

14
)

(3
97

,0
80

)
-

(8
02

,5
32

)
(4

7,
52

0,
43

1)

T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 o

w
n

er
s,

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
re

co
g

n
iz

ed
 i

n
 e

q
u

it
y

-
-

-

sh
ar

e 
is

su
ed

-
-

-

Sh
ar

e 
b

as
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t
-

-
-

D
iv

id
en

d
s 

to
 e

q
u

it
y 

h
o

ld
er

s
-

-
-

B
o

n
u

s 
sh

ar
es

 i
ss

u
ed

74
,7

82
,8

65
-

(7
4,

78
2,

86
5)

-
-

C
as

h
 d

iv
id

en
d

 p
ai

d
-

(3
,9

35
,9

40
)

-
(3

,9
35

,9
40

)

O
th

er
-

-
-

T
o

ta
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
b

y 
an

d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

7
4

,7
8

2
,8

6
5

-
2

8
,3

4
8

,5
2

7
1

5
,0

1
5

,7
3

6
(1

2
3

,7
1

8
,3

1
0

)
3

1
3

,9
2

7
9

6
,1

1
2

1
,0

2
0

,3
4

6
-

-
(8

0
2

,5
3

2
)

(5
,2

5
7

,2
5

5
)

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

3
1

 A
sa

r 
2

0
8

1
9

4
4

,3
5

1
,0

6
5

-
1

3
3

,6
6

2
,9

0
1

2
4

,7
9

2
,0

6
5

9
7

,3
2

8
,8

9
3

6
,0

7
5

,2
0

0
2

,7
2

2
,8

0
8

3
,1

1
2

,4
3

1
2

3
9

,9
6

2
-

(0
)

1
,2

0
6

,2
1

0
,1

2
3

R
S

D
C

 L
ag

h
u

b
it

ta
 B

it
ti

ya
 S

an
st

h
a 

L
td

.
St

at
em

en
t 

o
f 

 C
h

an
ge

s 
in

 E
q

u
it

y
 A

tt
ri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 e

qu
it

y 
h

ol
d

er
s 

of
 t

h
e 

In
st

it
u

ti
on

 

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Ra
je

nd
ra

 P
ra

sa
d 

D
ah

al
Ch

ai
rm

an

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

CA
 C

ha
nd

ra
 R

aj
 S

ha
rm

a
D
ir
ec
to
r

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Bi
sh

nu
 P

ra
sa

d 
Po

ud
ya

l
D
ir
ec
to
r

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

D
am

od
ar

 Jo
sh

i
D
ir
ec
to
r

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Yu
dd

ha
 R

aj
 O

li,
 F

CA
Pa

rtn
er

, P
Y

C 
&

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

Ch
ar

te
re

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

A
m

ar
 D

an
go

l M
ah

ar
ja

n
D
ir
ec
to
r

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Sh
an

ti 
Pr

as
ad

 U
pr

et
i

D
ir
ec
to
r

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

Sa
bi

na
 R

an
a

In
de

pe
nd

en
t D

ire
ct

or

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

D
hr

ub
a 

K
um

ar
 P

au
de

l
Ch

ie
f E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

O
fÏ

ce
r

..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
..
.

M
ila

n 
A

dh
ik

ar
i

Fi
na

nc
e 

H
ea

d



33P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited
Notes to the �nancial statement for FY 2080/81

1. Reporting Entity

RSDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 'herein referred as Micro�nance' was registered at O�ce 
of Company Registrar as Public Limited Company on 2069/11/12 with an authorized capital of NPR 
1,000,000,000 and paid- up capital of NPR 944,351,065. �e Micro�nance is operating its business from 
its corporate o�ce at Rupandehi, Butwal.

It had obtained license to carry on business of wholesale lending of micro credit in Nepal on 10th Bhadra 
2070 from Nepal Rastra Bank as Class 'D' Licensed Institution and it commenced its transaction since 
26th Bhadra 2070. �e main objective of Micro�nance is to provide wholesale lending to other licensed 
micro �nance institutions and cooperatives societies to promote the life style of deprived people as 
described by Nepal Rastra Bank.

�e Micro�nance is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and is trading under the code “RSDC”.

2. Basis of Preparation

�e �nancial statements of the Financial Institution have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal 
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Accounting Standard Board of Nepal (ASB) and 
pronounced by �e Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

�ese �nancial statements for the year ended 31 Ashad, 2081 (15 July 2024) are the �nancial statements 
the institution has prepared in accordance with NFRS. Financial statements comprise the Statement of 
Financial Position, Statement of Pro�t or Loss, Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows 
and Notes to Accounts.

�e signi�cant accounting policies applied in the preparation of �nancial statements are set out below 
in Note 3. �ese policies are consistently applied to all the years presented, except for the changes in 
accounting policies disclosed speci�cally.

2.1. Statement of Compliance

�e �nancial statements of the Financial Institution have been prepared in accordance with Nepal 
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) to the extent applicable and as issued by Accounting Standard 
Board- Nepal.  

2.2. Reporting period and approval of �nancial statements

2.2.1. Reporting Dates

�e Financial Institution follows the Nepalese �nancial year based on the Nepalese calendar starting 
from �rst day of Shrawan (Mid July) of each year to the last day of Ashad (Mid July) of the next year.

�e corresponding dates for the English calendar are as follows:
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Relevant Financial Statement
Nepalese Calendar 

Date / Period

English Calendar 

Date / Period

Reporting Date 31 Ashad 2081 15th July 2024

Comparative Reporting Date 31 Ashad 2080 16th July 2023

Reporting period 01 Shrawan 2080 - 31 Ashad 2081 17 July 2023- 15 July 2024

Comparative Reporting Period 01 Shrawan 2079 - 31 Ashad 2080 17 July 2022 - 16 July 2023

2.2.2. Approval of �nancial statements

�e accompanied �nancial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of 
Directors in its 161st meeting held on 17th October 2024 and have been recommended for approval by 
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency

Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation 
currency of the Financial Institution.

2.4. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

�e preparation of the �nancial statements in accordance with NFRS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions in applying the accounting policies that a�ect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates, 
actual results reported in future periods may be based upon amounts which di�er from those estimates. 
Estimates, judgements and assumptions are periodically evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Further information about key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty and judgement, are set out in the relevant disclosure notes for the following areas:

• Classi�cation of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.

• Impairment of Financial Assets.

• Impairment of Non-Financial Assets.

• Provisions, commitments and contingencies.

• De�ned bene�t obligations and Other long term employment bene�t obligations.

• Determination of useful life of the property Plant and equipment.

• Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever 
the estimates have been applied along with the nature and e�ect of changes of accounting estimates, if 
any.

2.5. Changes in Accounting Policies

�e principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of �nancial statements are set out in relevant 
notes for each item of the �nancial statements. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all 
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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2.6. New Standards in use but not yet e�ective

Standards as pronounced by the Accounting Standards Board Nepal (ASB Nepal) has been used in the 
preparation of �nancial statements. Any departure from the requirements of NFRS, if any, has been 
separately disclosed in the Notes to Accounts/ Explanatory Notes.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been 
issued by IASB a�er the pronouncements of NFRS with varying e�ective dates. �ose become applicable 
when ASB Nepal incorporates within NFRS.

2.7. New Standards and Interpretation not adopted

�ere have been amendments to the standards issued by IASB and applicability of the new standards have 
been noti�ed for IFRS. �ese amendments and new standards become applicable only when ASB-Nepal 
pronounces them.

Management has used its assumptions and understandings for the preparation of �nancial statements 
under compliance with NFRS, however certain interpretations might vary regarding the recognition, 
measurement, and other related provisions where the standards are not speci�c and not clear.

2.8. Discounting

�e Financial Institutions determines amortized cost of a �nancial assets or a �nancial liability using 
the e�ective interest rate. �e E�ective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of a �nancial assets or liability to the net carrying 
amount of �nancial assets or liability. If the expected life cannot be determined reliably, then the 
contractual life is used.

In case the �nancial institution assess that the transaction amount of the �nancial assets or �nancial 
liability does not represents its fair value, the related future cash �ows are discounted at prevailing 
interest rate to determine the initial fair value.

3. Signi�cant Accounting Policies

3.1. Basis of Measurement

�e �nancial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for following material items 
in the statement of �nancial position:

• Financial assets other than measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.

• Liability for long term service leave and de�ned bene�t obligations.

3.2. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprise the total amount of cash-in -hand, balances with other Financial 
Institution and �nancial institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid �nancial assets 
with original maturities period of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an 
insigni�cant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Financial Institution in the management 
of its short-term commitments. 

Restricted deposits are not recognized in cash and cash equivalent. �ey are measured and presented as 
a separate line item on the face of Statement of Financial Position.
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3.3. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.3.1. Recognition

�e Financial Institution initially recognizes a �nancial asset or a �nancial liability in its statement of 
�nancial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of an instrument.

3.3.2. Classi�cation

�e Financial Institution classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: 

a. financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss; 

b. �nancial assets held at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, and 

c. financial assets held at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities are classified as either 

a. held at fair value through profit or loss, or 

b. held at amortized cost.

3.3.2.1.  Financial Assetes

Financial Assets are classi�ed under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:

a. Financial assets recognized at amortized cost

�e Financial Institution classi�es a �nancial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following 
conditions are met:

i. 	 �e asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect 
contractual cash �ows and

ii. 	 �e contractual terms of the �nancial asset give rise on speci�ed dates to cash �ows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling 
�nancial assets and collecting contractual cash �ows that are solely payments of principal and interest, 
are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are 
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).

Equity Instrument which are not held for trading and initially recognized as held for trading for which 
the Micro�nance makes an irrevocable election to carry the changes in fair value of the instrument 
through OCI are measured at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income.

c. Financial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss

Financial assets are classi�ed as fair value through pro�t or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or 
are designated at fair value through pro�t or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in pro�t or loss as incurred. Such assets are 
subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Pro�t or 
Loss.

Any other �nancial asset not classi�ed as either amortized cost or FVOCI, is classi�ed as FVTPL.
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3.3.2.2. Financial Liabilities

�e Financial Institution classi�es the �nancial liabilities as follows:

a. Financial liabilities recognized at fair value through pro�t or loss

Financial liabilities are classi�ed as fair value through pro�t or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or 
are designated at fair value through pro�t or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly 
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Pro�t or Loss as incurred. Subsequent 
changes in fair value is recognized at Statement of Pro�t or Loss.

b. Financial liabilities recognized at amortized cost

All �nancial liabilities other than measured at fair value though Statement of Pro�t or Loss are classi�ed 
as subsequently measured at amortized cost using e�ective interest method.

3.3.3.	 Measurement

Initial Measurement

At initial recognition, the Financial Institution measures a �nancial assets or �nancial liability at its 
fair value plus or minus, in the case of �nancial asset or �nancial liability not at fair value through 
pro�t or loss, transaction cost that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
the �nancial assets or �nancial liability, such as commission and fees. �e transaction cost of �nancial 
assets and �nancial liabilities carried at fair value through pro�t of loss are expensed in pro�t or loss. 
Immediately a�er initial recognition, allowance is recognized for �nancial assets measured at amortized 
cost if any indication for additional allowance is identi�ed.

Subsequent Measurement

A �nancial asset or �nancial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized cost 
based on the classi�cation of the �nancial asset or liability.

Financial asset or liability classi�ed as measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using e�ective interest rate method. �e amortized cost of a �nancial asset or �nancial liability is 
the amount at which the �nancial asset or �nancial liability is measured at initial recognition minus 
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the e�ective interest rate method 
of any di�erence between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for 
impairment or uncollectability.

In case of Loans and Advances measured at amortised cost, the processing charge and documentation 
charges received from customers which are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of such �nancial 
assets are booked as income in the Statement of Pro�t and Loss in the reporting period in which they 
are received. �e e�ective interest rate method is not applied as it is impracticable to determine reliably.

Further, interest income is therea�er calculated by applying e�ective interest rate to the gross carrying 
amount of a �nancial asset.

Financial assets classi�ed at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. �e subsequent changes 
in fair value of �nancial assets at fair value through pro�t or loss are recognized in Statement of Pro�t 
or Loss whereas of �nancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in 
other comprehensive income.
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3.3.4. Derecognition

3.3.4.1. Derecognition of �nancial assets

�e Financial Institution derecognizes a �nancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash �ows from 
the �nancial asset expire, or when it transfers the �nancial asset in a transaction in which substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the �nancial asset are transferred or in which the Financial 
Institution neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does 
not retain control of the �nancial asset.

Any interest in such transferred �nancial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained 
by the Financial Institution is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On derecognition of a �nancial 
asset, the di�erence between the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of:

a. 	 the consideration received and

b. 	 any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income, is 
recognized in Statement of Pro�t or Loss.

�e Financial Institution enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement 
of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred 
assets or a portion of them.

If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized. 
Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example 
repurchase transactions.

3.3.4.2. Derecognition of �nancial liabilities

A �nancial liability is derecognized when, and only when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation 
speci�ed in contract is discharged, cancelled or expired). If the liability is renegotiated with the original 
lender on substantially di�erent contractual terms, the original liability is derecognized and new liability 
is recognized.

�e di�erence between the carrying amount of a liability (or portion) extinguished or transferred to 
another party (including related unamortized cost) and the amount paid for it (including any noncash 
assets transferred or liability assumed), should be included in Statement of Pro�t or Loss for the period.

3.3.5. Determination of Fair Value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal market or, 
in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Financial Institution has access at that date.

�e fair value of a liability re�ects its non-performance risk. When available, the Financial Institution 
measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. 
A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with su�cient frequency 
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Financial Institution uses valuation techniques 
that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. �e 
chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into 
account in pricing a transaction.

�e fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:
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Level 1

�ese are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Financial Institution 
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2

�ese are the inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly 
or indirectly.

�ese would include prices for the similar, but not identical, assets or liabilities that were then adjusted 
to re�ect the factors speci�c to the measured asset or liability.

Level 3

Fair value measurements are derived using valuation techniques in which current market transactions 
or observable market data are not available. Under this, instruments are fair valued using valuation 
models which have been tested against prices or inputs to actual market transactions and make use of 
Financial Institution best estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions. Unobservable inputs 
have a signi�cant e�ect on instrument's value.

�e best evidence of the fair value of a �nancial instrument at initial recognition is normally the 
transaction price i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received.

3.3.6. Impairment

At each reporting date, the Financial Institution assesses whether there is objective evidence that a 
�nancial asset or group of �nancial assets not carried at fair value through �e Statement of Pro�t or 
Loss are impaired.

A �nancial asset or a group of �nancial assets is impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a 
loss event has occurred a�er the initial recognition of the asset(s), and that the loss event has an impact 
on the future cash �ows of the asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that �nancial assets are impaired can include signi�cant �nancial di�culty of the 
borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the 
Financial Institution on terms that the Financial Institution would not otherwise consider, indications 
that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, 
or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of 
borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Financial 
Institution.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios is based on the judgements of past experience of 
portfolio behavior. In assessing collective impairment, the Financial Institution uses historical trends 
of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for 
management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual 
losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Further, management has taken 
additional external risk (in�ation, market risk and risk of data incompleteness) for the impairment of 
loans and advances.

If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of 
an event occurring a�er the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is 
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write o� is later recovered, the recovery is 
recognized in the ‘Impairment charges /(reversal) for loan and other losses.
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However, in case of loans and advances, impairment loss is measured as the higher of amount derived 
as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Financial Institution for loan loss provision and amount 
determined as per NAS 39 para 63 in accordance with the crave-out issued by ICAN.

Loan Loss Provision as per Uni�ed Directives to Micro�nance

Loan loss provision created for possible losses in respect of performing and non-performing loans, 
subject to provisions prescribed in Uni�ed Directives 2079 issued by NRB for Micro�nances, are as 
follows:

Categories Outstanding Loan LLP Rate Loan Loss Provision

Pass Loan 6,287,272,383 1.30% 81,734,541

Watchlist 1,446,001 5.00% 72,300

Sub-Standard 86,278,739 25.00% 21,569,685

Doubtful 3,016,146 50.00% 1,508,073

Bad 126,212,942 100.00% 126,212,942

Total 6,504,226,211 231,097,541

Impairment as per NAS 39 para 63 in accordance with the crave-out issued by ICAN.

Loan Type  Outstanding amount  Impairment Total 

DSL Long Term        4,714,392,784 12,046,519

DSL Mid Term             10,925,050 1,185,732

DSL Saral        1,751,183,245 -

DSL Special             17,308,465 1,068,595

DSL Swarojgar             10,416,667 -

Total        6,504,226,211 14,300,846

Impairment of Loans As of Ashadh End 2081

As per NFRS             14,300,846 

As per NRB           231,097,541 

Higher As per NFRS Carveout           231,097,541 

3.4. Trading Assets

�e Financial Institution classi�es �nancial assets or �nancial liabilities as held for trading when they 
have been purchased or issued primarily for short term pro�t making through trading activities or 
form part of a portfolio of �nancial instruments that are managed together for which there is evidence 
of a recent pattern of short-term pro�t taking. Held for trading assets and liabilities are recorded and 
measured in the statement of �nancial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in net 
trading income. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in net trading income according 
to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established. However, the �nancial 
institution does not have such assets to be recognized as trading assets as on Ashadh end 2081

3.5. Property, Plant and Equipment

All Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent costs 
are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only 
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when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Financial 
Institution and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

At each balance sheet date, the assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, including assessing for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s carrying amount 
is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to the recoverable 
amount. Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Pro�t or Loss.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Pro�t or Loss during the financial period in 
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life estimated 
by the management is as follows:

Asset Detail Category Useful Life

Wooden Furniture and Fixtures 4 years

O�ce Vehicles – Bike and Scooter 4 years

O�ce Vehicle-Car 7 years

Computer (including Printer) 4 years

Other Equipment 4 years

Leasehold Improvements 5 years (Fiscal Year)

3.6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identi�able net assets acquired in Business 
Combination is recognized as goodwill. �e �nancial institution does not have any goodwill as on 
Ashadh end 2081.

Intangible assets include externally generated capitalized so�ware enhancements. Intangible assets, 
which have been determined to have a �nite useful life are amortized on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful life. Intangible assets with �nite useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date to assess 
whether there is any indication that they are impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable 
amount of the asset is determined and, in the event, that the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its 
recoverable amount, it is written down immediately.

Amortization on computer so�ware is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the di�erence 
between the cost and the residual value over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset Detail Category Useful Life

So�ware 5

Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any 
accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is not subject to amortization but is tested for impairment.

3.7. Investment Property

Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital appreciation 
or for both, but not sold in ordinary course of business and owner-occupied property.

Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at Cost Model. Accordingly, such 
properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss if any.
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Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is recognized in Statement of Pro�t or Loss. 
When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassi�ed as property and equipment, its fair value at 
the date of reclassi�cation becomes its cost for subsequent reporting. However, the �nancial institution 
does not have Investment Property as on Ashadh end 2081

3.8. Income Tax

3.8.1. Current Income Tax

Current income tax which is payable on taxable pro�ts is recognized as an expense in the period in 
which the pro�ts arise.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected 
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. �e tax rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted at the reporting date in Nepal.

Current tax related to gains and losses on the fair value re-measurement of assets and liabilities classi�ed 
through other comprehensive income also recognized in other comprehensive income. Such tax is 
subsequently transferred to the Statement of Pro�t or Loss together with the gain or loss.

Current tax assets and liabilities are o�set only when there is both a legal right of o�set and the intention 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.8.2. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary di�erences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary di�erences and deferred tax assets are 
recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable pro�ts will be available against which 
deductible temporary di�erences can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected 
to apply in the periods in which the assets will be realized or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates 
and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are o�set when they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority, and when the group has a legal right to o�set.

3.9. Deposit, Debt Securities issued and Subordinated Liabilities

�e estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity period is the amount repayable on demand. 
�e estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing deposits and other borrowings without quoted market 
prices is based on discounting cash �ows using the prevailing market rates for debts with a similar credit 
risk and remaining maturity period.

Debt Securities are recognized at amortized cost using e�ective interest rates. �e coupon rates of these 
instruments represent the e�ective interest rates. E�ective Interest Rate is expected to cover for the credit 
risk and time value of money on these instruments as these are solely for the purpose of principal and 
interest.

However, the �nancial institution does not have any debt securities or subordinated liabilities issued as 
on Ashadh end 2081.

3.10. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Financial Institution has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of past events, and it is probable that an out�ow of resources embodying economic bene�ts will 
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be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
When the e�ect of the time value of money is material, the Financial Institution determines the level of 
provision by discounting the expected cash �ows at a pre-tax rate re�ecting the current rates speci�c to 
the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to re�ect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that an out�ow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is 
reversed.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected bene�ts to be derived by the Financial 
Institution from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the 
contract.

3.11. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic bene�ts associated with the transaction 
will �ow to the entity. In some cases, this may not be probable until the consideration is received or until 
an uncertainty is removed.

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, disposal income, etc. Revenue is recognized 
to the extent it is probable that the economic bene�ts will �ow to the Financial Institution and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of 
income is not probable. �e bases of income recognition are as below:

a. Interest Income

Interest income is recognized in pro�t or loss using e�ective interest method. E�ective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life 
of �nancial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or liability. �e calculation of e�ective 
interest rate includes all transactions cost and fee and points paid or received that are integral part of 
the e�ective interest. �e transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of �nancial assets.

Interest income on �nancial assets measured at amortized cost is calculated on an e�ective interest rate 
to the gross carrying amount of �nancial assets unless the �nancial asset is written o� either partially or 
fully. �ese �nancial assets include loans and advances including sta� loans, and deposit instruments, 
reverse repos, inter Financial Institution lending, etc.

NFRS Requirement

NFRS require interest income to be recognized using the e�ective interest method, except for those 
classi�ed as fair value through pro�t or loss.  E�ective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the �nancial asset or �nancial 
liability to the gross carrying amount of a �nancial asset or to the amortized cost of a �nancial liability. 
When calculating the e�ective interest rate, an entity shall estimate the expected cash �ows by considering 
all the contractual terms of the �nancial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call, and 
similar options) but shall not consider the expected credit losses. �e calculation includes all fees and 
points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the e�ective interest 
rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. �ere is a presumption that the cash �ows 
and the expected life of a group of similar �nancial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, 
in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash �ows or the expected life of a 
�nancial instrument (or group of �nancial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash �ows 
over the full contractual term of the �nancial instrument (or group of �nancial instruments).
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Carve-Out for E�ective Interest Rate

a. Criteria for determining loans on which interest no longer be recognized to the pro�t of loss account 
but shall be suspended Guideline issued by NRB on Income Recognition de�nes following criteria for 
determining loans on which interest no longer be recognized to the pro�t or loss account but shall be 
suspended;

i.	 Loans where there is reasonable doubt about the ultimate collectability of principal or interest

ii.	 Loans against which Individual Impairment as per NAS-39 of Life-time Impairment as per 
NFRS-9 has been made

iii.	 Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrear 
and where the "net realizable value" of security is insu�cient to cover payment of principal and 
accrued interest

iv.	 Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in 
arrear, irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral; 

v.	 Overdra�s and other short-term facilities which have not been settled a�er the expiry of loan 
and even not renewed within 3 months of the expiry, and where net realizable value of security 
is insu�cient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest; 

vi.	 Overdra�s and other short-term facilities which have not been settled a�er the expiry of loan 
and even not renewed within 12 months of the expiry, irrespective of the net realizable value of 
collateral;

b. Fee and Commission

Fees and commission income that are integral to the e�ective interest rate on a �nancial asset are included 
in measurement of e�ective interest rate. Other fees and commission income including management fee, 
service charges, syndication fee and forex transaction commission are recognized as the related services 
are performed.

c. Dividend Income

Dividend on investment in resident company is recognized when the right to receive payment is 
established. Dividend income are presented in net trading income, net income from other �nancial 
instruments at fair value through pro�t or loss or other revenue based on the underlying classi�cation 
of the equity instruments.

d. Net trading Income

Gain and losses arising in changes in fair value of �nancial instrument held at fair value through pro�t 
or loss are included in Statement of Pro�t or Loss in the period in which they arise.

�ese includes the net gain/(loss) on translation of period end balances carried in foreign exchange to 
the Nepalese Rupees. �e �nancial institution does not have Net Trading Income.

e. Net income from other �nancial instrument at fair value through pro�t or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of other financial instruments held at fair value 
through profit or loss are included in the Statement of Pro�t or Loss in the period in which they arise.
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3.12. Interest Expenses

Interest expense on all �nancial liabilities including deposits are recognized in pro�t or loss using 
e�ective interest rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental 
to the Financial Institution’s trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair 
value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

3.13. Employee Bene�ts

Employee bene�ts are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by 
employees or for the termination of employment. 

�e Financial Institution applies NAS 19-"Employee Bene�ts" in accounting all of employees bene�ts 
and recognizes the following in its �nancial statements:

• 	 a liability when an employee provide service in exchange for employee bene�ts to be paid in the 
future; and

• 	 an expense when the Financial Institution consumes the economic bene�t arising from service 
provided by an employee in exchange for employee bene�ts.

3.13.1.	Short term employee bene�ts

Short term employee bene�ts of the Financial Institution include salaries, wages, allowances, social 
security contributions, bonuses, paid annual home leave & sick leave and non-monetary bene�ts. Short 
term employee bene�ts are measured on an undiscounted basis and are charged to the statement of 
pro�t or loss recognized over the period in which the employees provide the related services.

3.13.2.	Post employment employee bene�ts

�e Financial Institution operates a number of post-retirement bene�t schemes for its employees 
including both de�ned bene�t and de�ned contribution plans. A de�ned bene�t scheme is a plan that 
de�nes an amount of pension bene�t that an employee will receive on retirement, dependent on one or 
more factors such as age, years of service and salary. A de�ned contribution plan is a pension plan into 
which the Financial Institution pays �xed contributions; there is no legal or constructive obligation to 
pay further contributions.

Full actuarial valuations of the Financial Institution’s de�ned bene�t schemes are carried out periodically 
with interim reviews in the intervening years; these valuations are updated by quali�ed independent 
actuaries.

For the purposes of these annual updates scheme assets are included at their fair value and scheme 
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using actuarial assumptions. �e de�ned bene�t scheme 
liabilities are discounted using rates equivalent to the market yields at the reporting date.

�e Financial Institution’s Statement of Pro�t or Loss includes the current service cost, past service costs, 
net interest expense (income), and plan administration costs that are not deducted from the return on 
plan assets.  

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest expense (income) and net of the cost of managing the plan assets), and the e�ect 
of changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) are re�ected immediately in the statement of �nancial 
position with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they 
occur.
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Re-measurements recognized in other comprehensive income are re�ected immediately in retained 
pro�ts and will not subsequently be reclassi�ed to Statement of other Comprehensive income.

�e Financial Institution’s Statement of Financial Position includes the net surplus or de�cit, being the 
di�erence between the fair value of scheme assets and the discounted value of scheme liabilities at the 
reporting date.

Surpluses are only recognized to the extent that they are recoverable through reduced contributions 
in the future or through refunds from the schemes. In assessing whether a surplus is recoverable, the 
Financial Institution considers its current right to obtain a refund or a reduction in future contributions 
and does not anticipate any future acts by other parties that could change the amount of the surplus that 
may ultimately be recovered.

De�ned Contribution Plan

In accordance with law, all employees of the Financial Institution are entitled to receive bene�ts under 
the provident fund, a de�ned contribution plan in which both the employee and the Financial Institution 
contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic salary plus grades). Financial 
Institution does not assume any future liability for provident fund bene�ts other than its annual 
contribution.

De�ned Bene�t Plan

�e Financial Institution provides the Gratuity and Medical Facility to the employess who are entitled 
to receive the facilities a�er the ful�llment of condition cited out in the Employee Service Byelaws. Such 
obligation has been estimated by the management at the end of each of reporting period and the same 
has been evaluated by an independent actuary.

3.13.3.	Other long term employment bene�t

�e employees of the Financial Institution are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed/ unutilized 
leave subject to a maximum limit. �e employees can encash unavailed/ unutilized leave partially in 
terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the Financial Institution. �e Financial Institution accounts for 
the liability for entire accumulated outstanding leave balance on accrual basis as per actuarial valuation 
report.

Termination Bene�ts

Termination bene�ts are recognized as expense when the Financial Institution is demonstrably 
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination bene�ts 
to employees as a result of an o�er made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination bene�ts are 
recognized if the Financial Institution has made an o�er for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the 
o�er will be accepted and the number of acceptances can be measured reliably. If the bene�ts are payable 
in more than 12 months a�er the reporting date, they are discounted to their present value.

3.14. Leases

�e determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of 
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the ful�llment of the arrangement is dependent 
on the use of a speci�c assets or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the assets.
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�e Financial Institution applies NFRS 16-"Leases" for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosures of leases for all the lease agreement entered into by the Financial Institution.

3.14.1.	Operating Lease

�e leases entered into by the Financial Institution are primarily operating leases. When an operating 
lease is terminated before the end of the lease period, any payment made to the lessor by way of penalty 
is recognized as an expense in the period of termination.

�e �nancial Institution recognizes right of use assets and a lease liability in accordance with the para 
22 of NFRS 16. �e right-of-use assets are recognized as a leasehold property and are depreciated from 
commencement date to the earlier of end of useful life of right-of-use assets or the end of lease term. �e 
lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date and the 
incremental cost of borrowing are used for the purpose of discounting such lease liability.

A�er the commencement date, �nancial institution shall recognize in pro�t or loss, unless that costs are 
included in the carrying amount of other assets applying other applicable standards, both:

• 	 interest on lease liability, and

•	 variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability in the period in 
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

�e �nancial institutions operating lease agreement contains the cancellable lease term as a result 
of which the useful economic life is less than 12 months and the �nancial institutions has used the 
exemptions provided NFRS 16 in valuation of operating lease and has recognized the operating lease 
expenses on SLM basis over its useful life.

3.14.2.	Finance Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the 
ownership of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classi�ed as �nance lease. As a lessor under �nance 
leases, the Micro�nance presents the amounts due under the leases, a�er deduction of unearned charges, 
in ‘Loans and advances to banks’ or ‘Loans and advances to customers. As a lessee under �nance leases, 
the Micro�nance presents the leased assets in 'Property, plant and equipment' and the corresponding 
liability to the lessor is included in 'Other liabilities'. A �nance lease and its corresponding liability are 
recognized initially at the fair value of the asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. However, Micro�nance does not have any �nancial lease transaction as on Ashadh end 2081.

3.15. Share Capital and Reserve

�e Financial Institution applies NAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, to determine whether 
funding is either a �nancial liability (debt) or equity.  Issued �nancial instruments or their components 
are classi�ed as liabilities if the contractual arrangement results in the Financial Institution having a 
present obligation to either deliver cash or another �nancial asset, or a variable number of equity shares, 
to the holder of the instrument.  

Dividends and other returns to equity holders are recognized when paid or declared by the members at 
the AGM and treated as a deduction from equity.

3.16. Earnings per share including diluted

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net pro�t attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
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For the calculation of diluted earnings per share the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 
issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares that arise in respect of 
convertible preference shares.

3.17. Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Financial Institution that engages in business activities 
from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to 
transactions with any of the Financial Institution’s other components, whose operating results are 
reviewed by the management to make decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess its 
performance.

�e Financial Institution has identi�ed segments on the basis of each geographical presence in seven 
provinces of the country. Interest earning and interest expenses on deposits generated while conducting 
business under di�erent segments are reported in respective segment.

Segment results that are reported by the Financial Institution include items directly attributable to a 
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly 
corporate assets (primarily the Financial Institution’s head o�ce assets), head o�ce expenses, and tax 
assets and liabilities that are categorized as Financial Institution assets/liabilities.
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Note No. 4.1

Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent comprises the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other �nancial 
institutions, money at call and short notice, treasury bills having original maturity of less than three 
months and cash in transit.

Details of such is presented as follows:

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Cash in hand - -

Balance with B/FIs 239,348,980 138,220,414

Money at call and short notice - -

Other - -

Total 239,348,980 138,220,414

Note No. 4.2

Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances and due from Nepal Rastra Bank comprise balance for compulsory cash reserve. 
Amount for Compulsory Cash Reserve is held with Nepal Bank Ltd.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Statutory Balances with NRB - -

Statutory Balances with BFIs 55,055,277 39,926,029

Securities Purchased under resale agreement - -

Other deposit and receivable from NRB - -

Total 55,055,277 39,926,029

Note No. 4.3

Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions

Placements with domestic as well as foreign Financial Institution and �nancial institutions with original 
maturities of more than three months from the acquisition date are presented as follows:

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Placements with domestic B/FIs - -

Less: Allowances for Impairment - -

Total - -
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Note No. 4.4

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are �nancial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, 
�nancial instrument prices, commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, credit risk, indices etc. �e 
�nancial institution has not entered in derivative instrument transaction for the FY 80.81

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Held for trading

Interest rate swap - -

Currency swap - -

Forward exchange contract - -

Others - -

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap - -

Currency swap - -

Forward exchange contract - -

Others - -

Total - -

Note No. 4.5

Other Trading Assets

Trading assets are securities held for the purpose of selling them for short term pro�t. �ese assets 
include treasury bills, government and NRB bonds, equities, mutual fund units and other securities held 
for trading. �ese assets are initially recorded at fair value and are subsequently measured at fair value 
through pro�t or loss with any realized and unrealized gains and losses included in net trading income. 
�e bank has not acquired any assets with the intention of trading them in short term.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Treasury Bills - -

Government Bonds - -

NRB Bonds - -

Domestic Corporate Bonds - -

Equities - -

Other - -

Total - -

Pledged - -

Non-pledged - -
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Note No. 4.6

Loans and advance to MFIs & Cooperatives

Loan and advances given to micro�nance �nancial institutions and cooperatives is presented under this 
head a�er providing required impairment allowances.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Loans to Micro�nance Institutions 4,599,704,080 4,738,512,359

Loans To FIs - -

Loans To Cooperative 1,904,522,131 2,213,451,739

Less: Allowances for Impairment (231,097,541) (237,663,745)

other - -

Less: Allowances for Impairment - -

Sub- Total: 6,273,128,670 6,714,300,353

Interest receivable 32,973,431 12,437,499

Grand Total 6,306,102,101 6,726,737,852

Note No. 4.6.1 

Allowance for Impairment

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Balance at Shrawan 01 237,663,745 130,316,688

Impairment loss for the year: - -

Charge for the year 118,688,708 158,238,141

Recoveries/reversal (125,254,912) (50,891,084)

Amount written o� - -

Balance at Asadh end 231,097,541 237,663,745

Note No. 4.7

Loans and advances to customers

Sum of the outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers and amortized cost 
of sta� loans; less the amount of impairment allowances is presented under this head.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Loan and Advances measured at amortized cost 8,556,708 7,634,774

Less: - -

Impairment allowances - -

Collective Allowances - -

Individual Allowances - -

Net amount 8,556,708 7,634,774

Loans and advances measured at FVTPL - -

Total 8,556,708 7,634,774
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Note No. 4.7.1

Analysis of Loans and advances- By product

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Product

Term Loans - -

Short term loan - -

Loan term loan - -

Hire purchase loans - -

Personal Residential loans - -

Sta� Loans 8,556,708 7,634,774

Other - -

Sub Total 8,556,708 7,634,774

Interest receivable -

Grand Total 8,556,708 7,634,774

Note No. 4.7.2

Analysis of Loans and advances- By Collateral

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Secured

Immovable assets - -

Government Guarantee - -

Guarantee of domestic B/Fis - -

Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt - -

Group Guarantee - -

Personal Guarantee - -

Other collateral - -

Subtotal - -

Unsecured 8,556,708 7,634,774

Grand Total 8,556,708 7,634,774
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Note No. 4.7.3

Allowances for Impairment

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Speci�c allowances for impairement

Balance at Shrawan 1 - -

Impairment loss for the year - -

Charge for the year - -

Recoveries/reversal during the year - -

Write-o�s - -

Other Movement - -

Balance at Asadh end - -

Collective allowance for Impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 - -

Impairment loss for the year - -

Charge/(reversal) for the year - -

Other movement - -

Balance at Asadh end - -

Total Allowance for impairment - -

Note No. 4.8

Investment Securities

Investment made in equity instruments, debentures, bonds, �xed deposit by the micro�nance is presented 
under this head:

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Investment securities measured at amortized cost - -

Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI 2,000,000 2,000,000

Total 2,000,000 2,000,000

Note No. 4.8.1

Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Debt securities - -

Government bonds - -

Government treasury bills - -

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - -

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - -

Other - -

Less: speci�c allowances for impairment - -

Total - -
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Note No. 4.8.2

Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Equity instrument - -

Quoted equity instrument - -

Unquoted equity instrument 2,000,000 2,000,000

Total 2,000,000 2,000,000

Note No. 4.8.3

Information relating to investment in equities

Particulars Cost Fair Value Fair Value

Investment in Quoted equity

…............................................... Ltd.

…........ Shares of Rs. ….......... Each - - -

Investment in Unquoted equity

Nepal Finso� Company Limited

20,000 Share of Rs 100 Each 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

 Total 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Note No. 4.9

Current Tax Assets

Advance tax deposited by the Financial Institution less tax liabilities are presented under this head. 
Liabilities recognized for the purpose of current income tax, including fees, penalties are presented 
under this head.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Current tax assets   

Current year income tax assets           64,158,374           59,207,284 

Tax assets of prior periods -                          -   

Total           64,158,374           59,207,284 

Current tax Liabilities   

Current year income tax liabilities           76,027,376           47,016,966 

Tax Liabilities of prior periods -                          -   

Total           76,027,376           47,016,966 

Total         (11,869,002)           12,190,318 
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Note No. 4.10

Investment Properties

Land or land and building other than those speci�ed as property and equipment has been presented 
under this account head. �is shall include land, land and building acquired as for the purpose of capital 
appreciation or leasing to others.

�e Micro�nance has no investment properties as on Ashadh end, 2081.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 01, 2080 - -

Addition/disposal during the year - -

Net Changes in fair value during the year - -

Adjustment/Transfer - -

Net Amount - -

Investment Properties measured at cost

Balance as on Shrawan 01, 2080 - -

Addition/disposal during the year - -

Adjustment/Transfer - -

Accumulated Depreciation - -

Accumulated Impairment loss - -

Net Amount - -

Total - -
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Note No. 4.12

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Particulars
Goodwill

So�ware

Other

Total

Purchased Developed
As on 

Asar 2081
As on 

Asar 2080
As on 

Asar 2079

Cost - - - - - - -

Balance as on 1st Shrawan 2079 - 395,500 - - - - 395,500

Impairment for the year - - - - - - -

Addition during the Year - 203,400 - - - - -

Acquisition - - - - - - -

Capitalization - - - - - - -

Disposal during the year - - - - - - -

Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - - - -

Balance as on 31st Asar 2080 - 598,900 - - - 598,900 -

Addition during the Year - - - - - - -

Acquisition - - - - - - -

Capitalization - - - - - - -

Disposal during the year - - - - - - -

Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - - - -

Balance as on 31st Asar 2081 - 598,900 - - 598,900 - -

Amortization and Impairment - - - - - - -

As on Shrawan 1, 2079 - 350,300 - - - - 350,300

Amortization charge for the Year - 51,980 - - - 51,980 -

Impairment for the year - - - - - - -

Disposals  - - - - - - -

Adjustment - - - - - - -

As on Asar end 2080 - 402,280 - - - 402,280 -

Amortization charge for the 
Year

- 51,980 - - 51,980 - -

Impairment for the year - - - - - - -

Disposals  - - - - - - -

Adjustment - - - - - - -

As on Asadh end 2081 - 454,260 - - 454,260 - -

Capital Work in Progress - - - - - - -

Net Book Value - - - - - - -

As on Asar end 2079 - 45,200 - - - - 45,200

As on Asar end 2080 - 196,620 - - - 196,620 -

As on Asar end 2081 - 144,640 - - 144,640 - -
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Note No. 4.13

Deferred Tax										               (Figures in NPR)

											                    Current Year

Particulars Deferred Tax 

Assets

Deferred Tax 

Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax 

(Assets) / Liabilities

Deferred Tax on Temporary di�erences on 

following items

- - -

Loans and Advances to B/FIs - - -

Loans and Advances to customers - - -

Investment Properties - - -

Investment Securities - - -

Property and equipment 519,912 - (519,912)

Employees' de�ned bene�t plan 731,602 - (731,602)

Leave Liability 875,495 (875,495)

Lease liabilities 889,468 - (889,468)

ROU - 844,466 844,466

Other temporary di�erences - - -

Deferred Tax on Temporary di�erences 3,016,478 844,466 (2,172,013)

Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused 
tax losses

- - -

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -

Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on 

year end of 2080/81

- - (2,172,013)

Deferred tax (assets)/Liabilities as on 
Shrawan 1, 2080

- - (802,530)

Origination/(Reversal) during the year - - (1,369,483)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized 

in pro�t or loss

- - (1,275,572)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized 

in other comprehensive income

- - (93,911)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognized 

directly in equity

- - -
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Previous Year

Particulars Deferred Tax 

Assets

Deferred Tax 

Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax 

(Assets) / Liabilities

Deferred Tax on Temporary di�erences 

on following items

- -

Loans and Advances to B/FIs - - -

Loans and Advances to customers - - -

Investment Properties - - -

Investment Securities - - -

Property and equipment 343,967 - (343,967)

Employees' de�ned bene�t plan 449,579 - (449,579)

Leave Liability 8,984 (8,984)

Lease liabilities - - -

ROU - - -

Other temporary di�erences 802,530 - (802,530)

Deferred Tax on Temporary di�erences - - -

Deferred Tax on carry forward of unused 
tax losses

- - -

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - -

Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on 

year end of 2079/80

- - (802,530)

Deferred tax (assets)/Liabilities as on 
Shrawan 1, 2079

- - (1,739,811)

Origination/(Reversal) during the year - - 937,281

Deferred tax expense/(income) 

recognized in pro�t or loss

- - 721,104

Deferred tax expense/(income) 

recognized in other comprehensive 

income

- - 216,178

Deferred tax expense/(income) 

recognized directly in equity

- - -
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Note No. 4.14

Other Assets

Other Assets includes those assets which are not classi�ed separately in the �nancial statements. Accrued 
income, pre-payments, security deposits, account receivables and prepaid employee bene�t balance are 
classi�ed as other assets. Prepaid employee bene�ts are the bene�ts which arises as a result of lower 
interest rate on the sta� loans. �ese bene�ts are amortized over the term of the sta� loan availed by the 
employees.

Particulars  As at 31st Ashad 2081  As at 31st Ashad 2080

 Assets held for sale  -    -   

 Other Non-Banking Assets  -    -   

 Bills Receivable  -    -   

 Accounts receivable  -    -   

 Accrued income  -   

 Prepayments and deposits  65,563  93,301 

 Income tax deposit  -    -   

 Deferred Employee Expenditure  3,894,400  164,360 

 Other  12,894,980  6,858,270 

 Inter Branch Account  -    -   

 Stationery Stock  34,078  36,080 

 Right of Use Assets (ROU)  2,814,885  -   

 Government Transaction Receivable  -    -   

 DD Paid without Schedule  -    -   

 Other (Sundry Debtor, Security Deposit & 
Gratuity) 

 10,046,017  6,822,190 

Total  16,854,943  7,115,932 

 

Note No. 4.15

Due to Bank & Financial Institutions

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Borrowing From BFIs - -

Settlement and clearing accounts - -

Other - -

Total - -
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Note No. 4.16

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Re�nance from NRB - -

Standing liquidity facility - -

Lender of last report facilty from NRB - -

Securities sold under repurchase agreement - -

Other payable to NRB - -

Total - -

Note No. 4.17

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are �nancial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, 
�nancial instrument prices, commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, credit risk, indices etc. �e 
�nancial institution has not entered in derivative instrument transaction for the FY 80/81

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Held for trading - -

Interest rate swap - -

Currency swap - -

Forward exchange contract - -

Others - -

Held for risk management - -

Interest rate swap - -

Currency swap - -

Forward exchange contract - -

Others - -

Total - -

Note No. 4.18

Deposit from Customers

All kinds of deposits from members are presented under this head. Details are presented as follows:

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Institutions Customers: - -

Term deposits - -

Call Deposits - -

Other - -

Individual Customers: - -

Term deposits - -

Saving Deposits - -

Other - -

Total - -
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Note No. 4.19

Borrowing

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Domestic Borrowing:

Nepal Government 10,416,967 18,750,000

Other Licensed Institution 5,348,914,052 5,807,518,373

Other - -

Sub total 5,359,331,019 5,826,268,373

Foreign Borrowing:

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -

Multilateral Development Bank - -

Other institutions - -

Sub total - -

Total 5,359,331,019 5,826,268,373

		

Note No. 4.20

Provisions

�e �nancial institution does not have any pending litigations and no others past events that give rise to 
the conditions for booking of provisions as on reporting date.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Provisions for redundancy - -

Provision for restructuring - -

Pending legal issues and tax litigation - -

Onerous contract - -

Other - -

Total - -

Note No. 4.20.1

Movement in Provision

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Balance at Shrawan 1st - -

Provisions made during the year - -

Provisions used during the year - -

Provisions reversed during the year - -

Unwind of discount - -

Balance at Ashad End - -
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Note No. 4.21

Other Liabilities

�e details of other liabilities are as follows:

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Liability for employees de�ned bene�t obligations 2,438,674 1,670,830

Liability for long-service leave 2,918,318 2,074,697

Short-term employee bene�ts - -

Bills payable - -

Creditors and Accruals 1,049,445 2,777,780

Interest Payable on Deposit - -

Interest payable on borrowing 11,225,011 15,425,241

Liabilities on deferred grant income - -

Unpaid Dividend 34,489 -

Liabilities under �nance lease - -

Employee bonus payable 27,284,406 17,245,709

Other 12,289,322 4,685,320

Lease Liabilities 2,964,894 -

TDS Payable 1,529,605 -

Loan Nominee Amount 7,794,823 4,685,320

Other Payables - -

Total 57,239,664 48,564,897

Note No. 4.21.1

De�ned Bene�t Obligation

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Present value of funded obligations 2,438,665 1,670,830

Total present value of obligations 2,438,665 1,670,830

Fair value of plan assets 3,890,744 2,034,389

Present value of net obligations - -

Recognized liability for de�ned bene�t obligation (1,452,079) (363,559)

Note No. 4.21.2

Plan Assets

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Equity securities - -

Government bonds - -

Bank deposits - -

Other 3,890,744 2,034,389

Total 3,890,744 2,034,389
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Note No. 4.21.3

Movement in the present value of de�ned bene�t obligation

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

De�ned bene�t obligation at Shrawan 1, 2080 1,670,830 1,918,609

Actuarial losses 313,036 (720,592)

Bene�t paid by the plan - -

Current service cost and interest 454,799 472,813

De�ned bene�t obligation at Ashad end, 2081 2,438,665 1,670,830

Note No. 4.21.4

Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1, 2080 2,034,389 1,482,907

Contributions paid into the plan 1,701,225 328,323

Bene�t paid during the year - -

Actuarial (losses) gains - -

Expected return on plan assets 155,130 223,159

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end 2081 3,890,744 2,034,389

Note No. 4.21.5

Amount recognized in Pro�t or Loss

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Current service cost 289,753 261,766

Interest on obligation 165,046 211,047

Expected return on plan assets (155,130) (223,159)

Total 299,669 249,654

Note No. 4.21.6

Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Actuarial (gain)/loss 313,036 (720,592)

Total 313,036 (720,592)



65P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

Note No. 4.21.7

Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Discount rate 10% 9%

Expected return on plan assets - - 

Future salary increase 5% 5%

Withdrawal rate 1% 1%

Total   

 

Note No. 4.22

Debt Securities Issued

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Debt securities issued designated at fair value 
through pro�t or loss

- -

Debt securities issued at amortized cost - -

Total - -

Note No. 4.23

Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Redeemable preference shares - -

Irredemable cummulative preference shares 
(Liabilities component)

- -

Other - -

Total - -

Note No. 4.24

Share Capital

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Ordinary shares 944,351,065 869,568,200

Convertible preference share (Equity component 
only)

- -

Irredeemable preference share (Equity component 
only)

- -

Perpetual debt (Equity component only) - -

Total 944,351,065 869,568,200
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Note No. 4.24.1

Ordinary Share

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Authorized capital:   

10,000,000 ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

(Previous Year 10000000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 
100 each)

Issued capital:

(9,443,510 ordinary share of Rs. 100 each ) 944,351,065 869,568,200

Subscribed and paid of capital:

(9,443,510 ordinary share of Rs. 100 each ) 944,351,065 869,568,200

Total 944,351,065 869,568,200

Note No. 4.24.2

Ordinary Share Ownership

Particulars
As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Percent Amount Percent Amount

Domestic ownership (Promoter)

Nepal Government 0.00% - 0.00% -

"A" class licensed institutions 10.20% 96,323,809 12.00% 104,348,184

Other licensed institutions 0.00% - 0.00% -

Other institutions 10.32% 97,410,013 12.14% 105,524,876

Other 30.48% 287,885,221 35.86% 311,867,860

Domestic ownership (Public) 0.00% -

Nepal Government 0.00% - 0.00% -

"A" class licensed institutions 0.01% 82,414 0.01% 75,970

Other licensed institutions 3.77% 35,635,645 0.06% 507,078

Other institutions 0.31% 2,935,742 0.22% 1,889,970

Other 44.91% 424,078,221 39.72% 345,354,261

Foreign ownership Promoter 0.00% - 0.00% -

Foreign ownership Public 0.00% - 0.00% -

Total 100.00% 944,351,065 100.00% 869,568,200
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Details of Shareholders holding 0.5% or more of 

share capital
As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

 % of holding % of holding

Grameen Swablamban Bikash Kendra 12.14% 12.14%

Global IME Bank Limited 10.20% 12.00%

Sumit Kumar Agarwal 11.70% 11.70%

Birendra Kumar Shah 0.74% 0.87%

Bal Krishna Paudel 0.51% 0.60%

Bipin Aryal - 0.55%

Ananta Kumar Paudel - 0.73%

Note No. 4.25

Reserves

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Statutory General Reserve 133,662,901 105,314,375

Capital Reserve - -

Exchange equalization reserve - -

Investment adjustment reserve - -

Corporate social responsibility reserve 3,112,431 2,092,085

Client Protection Fund 2,722,810 2,626,697

Capital redemption reserve - -

Regulatory reserve 24,792,065 9,776,321

Assets revaluation reserve - -

Fair value reserve - -

Dividend equalization reserve -

Actuarial gain 239,962 459,087

Special reserve* - -

Other reserve -

Capital Adjustment Fund - -

Contingent Reserve - -

Corporate development fund - -

Employee training fund - -

Deferred Tax Reserve - 802,532

Total 164,530,169 121,071,098
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a. General Reserve

�ere is regulatory requirement by the central Financial Institution to set aside 20% of the net pro�t a�er 
tax as general reserve to build up the capital until the reserve fund balance is twice the paid-up share 
capital. �is is the restricted reserve and cannot be freely used.

b. Capital Reserve

�e capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and which 
shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. No such reserve has been created by the Financial 
Institution.

c. Exchange Equalization Reserve

�e regulatory requirement requires the Financial Institution to transfer 25% of exchange revaluation 
gain on foreign currency other than the Indian currency to this reserve.

�e �nancial institution does not deal with the foreign exchange transaction; hence no exchange 
equalization reserve has been created.

d. Investment Adjustment Reserve

It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in Financial Institution's 
investments as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Financial Institution.

�e �nancial institution does not have any kinds of such investment; hence no reserve is required to be 
created on reporting date.

e. Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve

�e regulatory requirement requires the �nancial institution to create the Corporate Social Responsibility 
of 1% of the Net Pro�t of the year to be expensed for CSR activities.

During the Fiscal Year 2080.81, the �nancial Institution has expensed the following amount from the 
said fund, the details of which are presented below:

Particulars Amount

Opening Fund as on Shrawan 1, 2080 2,092,085

Expenses from the fund 397,079

Net Balance

Addition made in FY 2080-81 1,417,426

Net Closing Fund 3,112,431
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f. Client Protection Fund

Client Protection fund is created at 1% of net pro�t. In addition to this, 25% of dividend in excess of 20% 
is allocated to this fund as per NRB Directives.

�e summary of the addition made into the fund and withdrawal made from the fund for FY 80-81 as:

Particulars Amount

Opening Balance in the Fund 2,626,696

Addition to the fund during FY 80-81 -

1% of Net Pro�t as per regulatory requirement 1,417,426

15% of dividend in excess of 35% -

Interest Income 16,381

Total 4,060,503

Expenses from the fund during FY 80-81

a. Training Expenses towards Members 1,337,695

b. Delivery assistance paid to members -

c.  Relief Distribution towards members -

d. Corona Virus assistance to members -

Total 1,337,695

Closing Balance in the fund as on Ashadh end, 2081 2,722,810

g. Capital Redemption Reserve

�ere is no any balance in capital redemption reserve as opening balance of this reserve was nil and no 
amount has been allocated to this reserve during the reporting period.

h. Regulatory Reserve

�e amount that is allocated from pro�t or retained earnings of the Financial Institution as per the 
Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS is presented under this account head. �e 
amount in this reserve is not free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares). �e amount 
allocated to this reserve include interest income recognized but not received in cash, di�erence of loan 
loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRS (in case lower 
impairment is recognized under NFRS), amount recognized in deferred tax assets & amount of goodwill 
recognized under NFRS etc.

�e details of regulatory reserve created for FY 80.81 are presented below:

Particulars Amount (in NPR)

Opening Balance 9,776,321

Addition to the fund during FY 80-81

a. Interest receivable 12,937,633

b. Others 2,078,111

Closing Balance in the fund as on Ashadh end, 2081 24,792,065
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i. Assets Revaluation Reserve

Reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets and 
Investment Property) is presented under this account head. No such assets has been revaluated during 
the reporting period.

j. Fair Value Reserve

�e fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of �nancial assets that are 
measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until 
the assets are derecognized. �e cumulative amounts of changes in fair value of those �nancial assets is 
presented under this account head.

k. Dividend Actualization Reserve

For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of pro�t during the 
year of pro�t-making is transferred and presented under this account head. No such fund has been 
created by the Financial Institution.

l. Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value employee obligations 
is presented under this account head. �is amount is allocated from pro�t or retained earnings of the 
institution as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not 
be regarded as free for distribution of dividend.

m. Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the speci�c requirement of NRB directive or special instruction 
of NRB is presented as special reserve. �ere is neither any opening balance in special reserve nor has 
any amount been allocated to this reserve during the reporting period.

n. Debenture Redemption Reserve

�e �nancial institution has not issued any kinds of debentures till the FY 80-81 hence no redemption 
reserve has been created.

o. Other Reserve

�e other reserve of the �nancial institution consists of Institutional Development fund and Employee 
related reserve.

i. Deferred Tax Reserve

�e �nancial institution maintains deferred tax reserve for the temporary di�erences as per NAS 12, 
Income Taxes

ii. Employee Related Fund

Employee training fund is created as per the mandatory provision directed as per the NRB directives. 
As per the said directives, the micro�nance institution needs to allocate and spend at least 3% of last 



71P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

�scal year's total personnel expenses for the development and trainings of the employees. Further if 
micro�nance could not spend up the 3%, the shortfall amount shall be transferred to the Employee 
Training Fund and shall be used for employee trainings in subsequent years. 

�e summary of the addition made into the fund and withdrawal made from the Employee Training 
fund for FY 80-81 is as:

Note No. 4.26

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Contingent Liabilities - -

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 55,000,000 17,500,000

Capital commitment - -

Lease commitment - -

Litigation - -

Others - -

Total 55,000,000.00 17,500,000.00

Note No. 4.26.1

Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in 
�nancial statements

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Capital commitments in relation to Property 

and Equipment

Approved and contracted for - -

Approved but not contracted for - -

Sub Total - -

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible 

assets

Approved and contracted for - -

Approved but not contracted for - -

Sub Total

Total - -
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Note No. 4.26.2

Lease Commitments

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Future minimum lease payment under non 
cancellable operating lease, where  the institution 
is lessee

Not later than 1 year 903,036.00 -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 2,568,141.00 -

Later than 5 years - -

Sub Total 3,471,177.00 -

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payment under 
non-cancellable operating lease, where the 
institution is lessee

Not later than 1 year - -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -

Later than 5 years - -

Sub Total - -

Grand Total 3,471,177.00

Note No. 4.26.3

Litigation

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

   

Total  -                              -   

	  	  
Note No. 4.27

Interest Income

Interest income include interest income on loan and advance, cash and cash equivalent, loan and advances 
to sta�, investment securities except on those investment securities measure at fair value through pro�t 
or loss. Details presented as follows:

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Cash and cash equivalents - -

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions 397,511 369,028

Loans and Advances to Bank and Financial Institutions 870,381,773 947,089,255

Loans and advances to customers - -

Investment securities - -

Loans and advances to sta� 813,798 1,081,915

Other 561,389 244,325

Total interest income 872,154,471 948,784,523
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Note No. 4.28

Interest Expense

Interest expenses include interest accrued on deposits collected and borrowing and re�nance facilities 
availed by the �nancial institutions. Details presented as follows:

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - -

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Deposits from customers - -

Borrowing 582,022,532 660,084,657

Debt securities issued - -

Subordinated liabilities - -

Others 287,611 -

Interest Expenses- Lease 287,611 -

Total interest expense 582,310,142 660,084,657

Note No. 4.29

Fee and Commission Income

Fees and commission income includes loan administration fee, service charges, other fees and commission 
etc.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Loan Administration fees 16,373,200 36,450,000

Service fees - -

Commitment fees - -

Card Issuance Fees - -

Prepayment and swap fees - 1,204,167

Remittance fees - -

Brokerage fees - -

Other Fees and Commission Income 1,808,813 -

Total Fees and Commission Income 18,182,013 37,654,167

Note No. 4.30

Fee and Commission Expense

Fees and commission expense include loan administration fees.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Brokerage - -

ATM management fees - -

VISA/Master card fees - -

Guarantee commission - -

Brokerage - -

DD/TT/Swi� fees - -

Remittance fees and commission - -

Other Fees and Commission Expense 2,802,500 12,491,366

Total Fees and Commission Expense 2,802,500 12,491,366
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Note No. 4.31

Net Trading Income

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Changes in fair value of trading assets - -

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -

Interest income on trading assets - -

Dividend income on trading assets - -

Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction - -

Other - -

Total Net trading income - -

Note No. 4.32

Other Operating Income

Other operating income of the �nancial institution includes the gain from sale of Property, Plant and 
equipment.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain - -

Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities - -

Fair value gain/loss on investment property - -

Dividend on equity instruments - -

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment 45,000 29,967

Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -

Operating lease income - -

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -

Other - -

Total other operating income 45,000 29,967

Note No. 4.33

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and 
advances to B/FIs

(6,566,204) 107,347,057

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and 
advances to customer

- -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on �nancial Investment - -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with 
bank and �nancial institutions

- -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and 
equipment

- -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and 
intangible assets

- -

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment property - -

Total impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and 
other losses

(6,566,204) 107,347,057
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Note No. 4.34

Personnel Expense

All expenses related to employees of a Financial Institution are included under this head. Details has 
been presented below:

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Salary 8,684,625 8,579,526

Allowances 5,523,945 5,470,707

Gratuity expenses 454,808 472,813

Provident fund 868,463 825,966

Uniform 170,000 170,000

Training & Development Expense 658,862 658,117

Leave encashment 1,721,684 1,149,824

Medical 1,092,121 1,073,083

Insurance 76,970 72,739

Employees Incentive - -

Cash-settled share-based payments - -

Pension Expense - -

Finance expenses under NFRS - -

Other Expenses Related to Sta� - 401,844

Sub-Total 19,251,476 18,874,619

Employees Bonus 27,284,406 17,245,709

Total 46,535,882 36,120,328

Note No. 4.35

Other Operating Expense

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Directors' fee 809,000 591,500

Directors' expense 1,992,179 3,535,615

Auditors' remuneration 367,250 324,875

Other audit related expense 72,142 129,734

Professional and legal expense 1,116,373 1,749,137

O�ce administration expense 5,917,412 4,885,281

Operating lease expense - 1,037,160

Operating expense of investment properties - -

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 397,080 726,457

Client Protection Expenses - -

Onerous lease provision - -

Other - -

Total other operating expense 10,671,437 12,979,759
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Note No. 4.35.1

O�ce Administration Expense

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Water & Electricity 279,533 266,278

Repair & Maintenance 415,233 427,632

(a) Building - -

(b) Vehicles 246,833 347,472

(c) Computer & Accessories 72,400 3,500

(d) O�ce Equipment and Furniture 96,000 76,660

(e) Other - -

Insurance 93,421 96,781

Postage, Telex, telephone & Fax 65,613 91,062

Printing & Stationery 140,677 161,310

Newspaper, Books and Journals 42,300 24,000

Advertisement 291,818 230,860

Donation - -

Security Expenses - -

Deposit and loan guarantee Premium - -

Travel Allowance and expenses 695,034 702,955

Entertainment - -

Annual/Special General Meeting 638,524 581,147

Other 3,255,259 2,303,257

Share Registration and Related Expenses 516,093 481,592

Fuel 535,714 495,940

Hospitality Expenses 170,401 84,737

Business Promotion Expenses 85,501 122,125

Computer So�ware Expenses 54,907 76,788

Professional Fees - -

Tax and Duties 78,800 143,998

Auction Related Expenses - -

Registration Fee and Charges 365,250 388,450

Consumable Goods - 940

O�ce Expenses 323,913 161,230

Other Fees and Commission 79,733 93,343

SMS Credit Charge - -

Email/ Internet 276,432 248,819

Wages 122,850 -

Local transport Expenses 46,585 -

Budget & Seminar Expenses 147,089 -

Others 451,990 5,295

Total 5,917,412 4,885,281
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Note No. 4.36

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 
Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful 
life. Depreciation and amortization include depreciation on plant and equipment & amortization of 
intangible assets.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Depreciation on Property and Equipment 2,228,625 2,148,484

Depreciation on investment property - -

Amortization of intangible assets 154,125 266,498

Depreciation Expenses - ROU 788,726 -

Total depreciation and amortization 3,171,476 2,414,982

Note No. 4.37

Non-Operating Income

�e incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this 
head.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Recovery of loan written o� - -

Other income 669,603 180,873

Total non-operating income 669,603 180,873

Note No. 4.38

Non-Operating Expense

�e expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this 
head.

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Loan Written O� - -

Redundancy provision - -

Expenses of restructuring - -

Other expense - -

Total non-operating Expenses - -
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Note No. 4.39

Income Tax Expense

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Current tax expense

Current year tax 76,027,376 47,016,966

Previous year tax 35,631,417 -

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary di�erences (1,275,572) 721,103

Changes in tax rate - -

Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses - -

Total income tax expense 110,383,221 47,738,069

Note No. 4.39.1

Reconciliation of Tax Expense and Accounting Pro�t

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2081 As at 31st Ashad 2080

Pro�t before tax 252,125,854 155,211,382

Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 75,637,756 46,563,414

Add: Tax e�ect of expenses that are not deductible 
for tax purpose

- -

Less: Tax e�ect on exempt income - -

Add/less: Tax e�ect on other items 389,620 453,552

Total income tax expense 76,027,376 47,016,966

E�ective tax rate 30.15% 30.29%
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5. Disclosure and Additional Information

5.1. Risk Management

Risk is the possibility or chance of loss, danger or injury. As the �nancial institution main objective is to 
provide �nancial services to the deprived sector, it encounters various risk in the process of execution of 
such �nancial services as:

i.	 Liquidity Risk

ii.	 Interest Rate Risk

iii.	Credit Risk

iv.	 Operational Risk

Risk management is an integral part of �nancial intermediation and banking business that a�ect its risk 
pro�le. Failure to adequately assess and manage risks may lead to losses endangering the soundness of 
individual �nancial institutions and a�ecting the stability of the overall �nancial system.

Nepal Rastra Bank has issued Guidelines to provide guidance to all �nancial institutions on minimum 
standards for risk management and the requirement is stated in the Uni�ed Directive No. 5 for MFIs. 
�e �nancial institution has abided the minimum guidelines directed the Rastra Bank in addressing and 
minimizing the risk that is inherent in its operation.

Risk Governance

�e board of directors sets the policies, strategies and overse the executive function whereas the senior 
management is responsible for implementing those strategies and communicating them throughout the 
organization. �e Board sets risk appetite, ear organization setup, well de�ned roles, well developed 
tools and processes and well-de�ned policy on each risk areas and ensures that it is re�ected in business 
strategy and cascaded throughout the organization.

Risk Management Committee

For the e�ective risk management, Board has formed a board level committee called Risk Management 
Committee (RMC) which assists the board in setting risk strategy policies, including risk tolerance 
and appetite levels, as stipulated by Nepal Rastra Financial Institution. It devises the risk management 
policy of the Financial Institution including credit, market and operational risk, risk integration, 
implementation of best risk management practices and setting up various risk limits of the Financial 
Institution. �e Committee receives reports from management and a�er discussion and deliberations 
reaches in a conclusion that existing action taken by the management are appropriate or elevate the 
situations to the Board where further action is required with its recommendation. 

�e Risk Management Committee Comprises of following members;

SN Name Designation

1 Mr. Chandra Raj Sharma Coordinator

2 Mr. Bishnu Prasad Poudyal Member

3 Mrs. Sabina Rana Member

4 Mr. Ram Prasad Panthi Member

5 Mr. Ananta Raj Pant Member Secretary
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5.1.1. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Financial Institution may be unable to meets its obligations due or 
to fund increases in assets as they fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses.

�e Financial Institution has been maintaining CRR (Compulsory Reserve Ratio) and SLR (Standing 
Liquidity Ratio) as per the requirement set by regulatory body which are being monitored on continuous 
basis.  Further, the monthly details of liquidity position are analyzed prior to each month and liquidity 
position of the institution has been planned accordingly. Also, maturity wise structural liquidity table are 
being prepared as per the regulatory guidelines on quarterly basis to assess the overall liquidity position 
of the institution.

5.1.2. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the exposure of a �nancial institution’s condition to the adverse movement in interest 
rate. Changes in interest rates a�ect an institution’s earnings and also a�ect the underlying value of 
the institution’s assets, liabilities and o�-balance-sheet instruments. �e �nancial institution takes the 
following measures to minimize the risk arising from interest rates:

i. 	 Diversi�cation of loans, deposits and borrowings.

ii. 	 Financial institutions have appropriate strategies, policies and procedures in place to perform 
e�ective risk management that maintains interest rate risk within prudent levels, as is essential 
for the safety and soundness of the institution.

5.1.3. Credit Risk

Credit risk is de�ned as the potential that a Financial Institution borrower or counterparty will fail 
to meet its obligations in accordance with agreed terms. In assessing the background, capacity and 
credibility of borrower, all the relevant information are collected by the Financial Institutions including 
personal information, family background, assets and liabilities information, Credit Information Report 
o know the past history of borrower and other details as required. Also, the loan sanction limit per client 
has been set for each individual branch manager, regional manager and head o�ce so that unauthorized 
lending is restricted.

5.1.4. Operational Risk

Operational Risk is loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or 
from external events, including legal risks. 

Financial Institution has e�ective Internal Control System and Information System for managing 
Operational Risk. Internal Audit has been conducted on quarterly basis in Head O�ce whereas done 
annually on each branch by the internal audit department of the �nancial institution to identify the 
existing and potential de�ciencies in the internal control environment and current practices of the 
organization.

Also, detailed job description has been provided to each employee of the �nancial institution so as to avoid 
the clashes of authority and responsibility among employees and accountability has been established for 
their speci�ed roles and designation.

Risk events of the Financial Institution are compiled and instructed the related function to take corrective 
measures wherever necessary. Financial Institution has Disaster Recovery Policy and Business Continuity 
Plan incorporated in IT Policy. Human Resource Department of the Financial Institution is placing and 
transferring the employees periodically.
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5.1.5. Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Financial Instruments are recorded at fair value. �e following is a description of how fair values are 
determined for �nancial instruments that are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques. �is 
incorporates the Financial Institution's estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make 
when valuing the instruments.

For some assets and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. 
For other assets and liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might not be 
available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same – to estimate the 
price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between 
market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price at the 
measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

�e fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1

�ese are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Financial Institution 
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2

�ese are the inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly 
or indirectly.

�ese would include prices for the similar, but not identical, assets or liabilities that were then adjusted 
to re�ect the factors speci�c to the measured asset or liability.

Level 3

Fair value measurements are derived using valuation techniques in which current market transactions 
or observable market data are not available. Under this, instruments are fair valued using valuation 
models which have been tested against prices or inputs to actual market transactions and make use of 
Financial Institution best estimate of the most appropriate model assumptions. Unobservable inputs 
have a signi�cant e�ect on instrument's value.

5.2.  Capital Management

�e bank assesses the impact of the new rules, if any on their capital adequacy through a comprehensive 
capital planning and optimization/mitigation process. �e capital planning is an integral part of the Bank’s 
medium term strategic planning and annual budget formulation process. Total risk weighted exposures 
for the projected level of business operations is calculated, the required capital level is projected, and a 
plan is formulated to maintain the required capital.

i. Qualitative Characteristics

�e Financial Institution has developed its own internal policy, procedures and structures to manage 
all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk pro�les as 
well as strategies for maintaining capital level in compliance with the directives and guidelines issued 
by Nepal Rastra Bank. �is includes basic requirements of having good governance, e�cient process 
of managing all material risk and e�ective regime for assessing and managing adequate capital. �e 
�nancial Institution has various BODs approved risk management policies for proper governance.
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ii. Quantitative Characteristics

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

Tier I Capital and a breakdown of its components

SN Description Amount 

(in NPR)

1 Paid up Capital (ordinary shares) 944,351

2 Proposed bonus share -

3 Share premium -

4 Irredeemable preferential share -

5 General Reserve Fund 133,663

6 Accumulated pro�t/(loss) 97,329

7 Pro�t & loss a/c as per balance-sheet -

8 Capital Redemption Reserve Fund -

9 Capital Adjustment Fund -

10 Calls in advance -

11 Other Free Reserves -

Deductions:

a Goodwill -

b Deferred tax assets 2,172

b Investment on shares and securities in excess of limits -

c Investment to the company having �nancial interests -

d Fictitious Asset -

e Investment on land and building for self use not complying the Directives of NRB -

f Investment on land development and housing construction in excess of limits -

g Underwriting share not sold within the stipulated time -

h Credit and other facilities banned by the prevailing laws -

Total Tier 1 Capital 1,173,171

Tier II Capital and breakdown of its components

SN Description
Amount 

(in NPR)

1 Provisions of loan loss made for pass loan 81,807

2 Additional loan loss provision -

3 Hybrid capital instruments -

4 Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt -

5 Exchange Equalization Fund -

6 Assets revaluation Fund (max. 2% of Supplementary capital is added 
automatically)

-

7 Investment adjustment Fund -

Total Tier II Capital 81,807
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Total Qualifying Capital

SN Description Amount (in NPR)

1 Core Capital (Tier 1) 1,173,171

2 Supplementary Capital (Tier II) 81,807

Total Qualifying Capital 1,254,978

Capital Adequacy Ratio

SN Description Percentage

1 Core Capital Ratio 17.28%

2 Capital Adequacy Ratio 18.49%

Risk Weighted Exposure

S.N. Description Weight (%) Amount (in NPR)
Risk Weight 

Assets

On-Balance-sheet Items

1 Cash Balance 0 - -

2 Balance on domestic banks and 
�nancial institutions

20 55,055 11,011

3 Money at call 20 239,349 47,870

4 Loans & advances, bills 
purchase/discount

100 6,504,226 6,504,226

5 Fixed assets 100 4,560 4,560

6 Other assets (Except advance tax 
payment)

100 29,584 29,584

Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 6,597,251

O�-Balance-sheet Items

O�-Balance Sheet Items 100 55,000 55,000

Amount to be maintained for operational risk 100 136,655 136,655

Total O�-Balance-sheet Items (B) 191,655

Total Risk Weighted Exposure (A+B) 6,788,906

iii. Compliance with external requirement

�e �nancial institution has complied with externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject 
and there are no such consequence where the institution has not complied with those requirement.
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5.3. Classi�cation of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

�e �nancial assets and liabilities are classi�ed in Amortized Cost, fair value through pro�t (FVTPL) 
and loss and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). 

�e classi�cation of �nancial assets and liabilities for the FY 80-81 is shown in the table below:

Particulars
Amortized 

Cost
FVTPL FVTOCI Total

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 239,348,980 - - 239,348,980

Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal 
Rastra Bank

55,055,277 - - 55,055,277

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -

Derivative �nancial instruments - - - -

Other Trading Assets - - - -

Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 6,306,102,101 - - 6,306,102,101

Loans and Advances to customers 8,556,708 - - 8,556,708

Investment securities 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000

Other Financial Assets 21,414,732 - - 21,414,732

Total Financial Assets 6,632,477,799 - - 6,632,477,799

Financial Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -

Derivative �nancial instruments - - - -

Deposits from customers - - - -

Borrowing 5,359,331,019 - - 5,359,331,019

Other liabilities 57,239,664 - - 57,239,664

Total Financial Liabilities 5,416,570,683 - - 5,416,570,683

5.4. Operating Segment Information

5.4.1. General Information

a. Factors that management used to identify the entity's reportable segments

�e Micro�nance has identi�ed the reportable segment as the class of loans disbursed from which it 
earns Revenue and incurs expenses whose operating results are reviewed by the management to make 
decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess its performance. �e Micro�nance 
provides disburse loan to following entities:

i. "D" Class Micro�nance Institutions

ii. Cooperatives
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b. Segment Description

‘D’ class 
Micro�nance

‘D’ Class Micro�nance makes loans and advance to such micro�nance who has 
obtained licensed from Nepal Rastra Bank as ‘D’ Class Micro�nance Institutions and 
those ‘D’ class micro�nance institutions further make loans and advances to deprived 
people.

Co-operative Co-Operative makes loans and advances to such Community base cooperative which 
has been registered at division co-operative o�ce and operated as per cooperative 
act. Further Co-operatives makes loans and advances to deprived local community.

c. 	 Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its 
revenue

Each segment provides micro�nance such as Loans, Deposits, Micro-insurance, and Remittance services 
to low-income families of Nepal.

5.4.2. Information about Pro�t or Loss, Assets and Liabilities

SN Particulars Cooperatives Retail MFIs Others Total

1 Revenue from External 
Customers

238,807,415 603,690,423 48,553,249 891,051,087

2 Intersegment revenues - - - -

3 Net Revenues 238,807,415 603,690,423 48,553,249 891,051,087

4 Interest Revenues 356,350,468 590,738,787 1,687,871 948,777,125

5 Interest Expenses 156,062,858 394,517,285 31,729,998 582,310,142

6 Net Interest revenue 200,287,609 196,221,501 (30,042,128) 366,466,983

7 Depreciation and amortization 849,976 2,148,687 172,813 3,171,476

8 Segment Pro�t/(loss) - - - -

9 Other material non-cash items: - - - -

10 Impairment charge/(reversal) 
for loans

126,393,365 104,704,176 - 231,097,541

11 Segment assets 1,778,128,766 4,494,999,904 361,521,142 6,634,649,812

12 Segment Liabilities 1,454,856,704 3,677,788,061 295,794,920 5,428,439,686

Notes

i.	 Revenue from external customers:	 �e revenue from external customers have been segregated in 
accordance with the nature and the type of the segment

ii.	 Inter Segment revenue	 Micro�nance does not have inter unit cost charging 
mechanism therefore inter segment revenue is not disclosed.

iii.	 Net Revenue:	 Net revenue is same as the revenue from external customers 
as there is no inter segment revenue.

iv.	 Interest Revenue: 	 Total Interest income is bifurcated into those from loan and 
advance to MFIs' and co-operatives and customer.

v.	 Interest Expenses:	 Interest Expenses has been apportioned on the basis of loans 
to MFIs', Co-operatives and Sta�s.
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vi.	 Net Interest Revenue: 	 Net Interest Revenue is interest revenue less interest expenses.

vii.	 Depreciation and amortization:	 Have been apportion on the basis of MFIs' and co-operative's 
and Others'.

viii.	Segment pro�t/(loss): 	 �e pro�t before tax has been apportion on the basis of MFIs' 
and co-operative's Loans (Net).

ix.	 Other material non-cash items:	 Micro�nance does not have basis of allocation non-cash 
assets segments.

x.	 Impairment on Assets	 Has been allocated to the speci�c segment assets

xi.	 Segment Assets: 	 Segment assets have been allocated in accordance with the 
nature of assets.

xii.	 Segment Liabilities:	 Segment liabilities have been allocated in accordance with 
the nature of liabilities.

5.4.3. Measurement of Operating Segment pro�t or loss, assets and liabilities

a. Basis of accounting for any transactions between reportable segments

Interest earning generated while conducting business under di�erent segments are reported under 
the respective segment. Equity and Tax Expenses are not allocated to the individual segments. For 
segmentation purpose, all business transactions of o�ces and business units located in a particular 
province are grouped together.

b. Nature of any di�erences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ pro�ts or losses 
and the entity’s pro�t or loss before income tax.

None

c. Nature of any di�erences between the measurements of the reportable segments’ assets and the 
entity’s asset

None

d. Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported 
segment pro�t or loss and the e�ect

None

e. Nature and e�ect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments

None

5.4.4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, pro�t or loss, assets and liabilities

a. Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segments  Amount

Other revenues 891,051,087

Elimination of intersegment revenues  -

Entity’s revenues  891,051,087
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b. Pro�t or Loss

Particulars Amount

Total pro�t or loss for reportable segments 141,742,634

Other pro�t or loss -

Elimination of intersegment pro�ts -

Unallocated amounts: -

Other Revenue -

Finance Expenses -

Commission and Discount -

Personnel expenses -

Other Administrative -

Bonus -

NFRS Adjustment -

Pro�t before income tax 141,742,634

c. Assets

Particulars Amount

Total assets for reportable segments 6,634,649,812

Other assets -

Unallocated amounts -

Entity’s assets 6,634,649,812

d. Liabilities

Particulars Amount

Total liabilities for reportable segments 5,428,439,686

Other liabilities -

Unallocated liabilities -

Entity’s liabilities 5,428,439,686

5.4.5.	 Information about product and services

SN Particulars Amount

(a) Micro�nance Related Services 891,051,087

(b) ………….. -

Total 891,051,087



88 P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

5.4.6. Information about geographical areas

SN Geographical Areas Amount

(a) Domestic

Koshi 38,891,324

Madesh 118,395,757

Bagmati province 279,719,229

Gandaki province 117,011,234

Lumbini province 199,876,966

Karnali province 33,824,397

Sudur Paschim province 103,332,180

(b) Foreign -

Total 891,051,087

5.4.7. Information about major customers

Information about the extent of its reliance on its major customers, if revenue from a single external 
customer amount to 10 percent or more of the entity's revenue.

Particular Revenue Segment

Customer 1* - Segment 1

Customer 2* - Segment 3

……………. - Segment 2

Total -  

Bank does not have any customers with revenue from single external customer amounts to 10% or more 
of the revenue.

5.5.  Share Option and Share Based Payment

�e Financial Institution doesn’t have arrangements of share-based payment and share option as on 
reporting date.

5.6. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

�e details of contingent liabilities and commitments has been presented in notes 4.26 above, if any.



89P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

5.7. Related Parties Disclosure

5.7.1. List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

�e following parties have been identi�ed as the related party transaction as per NAS 24.

SN Name Designation

1 Mr. Rajendra Prasad Dahal Chairman

2 Mr. Chandra Raj Sharma Director

3 Mr. Bishnu Prasad Poudyal Director

4 Mr. Damodar Joshi Director

5 Mrs. Sabina Rana Independent Director

6 Mr. Amar Dangol Maharjan Public Director

7 Mr. Shanti Prasad Upreti Public Director

8 Mr. Dhruba Kumar Paudel Chief Executive O�cer

5.7.2. Transactions with and Payments to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities

SN Particulars No of Meetings Meeting Allowance  (in NPR)

1 Board Meeting 14 529,000

2 Audit Committee 6 62,000

3 Risk Management Committee 5 71,000

4 AML Committee 5 56,000

5 Service Facilities Committee 3 28,000

6 Merger & Acquisition Committee 4 63,000

Total 37 809,000

Details of expenses incurred for conducting the meetings are as:

SN Particulars Amount (NPR)

1 Fuel, Newspaper and Communication allowance 123,000

2 Other Expenses 1,869,179

Total 1,992,179

Details of Chief Executive O�cer's Emoluments and Facilities for FY 80-81 are as:

SN Particulars Amount (NPR)

1 Short Term Employee Bene�ts 3,044,000

2 Retirement Bene�ts 553,333

Leave expenses for the year 553,333

Gratuity expenses for the year -

Medical expenses for the year -

3 Others 2,615,956

Total 6,231,289
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5.7.3.	 Transaction with Related Party

SN Particulars Particulars

1 Name of Related Party Global IME Bank Ltd

2 Nature of Transaction Banking

3 Amount of Borrowing Outstanding Balance including Commitments 388,736,201.93

4 Amount of Deposit Outstanding 2,640,068.70

5 Expenses recognized in the period
Interest Expenses
Loan Management Fee

50,120,841.76
-

6 Income recognized in the period -

5.8. Merger and Acquisition

�e Financial Institution has not entered into any merger and acquisition activities in the reporting 
period and in the comparative previous period. 

5.9. Additional Disclosures of non-consolidated entities

�e Financial Institution does not have any subsidiaries & associates. So, additional disclosure is not 
required.

5.10. Events a�er reporting date

5.10.1.	Proposed Dividend

�e 161st meeting of the board of directors of the bank held on 17th October, 2024 has recommended 
distribution of 9.5% stock dividend (bonus share) and 0.50% cash dividend for tax purpose for the 
annual period ending July 15, 2024 to be put up for approval at upcoming shareholders' Annual General 
Meeting of the Bank.

No circumstances other than mentioned here have arised since the reporting date will required adjustment 
to, or disclosure in the �nancial statements in accordance with NAS 10 "Events a�er Reporting Period".

5.11. Reconciliation of Regulatory Reserve

Fiscal Year 2076/77 2077/78 2078/79 2079/80 2080/81 Total

Interest Receivable 84,442 78,346 221,689 7,613,935 12,937,633 20,936,045

Short loan loss provision - - - - - -

Short provision for possible 
losses on Investment

- - - - - -

Short provision on NBA - - - - - -

Deferred Tax Assets - - - - - -

Goodwill - - - - - -

Gain on Bargain Purchase - - - - - -

Actuarial loss Recognized 1,259,993 - 517,916 - - 1,777,909

Fair Value Loss recognized in OCI - - - - - -

Other - - - - 2,078,111 2,078,103

Total 1,344,435 78,346 739,605 7,613,935 15,015,744 24,792,065
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Principal Indicators of Last 5 Years

SN Particulars Indicators
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited

F/Y 

2076/77

F/Y 

2077/78

F/Y 

2078/79

F/Y 

2079/80

F.Y. 

2080/81

1 Percentage of Net Pro�t/ 
Operating Income

% 17.28 24.61 70.20 69.32 56.37

2 Earning Per Share (Basic) Rs. 11.83 12.45 13.12 12.36 15.01

3 Market Value Per Share Rs. 542.00 867.00 554.80 613.10 792

4 Price Earning Ratio Ratio 45.52 69.66 42.29 49.60 52.77

5 Dividend (including bonus) on 
Share Capital

% 12.63 10.53 11.00 9.05 10

6 Cash Dividend on Share Capital % 3.63 0.53 3.00 0.45 0.5

7 Interest Income/Loan & 
Advances

% 13.92 8.89 11.18 13.65 13.41

8 Sta� Expenses/Total Operating 
Expenses

% 39.28 49.50 74.93 70.12 77.07

9 Interest Expenses Total Deposit 
and Borrowings

% 12.53 5.74 8.17 11.33 10.87

10 Exchange Gain/Operating 
Income

% - - - - -

11 Sta� Bonus/Total Sta� Expenses % 104.25 94.05 52.37 47.75 58.63

12 Net Pro�t/Loan & Advances 
(Gross)

% 2.74 2.56 1.91 1.55 2.18

13 Net Pro�t/ Total Assets % 2.29 2.29 1.86 1.55 2.14

14 Credit/Deposit Ratio % - - - - -

15 Total Operating Expenses/Total 
Assets

% 0.89 0.69 0.75 0.74 0.91

16 Adequacy of Capital fund on 
Risk Weighted Assets
a. Core Capital
b. Supplementary Capital
c. Total Fund Capital

%
%
%

25.48
1.21

26.69

23.42
1.23

24.66

17.04
1.25

18.29

14.66
1.24

15.91

17.28
1.21

18.49

17 Liquidity (CRR) % 0.54 0.59 0.56 0.69 1.03

18 Non performing Loan/ Total 
Loan & Advances

% 0.29 0.99 0.49 1.40 3.31

19 Weighted average Interest Rate % 1.39 3.15 3.01 2.32 2.54

20 Book Net worth '000 794,395 881,541 987,146 1,069,944 1,206,210

21 Total No. of Shares (thousand) '000 6,715 7,320 8,052 8,696 9,444

22 Total Sta�s No. 14.00 13.00 18.00 18.00 18.00

23 Others - - - - -
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@)*)÷*! sf] jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fx? k|sfzg ug]{ ;DjGwsf] kq k|fKt eO{ Joxf]/f cjut eof] . ;f] ;DjGwdf ldlt @)*! k'; !$ ut] a;]sf] 

;~rfns ;ldltsf] !^% cf¹+ a}7ssf] lg0f{o cg';f/ lgDgfg';f/ k|ltpQ/ k7fpg] lg0f{o ul/of] .

s_ 	 ;fem]bf/ ;+:yf dh{/ ePsf sf/0f PsLs[t ;+:yfdf 5'§f–5'§} ;+:yfnfO{ k|jfx ePsf] shf{sf] ;Ldf Psn u|fxs shf{ ;Ldf eGbf a9L x'g 

uPsf] xf] . txfFsf] lgb]{zfg';f/ tf]lsPsf] ;dodf ;Ldfleq sfod ul/g] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf nflu cg'/f]w 5 .

v_ 	 lgb]{zfg';f/ ;Ldf eGbfa9L ;+:yfks z]o/df nufgL u/]sf z]o/wgLx?sf] gub nfef+z tyf af]g; z]o/ ljt/0f /f]Ssf ul/g] Joxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf nflu 

cg'/f]w 5 .

u_ 	 ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfGtl/s / jfXo n]vfk/LIfs tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] :ynut lgl/If0f / u}/ ;'kl/j]If0f k|ltj]bgn] cf+}NofPsf s}lkmotx? k'gM 

gbf]xf]l/g] u/L ;'wf/ ub}{ uO/x]sf] / cfufdL lbgdf ;d]t ;f]xL cg'?k ;'wf/ ub}{ hfg] Aoxf]/f hfgsf/Lsf nflu cg'/f]w 5 .



96 P3f/f}“ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= sf]
k|aGwkq @)^( df ;+zf]wg

bkmf xfnsf] Joj:yf k|:tfljt ;+Zff]wg s}lkmot

^ -s_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] clws[t k"FhL ?= 
!,)),)),)),))).– -Ps ca{ ?k¹of dfq_ 
x'g]5 . ;f] k"FhLnfO{ k|ltz]o/ !)).– sf b/sf 
!,)),)),))).– -Ps s/f]8_ yfg ;fwf/0f 
z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] clws[t k"FhL ?= !,@%,)),)),))).– 
-Ps ca{ kRrL; s/f]8 ?k¹of dfq_ x'g]5 . ;f] 
k"FhLnfO{ k|ltz]o/ !)).– sf b/sf !,@%,)),))).– 
-Ps s/f]8 kRrL; nfv_ yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df 
ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

ljQLo ;+:yfn] k"FhL j[l4 ub{} 
n}hfg] nIo lnO{Psfn] .

^ -v_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L z]o/ k"FhL ?= 
($,$#,%!,)^%.@@ -rf}/fgAa] s/f]8 
lqrfln; nfv PsfpGg xhf/ k};¶L ?k¹of / 
afO{; k};f_ x'g]5 . ;f] k"FhLnfO{ k|ltz]o/ ?= 
!)).– b/sf ($,$#,%!).^% -rf}/fgAa] nfv 
lqrfnL; xhf/ kfFr ;o bz bzdnj 5 kfFr_ 
yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L z]o/ k"FhL ?= 
!,)#,$),^$,$!&.@@ -Ps ca{ tLg s/f]8 rfnL; 
nfv rf}+;¶L  xhf/ rf/ ;o ;q ?k¹of / afO{; 
k};f_ x'g]5 . ;f] k"FhLnfO{ k|ltz]o/ ?= !)).– b/sf 
!,)#,$),^$$.!& -Ps s/f]8 tLg nfv rfnL; 
xhf/ 5 ;o rjfnL; bzdnj Ps ;ft_ yfg 
;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

k|:tfljt af]g; z]o/ ljt/0f 
kZrft\ hf/L k"FhL j[l4 x'g] 
ePsf]n] .

^ -u_ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k"FhL ?= 
($,$#,%!,)^%.@@ -rf}/fgAa] s/f]8 
lqrfln; nfv PsfpGg xhf/ k};¶L ?k¹of 
afO{; k};f_ x'g]5 . ;f] k"FhLnfO{ k|ltz]o/ ?= 
!)).– b/sf ($,$#,%!).^% -rf}/fgAa] nfv 
lqrfnL; xhf/ kfFr ;o bz bzdnj 5 kfFr_ 
yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 .

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k"FhL ?= !,)#,$),^$,$!&.@@ 
-Ps ca{ tLg s/f]8 rfnL; nfv rf}+;¶L  xhf/ rf/ 
;o ;q ?k¹of / afO{; k};f_ x'g]5 . ;f] k"FhLnfO{ 
k|ltz]o/ ?= !)).– b/sf !,)#,$),^$$.!& -Ps 
s/f]8 tLg nfv rfnL; xhf/ 5 ;o rjfnL; 
bzdnj Ps ;ft_ yfg ;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg 
ul/Psf] 5 .

k|:tfljt af]g; z]o/ ljt/0f 
kZrft\ r'Qmf k"FhL j[l4 x'g] 
ePsfn] .
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cf/P;l8;L n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= sf]
lgodfjnL @)^( df ;+zf]wg

bkmf xfnsf] Joj:yf k|:tfljt ;+Zff]wg s}lkmot

#@ 
-!–v_

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt eP jfkt 
cWoIf tyf cGo ;~rfnsn] kfpg] k|lt a}7s 
eQf qmdzM ?= ^,%)).– / ?= ^,))).– x'g]5 .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}+7sdf pkl:yt eP jfkt 
cWoIf tyf cGo ;~rfnsn] kfpg] k|lt a}7s 
eQf qmdzM ?= *,%)).– / ?= &,%)).– x'g]5 .

;~rfnsx?sf] a}7s eQf 
kl/dfh{g u/L ;d;fdlos 
agfpg .

#@ 
-!–u÷c_

:jb]zdf b}lgs e|d0f eQf ?= %,))).– x'g]5 . :jb]zdf b}lgs e|d0f eQf ?= &,%)).– x'g]5 . ;~rfnsx?sf]  b}lgs eQf 
kl/dfh{g u/L ;d;fdlos 
agfpg .

#@
-!–u÷p_

k|To]s ;~rfnsnfO{ dfl;s kqklqsf vr{ ?= 
%)).–    -cIf/]lk kfFr ;o dfq_ / ;~rf/ 
vr{ ?= !,))).–   -cIf/]lk Ps xhf/ dfq_ 
pknAw u/fO{g] 5 .

k|To]s ;~rfnsnfO{ dfl;s kqklqsf / ;~rf/ 
vr{ jfkt ?= &,%)).– -cIf/]lk ;ft xhf/ kfFr 
;o dfq_ pknAw u/fO{g] 5 .

;~rfnsx?sf]  dfl;s vr{ 
kl/dfh{g u/L ;d;fdlos 
agfpg .
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l6kf]6 M 
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P3f/f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sfo{qmdsf tl:j/x?

kfNkfsf] 8'd|]df cfof]lht lgMz'Ns cfFvf r]shfFr lzlj/ . pQm lzlj/af6 s/La #)) hgf k|ToIf ?kdf nfeflGjt ePsf .

>L gjHof]tL alx/f dfWolds ljBfno, l;Gw'nLdf lgld{t tflnd sIf . 
pQm ljBfnosf ;'Idjf0fL tyf >j0f zlQm sd ePsf $ hgf ljBfyL{x?nfO{ ;f] sIff dfkm{t # dlxg] skfn s6fO{ tflnd k|bfg ul/Psf] . 

¿kGb]xLsf] ltnf]Qdfdf cjl:yt dfgj ;]jf cf>dnfO{ x:tfGt/0f ul/Psf] sl/a @%) hgfsf] nflu vfgf ksfpg ldNg] /fO{; l:6d/ .�



P3f/f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if cGtu{t ePsf sfo{qmdsf] tl:j/x?

;fem]bf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] bIftf clej[l4sf nflu ?kGb]xLsf] a'6jndf @)*) kmfu'g !@ / !( ut]
Empowering Staffs for Success in Microfinance ljifos tflnd cfof]hgf ul/Psf] .



P3f/f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if cGtu{t ePsf sfo{qmdsf] tl:j/x?

;fem]bf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] bIftf clej[l4sf nflu bfªsf] 3f]/fxLdf @)*) kmfu'g @! ut] /
?kGb]xLsf] a'6jndf @)*) kmfu'g @^ ut] Empowering Staffs for Success in Microfinance ljifos tflnd cfof]hgf ul/Psf] .



P3f/f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if cGtu{t ePsf sfo{qmdsf] tl:j/x?

;fem]bf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] bIftf clej[l4sf nflu afFs]sf] sf]xnk'/df @)*! a}zfv @( ut] /
dxf]Q/Lsf] alb{af;df @)*! h]7 )$ ut] Empowering Staffs for Success in Microfinance ljifos tflnd cfof]hgf ul/Psf] .



P3f/f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if cGtu{t ePsf sfo{qmdsf] tl:j/x?

;fem]bf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] bIftf clej[l4sf nflu dxf]Q/Lsf] alb{af;df @)*! h]7 )% ut] 
Empowering Staffs for Success in Microfinance ljifos tflnd cfof]hgf ul/Psf] .



P3f/f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if cGtu{t ePsf sfo{qmdsf] tl:j/x?

;fem]bf/ ;xsf/L ;+:yfx?sf kbflwsf/Lx?sf] Ifdtf clej[l4 ug{ @)*! a}zfv @& ut] s}nfnLsf] wgu9L /
@)*! a}zfv @* ut] afFs]sf] sf]xnk'/df ;+:yfut ;'zf;g tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljifos Ps lbg] tflnd cfof]hgf ul/Psf] .



P3f/f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if cGtu{t ePsf sfo{qmdsf] tl:j/x?

;fem]bf/ ;xsf/L ;+:yfx?sf kbflwsf/Lx?sf] Ifdtf clej[l4 ug{ @)*! h]7 ^ ut] dxf]Q/Lsf] alb{af;df
 ;+:yfut ;'zf;g tyf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljifos Ps lbg] tflnd cfof]hgf ul/Psf] .



P3f/f}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg–@)*)÷)*!

u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if cGtu{t ePsf sfo{qmdsf] tl:j/x?

?kGb]xL lhNnfdf s]Gb|Lo sfof{no ePsf % ;fem]bf/ n3'ljt ljQLo ;+:yfsf pRr Joj:yfkg txsf sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ @)*) r}q @ / # ut]
 kfNkfdf Stress Managemnt for Performance Excellence ljifos Ps lbg] cfjf;Lo sfo{qmd cfof]hgf ul/Psf] .



Joj:yfkg ;d"x

w|'j s'df/ kf}8]n
k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

/fd k|;fb kGyL 
gfoa k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t

kf/; dl0F 1jfnL
k|d'v–shf{ Joj:yfkg ljefu

clht k|wfg
;"rgf k|ljlw÷;fdfGo 

;]jf OsfO{

/Ltf cfrfo{
hgzlQm Joj:yfkg OsfO{

ljj]s vgfn
alb{af; zfvf

ldng clwsf/L
k|d'v– ljQ, ;fdfGo ;]jf / 
hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ljefu

cgGt /fh kGt
k|d'v–hf]lvd Joj:yfkg, cg'udg 

tyf ;'kl/j]If0f / shf{ c;'nL ljefu 

ljGb' Gof}kfg]
d'Vo zfvf

z+s/ e§/fO{
sf]xnk'/ zfvf

OsfO{ k|d'v zfvf k|d'v




